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Corporate Information
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yip Mow Lum (Chairman)
Mr. Hui Yik Bun (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Chan Wing Shing, Wilson

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Yu Yun Kong

Mr. Szeto Wai Sun
Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Hui Yik Bun
Mr. Chan Wing Shing, Wilson

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chan Kwan Pak

MEMBERS OF AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Yu Yun Kong (Chairman)
Mr. Szeto Wai Sun
Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph

MEMBERS OF REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE

Mr. Yu Yun Kong (Chairman)
Mr. Yip Mow Lum

Mr. Szeto Wai Sun

Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph

MEMBERS OF NOMINATION COMMITTEE
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MEMBERS OF RISK MANAGEMENT
COMMITTEE

Mr. Yu Yun Kong (Chairman)
Mr. Yip Mow Lum

Mr. Hui Yik Bun

Mr. Szeto Wai Sun

Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph

REGISTERED OFFICE

P.O. Box 31119

Grand Pavilion, Hibiscus Way
802 West Bay Road

Grand Cayman

KY1-1205

Cayman lIslands

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS

10th Floor and 23rd Floor, Wing On House
71 Des Voeux Road Central
Central, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Ocorian Trust (Cayman) Limited
Windward 3, Regatta Office Park
P.O. Box 1350

Grand Cayman KY1-1108
Cayman lIslands
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Corporate Information
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HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 54, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Bank of Communications Co., Ltd. Hong Kong Branch
China CITIC Bank International Limited

China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited
China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd., Hong Kong Branch
China Minsheng Banking Corp., Ltd., Hong Kong Branch
Chong Hing Bank Limited

CMB Wing Lung Bank Limited

Dah Sing Bank, Limited

DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Fubon Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Hang Seng Bank Limited

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
OCBC Wing Hang Bank Limited

Shanghai Commercial Bank Limited

The Bank of East Asia, Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

AUDITOR

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

Public Interest Entity Auditor registered in accordance with the

Financial Reporting Council Ordinance

WEBSITE

https://www.bsgroup.com.hk
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Major Accomplishments

RER
2020

—z-%f

June

6H

BAERSETHMEEBRLA | —T_F/

By virtue of our fast, stable, secured and
reliable one-stop investment and trading
platform, the Group won the “Outstanding
Stock and Futures Trading App
Development Award” in the 20th Capital
Outstanding Enterprise Awards granted by
CAPITAL for the second consecutive year.
Winning this award has demonstrated the
market and client high recognition of our
Baobao and Doudou APPs
REBBELEAISE  REFEN—UAR
BRGTE  BERMBE)ERZ[E_T
EERGHPERRBIRBEMEERER
HE X 5App) K - K& B E & W F 8
WK TEBERTIZAPPERMIS R
EPHERERA

The Group held a press conference in
relation to the market forecast for the
second half of 2020 and the results
of the retail investor survey about
investment during the pandemic. At the
press conference, the Group announced
its large-scale retail survey results and
analysed forecast for the stock and futures
market in 2020. The conference was
attended and widely reported and covered
by many well known media in China and
Hong Kong
REBERIT2020F ¥ FAMAKEENZ]IT
REREZRATCHEREME RELAMK
AHFPFREASHER  URSTZZT=ZTF
BRERBETSNEFTELANE - BRE
HregPBEAR > MEEEKBLE &
RNBMERBREZRE

—

Mr. Hui Yik Bun (right), the executive director and Chief
Executive Officer of the Group, received the award from
Mr. Joe Chau Kwok-ming (left), the President of the Hong
Kong General Chamber of Small and Medium Business
B NECEAHNEeREBNALSA(D)BEKRET
REBRTESRITBRARTEWEER)

Mr. Yip Mow Lum (second from right), the Chairman of
the Group, moderated the Conference and discussed
the market trend with Mr. Raymond Wong (second from
left), the senior advisor, Mr. Hui Yik Bun (first from right),
the executive director and Chief Executive Officer of the
Group and Mr. Chik Yiu Fai, Stanley (first from left), the
head of the research department
EEFrFERXMEEE ) EHZEM U RASHRE
MERTEE(ED) AEENTEERTHAITE
WhEE )RR EHEEBRBELE(L ) BHK
R R E 2




Major Accomplishments

RERL

July

7H

The Group’s net profit for the first quarter
of 2020/21 reached a record high. Mr. Yip
Mow Lum, the Chairman of the Group,
advocated the idea of “sharing the fortune
and more effort more gain”, rewarding
the staff generously. Taking the chance of
the soaring profit performance, the Group
rewarded both the frontline and back office
staff with a special bonus of millions of
Hong Kong dollars to express gratitude for
their hard work and contributions

AEEB-_T-T /- FEEFMHME LT
im FEEXMEEREIEEAZ - %
BLIRINES  KAREEIZNFH -
BRI REMETI  AAEH - KTEZE -

September

9H

>

The Group was awarded the “Best
Integrated Service” in the 2020 Fengqi
Wutong Hong Kong Stocks Financial
Summit-Jinwu Award granted by iFeng
Finance, the Chinese financial media in
recognition of the Group’s outstanding
performance in serving investors in various
aspects
AEEEBAVEB(REETEYBH
2020 BB MR B IR BT i e & & F 22 | PR &
[REFRERBIRNE UXGEEZHE
REEERBHOHERER

Bright Sm

Smiles up staff’'s face with happiness as they received
cash bonuses
RETWRREEL EEZELEHE  KXEERM

HEREEEAT  FRHOLUBESBORERIEL &
NEHBEIMmELER

[

Mr. Hui Yik Bun, the executive director and Chief
Executive Officer of the Group received the award on
behalf of the Group
REBHTEERITHARTEWNEERREBARE
15
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Major Accomplishments
RER

October

1078

> The Group achieved steady profit growth
and frequent record highs. To appreciate
our frontline and back office staff for their
selfless contribution, the Group offered
them generous rewards, including offering
interest-free and deposit-free staff loan
to subscribe ibond (2020). Moreover, the
Group spent six digits on the employee trip
to Ocean Park, helping staff balance their
busy work and life by taking care of their
physical and mental health
AEBBNBRER  XKEAHGE REHN -—FIKEMEINELNL AEERHEE
MR THREF2RERETIRES2FERMEibond (2020) EFENUHERBZETHEEFER
CEETAENERMNIEMEETPRGTE  RESOERR
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Major Accomplishments

RERL

November

118

>

Fully sponsored by the Singapore
Exchange Limited (“SGX”), the Group
organised the cross-sector investment
webinar “Stock, Gold, Exchange and
Economic Outlook 2021”. The event
analysed forecast and momentum of
Hong Kong and global economy, stock,
gold and exchange markets, helping
investors plan ahead of the market for the
2021 investment strategy to grasp profit
opportunity

REBXREFMEZGHAFZADZEN
B BRBEERIRERE - BRC2021F
fro oEe L ERIENAE LEE - B—FIE

BEDMABRRROEE KM 2™
REMHWAEES HREEXERLE_

T_—FNRERE  BELK

The Group donated over a million dollars
to support The Community Chest of Hong
Kong. The “Award of Excellence” was
granted to the Group to demonstrate our
corporate social responsibility
AEERFAAEXHEEL RS BAH
BN R | ZELTECEXERE

Six prominent speakers attended the webinar, including
Prof. Chong Tai Leung, Terence (second from right),
an associate professor of Economics, The Chinese
University of Hong Kong, Executive Director of Lau
Chor Tak Institute of Global Economics and Finance,
Mr. Jasper Lo (first from right), independent Forex and
Commodity Analyst, Ms. Samantha Chan (third from
right), independent stock commentator, Ms. Avy Yam
(third from left), independent stock commentator, Mr.
Hui Yik Bun(second from left), the executive director
and Chief Executive Officer of the Group and Mr. Chik
Yiu Fai, Stanley (first from left), the head of the research
department

EERNARERER  BE BEFARNKRELEZREH
B AGEZREERSHARMEBAREREHE
(BZ)  BUSNEEmMANMERCKE(HE ) BILR
FARBUNMA(ES) BYRFIAERBNDE(EE) -
REBERTESRITRAHFENEE(E D) RHARES
MEEBRELEA(E)

Mr. Hui Yik Bun (right), the executive director and
Chief Executive Officer of the Group, received the
Commendation Award granted by Mr. Charles Lee Yeh
Kwong (left) GBM, JP, Vice Patrons of The Community
Chest of Hong Kong

BEE AR RBRERZEEATAL (L) RBEEFF
MFIAEERITESTRITREH TR EECH)
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Major Accomplishments

KRERL

December

128

>

TVB’s “Pass On The Torch” (3 A&
&) program invited Mr. Yip Mow Lum,
Chairman of the Group, and Ms. Yip
Wing Yan, Jacquelyn, the Assistant to
Chairman, to be the guests. The special
interview episode showed how the father
and the daughter collaborate discipline
and inclusiveness in their management and
reach out for greater ambitions with joint
effort. This episode also told the story of
the business philosophy heritage passing
on to the next generation. The episode was
well received by the market since it was
launched and praised by the audience
TVBEKM KBNS 2R A& B (AR
BEYHBAEEFFERMEEEEERE
ERBRNEERE  BUOBHBWMEDE
B EERBEABRAIRREXZ - ARIZ
WHEERE  XXBELEMNEE AR
EEBazEA - HFR—HE AEXET
%EE - RN

BABLEREBERAR | —T-F/ - —FFR

Mr. Yip Mow Lum, Chairman of the Group, and Ms. Yip
Wing Yan, Jacquelyn, the Assistant to Chairman, talk
about their business philosophy and share their precious
memories between the father and the daughter.
AEBFFERMEEREFHEESE R/ AGHKER
MR WHZEMXA XM ELIE -



Major Accomplishments

RERL

10

The Group always strives for excellence.
Based on our professional customer
service team, strong branch network e
and a series of impressive special offers, ¥202

OUTSTANDING ENTERPRISES

and leveraged our “fast, stable, accurate
and smooth” BS Securities (Baobao) and
BS Futures (Doudou) apps, the Group
provided comprehensive and considerate Ghemon  &F"
financial services to investors, winning the : L
recognition from customers, the industry
and the media. The Group received the
Hong Kong Outstanding Enterprise Award
for the ninth consecutive year as well as )

Mr. Hui Yik Bun, the executive director and Chief

the Extraordinary Enterprise Award from Executive Officer of the Group, received the award on
Economic Digest in recognition of the  behalf of the Group
Group’s outstanding performanoe despite $%@$ﬂﬁ§$%ﬁﬂl%@ﬁ%@%%ﬁi?ﬁiﬁi’%%@Hﬂ‘%ﬁﬁ

REEX TR

P
an-8
Pz

,;,;gmﬂ.”

the headwind in the market, demonstrating
the uniqueness and excellence of the Group
AEB-—BENOREY BETEXNZTRER  BRANSTHEG  SEEERES ARMR -8B
ECJEINRBABLHEEINESBHECTAPP  REAKREEREEZE  MOUONESERY
KNBREEP XARANEBET AEEEBENFREB(RE-—R)BERIEBALEEKRE]
WERELSFER  —RBERGEACEAE] URGEEYTEAIEE FEEREEEXRE
BTAMRE
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Major Accomplishments

KRERL

2021
—_E-—5F

January

1A

>

BIESETRHEERRAR | —FT_F/

In response to the outbreak of the
COVID-19 pandemic in 2020, Mr. Yip Mow
Lum, Chairman of the Group, established
the “Yip Mow Lum Charity Fund” in his
personal capacity and donated a total of
HK$20 million to the Hospital Authority
of Hong Kong (“HA”) for two consecutive
years to support the fight against the
pandemic and recognise the selfless
contribution of healthcare professionals
;j;giﬁﬂ%mﬁﬁ rEBFFE

EMAEENBAARBR IO EXMREZE
| BEMTFAEBE_TEAELERT
EAERERER(EER)  BEXESEMN
MEMAEBIERRE —REBEARDN
2 7L 2= B

The Group is committed to building
a brand of an excellent employer by
incorporating the “people-oriented” idea
into all of its human resources policies,
including talent recruitment, development
and management, corporate reward and
recognition. The Group won the “Best
Reward & Recognition Strategy Award
(Platinum)” in the “Best HR Awards”
granted by CTGoodjobs for its outstanding
achievements in human resources
management
AEERNBEBFNEETME  LIAA
RAINBERRAIANE RS EN SRR
KO BEATHE ZRERERE E®R
NSE A %ﬁﬁlﬂAﬁéﬁ by
HE B AIfE4E - B (CTgoodjobs) £ i} &) [Best
HR Awards|# - KB [RERE) R KR K
(A€)]

—FFR

ERHEEER
mraes )
© BEBRE

+10,000,000.00
o

Mr. Yip Mow Lum, the Chairman of the Group, donated
HK$10 million each in the name of the Yip Mow Lum
Charity Fund to HA in 2020 and 2021, respectively. Ms.
Yip Wing Yan, Jacquelyn, the Assistant to Chairman
(right) attended the cheque donation ceremony and Mr.
Henry Fan Hung-ling, the chairman of HA, received the
cheque for HA
AEBFTFERMEEUERNEBEES|RR RS
T_ZR B —FHRBRR-—TFEELTEER
FEHBESRBNMEIRREEREIRER  THE
EREFEEBRLERKREIE

AWARDS

Ms. Yip Wing Yan, Jacquelyn, the Assistant to Chairman,
head of the human resources department and head of
digital marketing department of the Group, attended
the ceremony and received the award on behalf of the
Group

REBEREYE ANBERAEREEMSHAEESTR
NAR RS B R BB AE N E R R A
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Major Accomplishments
RER

> The Group was awarded the
“Best IPO Service Award” by
the “Golden Central Awards”
organized by Zhitong Caijing
and Hithink RoyalFlush
Information Network
REEEESBYE)RCRTEIRE
YR [P IRTE]BE
[ B 12 37 A P 765 4% |

—

Mr. Hui Yik Bun, the executive director and Chief Executive Officer of
the Group, received the award on behalf of the Group

AEERTEERTRAHFENKREERRRR

February

2R

> QOrganised by the Group in collaboration
with the Chicago Mercantile Exchange
(“CME”), a webinar on “Hong Kong and
US Stocks Investment and How to Change
Luck in 2021” attracted over 10,000
audiences to watch the live broadcast. The
webinar analysed the future trends of the
local and global stock markets
REBEZ NFEmXHHAE H2021F
B ERMKREHESWEI@LEHEE R
—RIREE TR RIRBRAR FE % /) Al
EES  RelaBEHBERBEER

Prominent experts from a wide range of disciplines
spoke at the webinar, including Mr. Wong Kwok Ying,
Alex (third from left), the director of asset management of
Ample Finance Group, Mr. Jacky Luk (second from right),
Head of Property Section of Ming Pao Daily News, Mr.
Ka Hong, Pierce Tam (second from left), representative
of CME, Master Szeto Ken (third from right), an expert
in Chinese astrology, fortune-telling, rites and feng shui,
Mr. Hui Yik Bun (centre), the executive director and Chief
Executive Officer of the Group, Mr. Chik Yiu Fai, Stanley
(first from right), the head of the research department
and Mr. Chan Wai Ming, Senior Manager of Sales &
Customer Services Department (first from left)
EEXATEAER ERONSEEHEEEREEFEMN
EEE=Z) ARBEREFRERREEHD) 2
TRREBEBRE L E 75:) - N EER Z M R R fE R
B2

12 Bright Smart Securities & Commodities Group Limited | Annual Report 2020/21



Major Accomplishments

KRERL

March

3A

>

The Group won five awards in the “Equity
Derivatives Awards 2020” and “ETF
Awards 2020” granted by Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing Limited (“HKEX”),
including Active Exchange Participants
in Stock Futures, Active Exchange
Participants in Stock Options, Active
Exchange Participants in Weekly Index
Options, Active Traders in Options — After-
Hours Trading and Top Breakthrough
Exchange Participant — Leveraged and
Inverse Product Turnover : : -
f%ﬁ@%ﬁ%i%%_ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂa (3% lt\:l]; fY|\|/Z g/lv\(/);/\;dléufrrr;nt]h}chl)Er;(a|rman of the Group, received
DB RORATEEMANE2020/ N semgrpeshet et fER Y FERS
[(REFMEBRE S K200/ EER KK

B BR REERRENELLEAAR K

EREREHELSEBAR ZEIRGAEBPELLHARE UTERXIBRFEIENERS
AR XRBARGMBEE - ERARAERKRE

Being one of the first movers in the industry, the Group unprecedentedly upgraded the 24-hour
Electronic Direct Debit Authorisation (eDDA) Services recognised by the Hong Kong Monetary
Authority to allow customers to deposit funds and trade global stocks and futures within 24 hours
regardless of the time difference or Hong Kong holidays

FHBEEE SR EEBRUMN24/ NS T BN EH & MK EDDA) R - EFA] N
RFERBEARBORSE - 2RIR24NEEREMTR 24\ KRETEHERELRBHEES - A8
BERIZE - BEIZERENA

BARHETHMEEERAA | —T_F/ - FFH 13



Branch Network

1T A A

HONG KONG & &

Hong Kong Headquarters

ERRNER
Central Branch

FRA 1
Wanchai Branch

BEFHT

KOWLOON h &

Kowloon Headquarters

NEERMER

Mongkok Golden Hill Branch

EATILDT

Kwun Tong Branch

BENT

Sham Shui Po Branch

RKE B1T

10/F & 23/F (Sales & Customer Services Department),

Wing On House, 71 Des Voeux Road Central, Central
FREBETNIHRAKLEEANEI0E2ERBELE
(HERE PR )

Mezzanine Floor, Peter Building, 58-60 Queen’s Road Central
HIREFREFE8-60E IR A A EEE

Shop 1, G/F, Gold Swan Commercial Building,

438-444 Hennessy Road, Wan Chai

R R FF 4384445 R B /2 © 157 % K B T15% 48

Mezzanine Floor and First Floor, Honour House, 375-381 Nathan Road
NEEBHBEI5-3BIREDAERERIERE

1/F, Golden Hill Commercial Building, 39-41 Argyle Street, Mongkok
HEATEEZH0-NRSIUHERNEE

Shops 4-6, G/F, Yee On Centre, 45 Hong Ning Road, Kwun Tong
BREZESRELTT O T4E65H

G/F, 39 Yen Chow Street, Sham Shui Po

WK RN ET 395 B i T

NEW TERRITORIES #i 5

Tsuen Wan Branch

XEH1

Tai Po Branch
REDT

Sheung Shui Branch

ERA1T

Yuen Long Branch

T AT
Tuen Mun Branch

BT

G/F & Cockloft, Sze Yuen Mansion, 253 Sha Tsui Road, Tsuen Wan
L&D IR B3 BIREM T REE

G/F, 141-145 Kwong Fuk Road, Tai Po

RIBEEREI41-1455% T

Shop D, G/F & Cockloft, 80 Lung Sum Avenue, Sheung Shui

FKEEZREKBOT L D& K B E

Shop No. 5, G/F., Kan Yip Building, 225-237 Castle Peak Road, Yuen Long
TCRAE WA BT BA B 225-237 5 E) £ 12 i T 55 4

Shop 23, G/F, Honley Court, 94-110 Tuen Mun Heung Sze Wui Road,

Tuen Mun

TR EE R 04110 SREM P LT 23 57

BRIGHT SMART MOBILE TEACHING CENTRE BA# 2 EH&H

14

(852) 2537 1371

(852) 3961 6688

(852) 3127 0888

(852) 3604 1888

(852) 3188 0928

(852) 3768 0888

(852) 3666 5688

(852) 3929 2798

(852) 3763 3388

(852) 3768 7188

(852) 3926 2688

(852) 3193 1688

(852) 6282 6635
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Branch Network
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Awards
4218

The Hong Kong Council of Social Service — Caring Company

The Community Chest — Award of Excellence

The HKEX ETF Awards 2020 — Top Breakthrough Exchange Participant — L&l Product Turnover

The HKEX Equity Derivatives Awards 2020 — Top Active Exchange Participants in Stock Options

The HKEX Equity Derivatives Awards 2020 — Top Active Exchange Participants in Stock Futures

The HKEX Equity Derivatives Awards 2020 — Top Active Exchange Participants in Weekly Index Options

The HKEX Equity Derivatives Awards 2020 — Top Active Traders in Options — After-Hours Trading

Hong Kong Brand Development Council — Hong Kong Top Service Brand

Zhitong Caijing/Hithink RoyalFlush Information Network — Best IPO service Award of the Golden Central Awards
10. Sky Post — Outstanding securities and futures trading app of the Banking & Finance Awards 2020

11. Economic Digest — Extraordinary Enterprise Award 2020

12. Economic Digest — Hong Kong Outstanding Enterprise Award 2020

13. TVB Weekly — Most Popular Brokerage Brand Award

14. CTgoodjobs — Best Reward & Recognition Strategy Award (Platinum) of the Best HR Awards 2020

15. Hong Kong Economic Journal — Listed Company Award of Excellence 2020

16. CAPITAL — Outstanding stock and futures trading app of the 20th Capital Outstanding Enterprise Awards

17. iFeng Finance — Best Integrated Service in 2020 Fenggi Wutong Hong Kong Stocks Financial Summit — Jinwu Award

COENDOTA N~

Bright Smart Securities International (H.K.)
RABEBREB)ERAT

Limited

caringcompany

i A N B
} THE COMMUNITY CHEST

\ N AR

AWARD OF EXCELLENCE 2019/2020

Mission

neTALAN

corln

compPony

Coring for the Employees
RAAT

%
HKCSS

|| |
I uz
Presented to

Bright Smart Securities and Commodities |
Group Limited

RAESSREOERAT

2 oW E
AR oBAY
ir gf;lu Lee GBM, JP President

=r
EHEE
142020

& B e 3

%‘I 1A l@
EINRTSE P e

1B EFENERBBRAF
Bright Smart Secu
Commodities Group L
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Awards
4218

EENEREHE-_AAEBE

BEERRS—[AmE B
EERGHIRGMEERES AHE2020] - RBBARZHLEE-ERRRMEMMNKRE
EBRFGETIRALT A E B A #82020) — RFBBZ KL E A
EREZGHTRARITEE MAE2020] —REBREZHERKLH AL
BEBRGITRALTE E B AR2020] - HERTEABSMEELAANE
BEERGIBRATEERAR2020] - TR RFHRRZRHARIFEAE
EHMBERER-TOPRE AR

BB CREIEMEN & FIRTE] - [REFTBRRBE]

10. (# |} )[Banking & Finance Awards 2020 — [ HFE S5 M ER 5 FHEZ X | K&
1. (& E—B)— 1 % K 18E€2020
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Financial Highlights

MBRE

Revenue
Other income

Profit from operations
Profit before taxation

Profit for the year

Total comprehensive income attributable to
equity shareholders

Basic earnings per share (HK cents)
Diluted earnings per share (HK cents)

Special dividend per share on
1,697,296,308 shares (HK cents)

Final dividend per share (HK cents)
(31 March 2021: 1,697,296,308 shares,
31 March 2020: 1,697,296,308 shares)
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Year ended 31 March
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(53.6)
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Chairman’s Statement
FFEHRE

2020 was a tough year for Hong Kong as internal and external
threats made an already bad situation even worse.

In 2019, Hong Kong experienced the ups and downs of
continuous social turmoil, which made people disunited and
divided and gave a heavy blow to Hong Kong’s economy and
many industries. In 2020, the world was unexpectedly hit by
COVID-19 pandemic, a black swan event that caused an abrupt
halt to livelihood activities and economic activities across
the globe. Accordingly, Hong Kong’s GDP shrank by 6.1% in
2020, the biggest annual decline on record, much more than
the 1.2% drop in 2019. Many local industries in Hong Kong,
especially, tourism, retail, hotel and catering industries, were in
a slump, resulting in an unemployment rate as high as 7%, the
greatest level in 17 years. Fortunately, the global securities and
financial industries were immune from the pandemic and even
saw growth. The “stay-at-home economy” and the resulting
trend of online shopping directed people to invest “time and
idle money” in the securities market, contributing to the growth
of the Group’s performance. With a steadily rising net profit,
the Group set an encouraging record high for the same period
since its listing in 2010. | am very pleased with what we have
achieved. For this, | would like to express my sincere gratitude
to our customers for their trust and support over the years and
all the employees for their united efforts and hard work that
led to outstanding results. My appreciation also goes to the
shareholders who have stayed with Bright Smart through good
and bad times and witnessed its growth and prosperity.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

Although the global financial industry is one of the very few
industries that still thrive amid the pandemic, external threats are
out there, especially the fluctuations in Sino-U.S. relations that
worry the market the most. Even after Joe Biden has taken over
the U.S. Presidency, the Sino-U.S. tensions still show no signs of
easing. There is a sustained number of sanctions and disputes,
which may lead to a flight of talent, capital and companies
from Hong Kong. With full knowledge of Hong Kong’s current
economic woes, | suggested earlier that the government should
lower the current rate of profits tax and salaries tax to 10% to
12% respectively, so as to bring more professionals, foreign-
funded companies and capital back to Hong Kong and, in the
long run, create more job opportunities and increase revenue for
the government’s coffers. | hope that the government will take
this suggestion seriously since the lower tax rate is the best way
to fix Hong Kong’s economic problems.

[t can be said that “the pandemic brings both challenges and
opportunities”. The global economic recovery still depends
on when the COVID-19 will be truly brought under control.
Although vaccine doses have been administered worldwide,
the vaccination progress is slow and the results have not been
widely recognised. Moreover, India has detected a new virus
variant, causing a sharp rebound in the number of confirmed
cases and another spread of infections. Currently, only mainland
China has seemingly made significant achievements in the
strict control of the epidemic. The first quarter of this year
saw the Chinese economy grow by record 18.3% year-on-
year, and an economic growth target has been set to more
than 6% this year. In response to the epidemic, China seeks
economic development by introducing a new development
pattern that features “internal circulation” to drive domestic
economic growth and “external circulation” to attract foreign
investment. Hong Kong can undoubtedly play a key role in the
implementation of this dual-circulation strategy. Firstly, it can
provide policy advice on trade, operation, money circulation,
human resources, information, and legal systems based on its
development experience as a century-old free port. Meanwhile,
as one of the world’s three major financial centres, Hong Kong
can strengthen cooperation with mainland China in areas such
as innovative finance, finance related to livelihood, and green
finance. This will accelerate the development of IPO markets,
wealth management, and offshore RMB market and help further
enhance Hong Kong’s status as a centre of international finance.
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Chairman’s Statement
FFEHRE

In recent years, the mainland has been actively reforming and
widening the opening-up of its capital market as a gradual
move towards internationalisation. It is gradually lifting the
restrictions on foreign ownership of mainland-based financial
institutions, such as futures and securities firms and mutual
funds, allowing non-local institutions to wholly own the
shares of mainland-based securities firms. Especially for the
nearby Greater Bay Area (“GBA”) comprising nine cities and
two districts with a population of over 70 million, from which
everyone desires a share. If the Wealth Management Connect
scheme is implemented in the GBA, it will undoubtedly benefit
related financial institutions. In addition, the continuous return of
Chinese concept stocks will lead to a flood of mainland Chinese
money into Hong Kong, providing a promising prospect for Hong
Kong stocks. The Group has seized this good opportunity and
kept delivering excellent results, making it stand out from its
peers.

As the Group’s performance improved with the booming Hong
Kong stock market, net profit for the year ended 31 March
2021 (the “Year”) increased by 49.5% year-on-year to HK$703.9
million, a record high for the same period. | am pleased to
present the results of Bright Smart Securities & Commodities
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively,
the “Group”) for the Year to the shareholders. The Group
recorded a total revenue for the Year of HK$1,285.2 million
(2020: HK$864.0 million), representing an increase of 48.7% as
compared to that for the year ended 31 March 2020 (the “Prior
Year”). In particular, brokerage commission income increased
by 53.8% vyear-on-year to HK$793.8 million (2020: HK$516.2
million).

Profit for the Year increased by 49.5% to HK$703.9 million
(2020: HK$471.0 million) as compared with the Prior Year.
Basic earnings per share were 41.47 HK cents (2020: 27.75
HK cents), representing a year-on-year increase of 49.4%. The
board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of the Company
recommended the payment of a final dividend of 13.00 HK cents
per share (2020: 28.00 HK cents per share) for the Year. As at
31 March 2021, the total number of the Group’s client accounts
reached 482,413, representing an increase of 42.8% over that of
337,804 as at 31 March 2020. Client assets (including cash and
stocks) was HK$74.2 billion (31 March 2020: HK$41.9 billion),
representing an increase of 77.1% as compared with the Prior
Year.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

The outstanding performance of the Group was attributable to
the following comparative advantages:

1.  The Group has always had a keen sense of crisis alert
and forward thinking. As early as 2015, it set up a backup
office in the prime location of Kowloon with a total area of
over 20,000 square feet. With its equipment and facilities
equivalent to the head office in Central, this backup office
played an important role during the pandemic outbreak last
year. It assured clients that the Group could still operate as
usual without interruption and they could continue to trade
securities without worries even during the unruly outbreak.
This move is unprecedented and unique in Hong Kong’s
securities industry. In contrast, most of the peers can only
provide limited services or even go out of business when
facing unexpected incidents.

2. Two proprietary trading apps, BS Securities (Baobao) and
BS Futures (Doudou), have been well received by investors
since their eye-catching launch last year. The following
statistics show that the Group’s unfailing effort paid off:

The total number of client accounts increased by
more than 140,000, representing an increase of
approximately 164.7% over the number of accounts
opened in the Prior Year. As of 31 March 2021, the
total number of client accounts exceeded 480,000;

ii. The number of downloads of Baobao and Doudou
apps rose by approximately 73.8% as compared with
the Prior Year;

iii. ~ The number of accounts opened through Baobao and
Doudou apps increased by approximately 151.2% as
compared with the Prior Year; and

iv.. ' The number of orders on Baobao app was
approximately 11.58 million, representing an increase
of approximately 323.3% as compared with the Prior
Year.
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Chairman’s Statement
FFEHRE

3.  Staying abreast of market trend, the Group has adopted
some market-oriented strategies and put forth some offers
such as:

Margin lending ratio up to 95% at interest rates as
low as 1.5%

Rewards of 20 shares of Tracker Fund (2800) and 10
shares of HSBC (005) for opening new accounts

1-month genuine zero commission for trading of
Hong Kong stocks, A-shares and U.S. futures by new
clients

iv.  Commission of only US$0.008 per share for trading of
US stocks
V. Waiver of platform charge, etc.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

The Group adheres to its proactive operating model by adopting
a cautious and prudent strategy involving both offensive and
defensive tactics in all market conditions. Apart from optimising
and perfecting its online trading platforms and regularly
improving functions and the transaction execution speed of
Baobao and Doudou apps, the Group also perpetuated the
expansion of its offline network by operating a total of 14
business locations including headquarters and branches. It
has also launched a “Bright Smart Mobile Teaching Centre”
that travels around major areas in Hong Kong Island, Kowloon
and New Territories. This mobile teaching centre is the first of
its kind in Hong Kong and provides services within reach of all
clients. Over 90% of the Group’s branches now open seven
days a week with an aim of providing clients with the best
comprehensive services. However, the Group will not stay put
in respect of branch network development. To further refine this
branch network and improve its customised service coverage,
the Group will consider any site with low rent, prime location and
high pedestrian flow.
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Chairman’s Statement
FFEHRE

In addition, the Group stays abreast of the latest development
and offers diversified products to provide clients with
comprehensive and professional brokerage services. Its wide
range of businesses covers the whole financial market in Hong
Kong and includes Hong Kong stocks, US stocks, Shanghai-
Hong Kong Stock Connect A shares, Shenzhen-Hong Kong
Stock Connect A shares, China B shares, Japanese stocks,
Taiwanese stocks, Singaporean stocks, UK stocks, Australian
stocks, Hong Kong futures, HSI options, Hong Kong stock
options, index futures, interest rate futures, foreign exchange
futures, bullion and energy futures, cash crop and staple food
futures, bond futures, leveraged foreign exchange products,
initial public offering (IPO) shares subscription, and margin
financing. With such a comprehensive portfolio, the clients can
trade a whole array of financial products around the world with
just one account.

The Group also keeps itself up-to-date and strives for constant
innovation to satisfy investment needs of clients. In order to
bring investors closer to the global market, the Group developed
and launched “24-hour Electronic Direct Debit Authorisation
(eDDA) Services” approved by the Hong Kong Monetary
Authority (“HKMA”) with many famous banks in Hong Kong
in 2021. This service allows clients to deposit money and
trade anytime, anywhere regardless of time differences and
Hong Kong holidays after going through a simple registration
procedure through Baobao and Doudou apps.

The Group has been highly recognised by the society for its
good services and won numerous awards over the years.
The Group received five awards including the Top Active
Exchange Participant in Stock Futures and Top Active Exchange
Participant in Stock Options, making the Group the biggest
winner among its peers in the HKEX Awards 2020. It won the
award for outstanding securities and futures trading app by Sky
Post; the Outstanding Securities Trading Mobile APP award
by the Chamber of Hong Kong Computer Industry and Metro
Broadcast for two consecutive years; the Listed Company
Award of Excellence from Hong Kong Economic Journal; the title
as one of “The Highest Growth Potential Enterprises” awarded
by China Securities Golden Bauhinia Awards Committee, making
it the only Hong Kong securities firm to receive this award; the
Excellent Hong Kong Stock Dealer Award from Tencent, a media
outlet from mainland China; and Best Reward & Recognition
Strategy Award (Platinum) in Best HR Awards from CTgoodjobs.
This long list of awards received is a testimony to the Group’s
significant position and leading competitiveness in the industry.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

As network and mobile communication technologies become
increasingly popular, Internet finance grows rapidly and
inevitably gives rise to online transaction security issues.
Investors are increasingly aware of risks and attach great
importance to online transaction security. The Group
understands that online transaction security is the primary
concern of the investors, and has therefore always been
committed to maintaining a stable and safe transaction
environment. To increase the security level of online transactions
for the protection of clients’ assets, clients are required to enter
the “second password” when logging into the Group’s trading
system. After completing the transaction, they will receive a text
message from the Group. Regarding the provision of the safest
and most reliable trading platform and therefore gain the trust
of its clients, the Group continues to test the security system
regularly and invest in the perfection of the security level of
online transactions while strengthening the capacity and speed
of its trading system.

As for investor education, the Group has been working on
this and often organises seminars with renowned exchanges
and major financial institutions across the globe to introduce
new investment products and the latest market dynamics
to investors. The Group partnered with, among others, the
HKEX and the Chicago Mercantile Exchange (CME) to hold
large seminars to analyse the latest trends in the market and
investment techniques. These seminars received overwhelming
responses and were all fully booked. The Group also carried
on its famed large-scale multi-sector seminars covering stocks,
residential properties and shops hosted by heavyweight
speakers. At the same time, the Group’s BSTV was the first in
the industry to hold investment programmes with global live
streaming online. Prominent guests and issuers of derivatives
products and exchange traded funds (ETFs), were invited to
share their analyses of market trends, investment strategies
and insightful professional advice in relation to a wide variety
of financial products, and to answer clients’ questions about
their investments. To cater to the market needs for information
about all kinds of financial products and to provide investors
with comprehensive and in-depth financial information, BSTV will
diversify its programmes to strategies for investments in index
futures, stock options, warrants and ETF products according to
market trends.
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The Group upholds the principle of “giving back to where one
takes from” and has always been actively undertaking social
responsibility while expanding its business. The Group actively
participated in various charitable events. As a sponsor for “Joyful
Charity Run”, the Group was awarded the “Caring Company
Award” by The Hong Kong Council of Social Service (HKCSS)
and “Outstanding Social Caring Organisation Award” by Social
Enterprise Research Academy. In 2019, the Group donated over
HK$1 million to the Community Chest of Hong Kong and was
awarded the Award of Excellence. In the same year, the Group
donated HK$6 million to Caritas Hong Kong. | also actively fulfill
my social corporate responsibilities. In 2020 when Hong Kong
was ravaged by COVID-19, | provided some support for frontline
medical workers. | helped the frontline medical workers in their
fight against the virus by donating a total of HK$20 million in
the name of the Yip Mow Lum Charity Fund to the Hospital
Authority of Hong Kong for two consecutive years. Over the
years, the Group and | have donated over HK$10 million to Hong
Kong Baptist University and supports the “Asian Junior Squash
Championships” sponsored by the Hong Kong Squash to help
develop the future pillars of society. The Group spares no efforts
and resources to make contributions to the society and foster
reciprocation.
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OUTLOOK

Looking forward to the second half of this year and 2022, the
pandemic, politics and policies will continuously affect economic
and market trends. The COVID-19 will continue to be the key
factor affecting the world economy. Due to a limited availability
of vaccination doses and unexpected viral mutations, the world
still sees repeated outbreaks of the pandemic. Especially in
India, the pandemic has almost spiralled out of control. This
may have an impact on the global production chain and hinder
economic recovery. Even Japan where hygiene standards are
higher has entered a “fourth wave” of the pandemic as the
number of confirmed cases is rising sharply. It is therefore
unknown whether the Tokyo Olympics can be held as scheduled
at the end of July. All the signs indicate that the pandemic is still
seriously restricting the activities of various countries or regions.
The future is full of uncertainties.

Political disputes between China and the United States are a
“grey rhino” that may take place at any time. The United States
and other countries or regions continue to exert pressure
on mainland China and Hong Kong through financial, trade,
policy, and technological wars, leading to the outflow of
talent, companies, and capital and reducing competitiveness.
Moreover, the Hong Kong government will increase its stamp
duty on Hong Kong stocks by 30% since 1 August 2021. The
stamp duty on stock trading payable by the seller and buyer will
rise to 0.13% of the value of their transaction from the current
0.1%, which is higher than the stamp duty of mainland China,
Singapore and the United States. This may lead to the diversion
of funds to adjacent markets and somewhat have an impact on
Hong Kong stocks.
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Hong Kong stocks have mainly benefited from the return of
Chinese concept stocks, which drove the value of the Hong
Kong stock market even higher during the Year. According to
data from HKEX, Hong Kong topped the global rankings for
IPO volumes for 7 years in the past 12 years. In 2020, it still
tops the world with a total of 154 new IPO listings on HKEX,
raising a total of HK$397.5 billion, which is a remarkably record-
high amount since 2010. As an increasing number of Chinese
concept stocks return to Hong Kong for listing, the amount
of IPO funds raised is expected to increase in 2021. PwC
predicts that Hong Kong will break records in terms of total
IPO funds raised in 2021, coming in between HK$420 billion
and HK$460 billion. The continuous expansion of the scope of
connection between the Chinese and Hong Kong stock markets
(southbound Bond Connect expected to be launched in July
this year, Primary Equity Connect, and more diversified ETF
products for cross-border trading between Hong Kong and
mainland China) will also lead to active trading of Hong Kong
stocks. The average daily turnover for the first quarter of 2021
was approximately HK$224.4 billion, representing a significant
increase of 85.6% compared to the same period of the last year.
This shows how the return of Chinese concept stocks plays a
big part in the surge of foreign capital into the Hong Kong stock
market. This is expected to be an irreversible trend and will
further benefit the development of the securities and financial
industries.

With 26 years of operating history in Hong Kong, the Group has
been listed on the Main Board of HKEX for more than ten years.
With a sound financial foundation and competitive edge, the
Group will carry on its proactive business model in order to take
on new challenges. To further strengthen its competitiveness
and increase its market share, the Group will maintain its
prudent, flexible and innovative operating approach in seeking
breakthrough on its existing businesses while actively exploring
new markets and new financial products.

In addition to the unceasing support and trust of all its clients,
Bright Smart Securities’ continuous success is also attributable
to the concerted and determined effort of the entire staff
to provide quality and sincere services with good value for
money to the clients. | would like to thank the directors, the
management team and all staff members for their efforts and
contributions in achieving the remarkable performance during
the Year. The Group is proud to share its success with the staff
by offering large bonuses to them. In particular, staff members
with the best performances during the Year received generous
bonuses that beat their peers. The Group wished to leverage on
such rewards to motivate the whole staff to join hands and take
the Group to new heights in the future.
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At the beginning of the Year, | laid down clear target earnings
for the Group and guided the team towards the goal. Thanks
to the close collaboration and endeavour of all staff, the Group
has achieved its outstanding objectives. Looking forward to the
next year, it has already formulated comprehensive business
development strategies and set a clear target. It is hoped that
the entire staff will develop their potential, excel themselves and
go beyond their limits again and again so as to strive for further
success. Being guided by the principles of integrity, sincerity,
equity and conscience, | will also lead Bright Smart Securities
to work its way through obstacles, continue to fulfil its duties
and do its best to provide clients with the best services in
recognition of their continual trust and support while striving for
optimal returns for the investors.

Yip Mow Lum
Chairman

Hong Kong
28 June 2021
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MARKET REVIEW

Hong Kong was facing an unprecedented challenge in the
year as the COVID-19 pandemic continued to ravage the world
and remained uncontrolled, and variants of the virus have
even spread in multiple countries. With exceeding 180 million
confirmed cases and approximately 4 million deaths in the
world, the pandemic presented severe challenges and caused
irreparable harm to the global economy and people’s livelihood.
Fortunately, governments and the medical community around
the world worked against time to develop vaccines in just one
year, in the hope of significantly reducing the risk of infection.
Vaccine rollouts spur market expectation for economic recovery.
It's believed that it won’t be long before the pandemic is brought
under control and the economy is expected to restore, with
more and more people getting vaccinated.

The financial market maintained a steady pace of development
amid the pandemic. According to the statistics of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”
or “SEHK”), the average daily turnover for the year was
approximately HK$155.06 billion, a significant increase of
approximately 68.1% from approximately HK$92.24 billion for
the previous year. The Hang Seng Index (“HSI”) climbed up
in the year. Since the outbreak, the market has seen a sharp
correction, falling to this year’s intraday low of 22,519 points (25
May 2020). With the official launch of vaccines, countries around
the world focus on vaccinating their citizens, which has boosted
market sentiment and has driven Hong Kong stocks to bottom
out. Hong Kong stocks even jumped 8,664 points to an intraday
high of 31,183 points (18 February 2021). The Hong Kong stock
market gained momentum in the first quarter of 2021. The
market saw active trading especially with capital flows from
mainland China. The turnover in five trading days even exceeded
HK$300 billion, and the average daily turnover hit a quarterly
high of HK$224.4 billion, a year-on-year rise of 85.6% or a
quarter-on-quarter increase of 59.1%. The southbound average
daily turnover reached approximately HK$60.8 billion, up 1.81
times year-on-year or 1.16 times quarter-on-quarter.
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In addition, the Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited (the
“HKEX”) launched new chapters to its Listing Rules, including
permitting listings of companies with different voting structures,
secondary listings and listings of biotech companies. It is
conducive to the development of Hong Kong'’s financial and
capital markets, making Hong Kong a leading financing hub in
the world. From 2020 to the first quarter of 2021, 8, 12 and 17
companies went public in the above three forms respectively.
There are favourable factors including HKEX’s new listing regime
and ample market liquidity due to loose monetary policies.
Moreover, because of the tense relationship between the US
and China in recent years, the business activities of Chinese
enterprises have been limited, and they are even under pressure
from possible suppression or sanctions. So, more China
concept stocks return to Hong Kong for listing in an accelerated
pace, creating a new boom in the IPO market. A total of 178 new
listings (including the Main Board and GEM) were recorded in
Hong Kong’s IPO market from 2020 to the first quarter of 2021,
according to the reported data of the SEHK. The IPOs were
expected to raise as much as HK$533.7 billion, many of which
are large IPOs. The top 10 IPOs raised approximately HK$244.6
billion, accounting for approximately 46% of the total.

Despite a stellar stock market in Hong Kong, the economic
fundamentals remained weak, showing a sharp contrast. Due
to a slowdown in internal and external demand, coupled with
government measures such as lockdown and strict social
distancing, various business activities were forced to be put
on hold, leading to a tougher business environment in Hong
Kong. The gross domestic product (GDP) of Hong Kong
recorded a negative growth in the first two quarters of 2020.
Even though the economy showed signs of improvement in
the second half of the year, the local GDP in 2020 shrank 6.1%
in real terms from 2019. In addition, the unemployment rate
in Hong Kong increased sharply, with the seasonally adjusted
unemployment rate reaching 6.8% in the first quarter of 2021, up
2.6 percentage points from 4.2% recorded in the same period of
last year. Various data show that Hong Kong’s economy was still
facing a recession in the past year.
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Across the globe, stock markets decoupled from the real
economy in some countries. In major financial markets in the
US, China, the UK, Germany, France and other countries and
regions, stock market indices rose steadily, showing a sharp
divergence from their economy. According to the International
Monetary Fund (“IMF”), the world real GDP in 2020 fell 3.3%
from a year earlier, with US GDP and Eurozone GDP down 3.5%
and 6.6% respectively. Only 27 countries and regions, including
China, Taiwan, Ireland and Vietnam, recorded an increase in real
GDP. Among them, China, with its strict measures, brought the
pandemic under control in a short time, accelerated the pace of
economic recovery, and recorded real GDP growth of 2.3%.

As the economic challenge posed by COVID-19 cannot be
underestimated, many governments and central banks have
successively launched trillion-dollar bailout packages, aiming
to boost the economy and increase liquidity through a range
of monetary and fiscal policies, including interest rate cuts,
tax cuts, subsidies, and refinancing. The US Federal Reserve
not only lowered interest rates to a level close to zero, but also
launched unlimited quantitative easing policies to support the
normal operation of the financial market. It also suggests that
monetary policy will remain loose in the coming years. It will
consider raising interest rates after inflation reaches 2% and the
labour market fully recovers. However, the two conditions are
unlikely to be met before the end of 2022. In view of the Fed’s
moves, interest rates around the world are estimated to stay low
in the next two years and that an increase in the money supply
could lead to a flood of money and inflation.

Stock markets went up as governments and central banks
pumped money into asset markets. Risk aversion heated up
amid geopolitical instability caused by elements, including US
President Joe Biden’s policy towards China, how to restore
America’s relations with its allies, the border clash between India
and China, deteriorated relations between China and Australia,
the Ukraine-Russian conflict and US-Iran conflict, which pushed
up the prices of precious metals and cryptocurrencies. Gold
prices have topped US$2,000 per ounce in the year. Bitcoin
rose even more dramatically, jumping nearly tenfold to more than
US$60,000 in the first quarter of 2021,
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The pandemic has posed serious challenges to the world,
and the real economy, covering retail and catering, hospitality
and tourism, transportation, culture and entertainment, and
manufacturing, has been dealt a fatal blow. However, crisis
and opportunity coexist. The pandemic has brought about
a huge change in the consumption pattern of the public.
Online consumption, transaction and payment have become
a new trend, pushing all industries to accelerate the online
transformation. The new economy sector has risen. Data from
Statista showed that global retail e-commerce sales grew 27.6%
year-on-year to US$4.28 trillion in 2020. In China, online retail
sales amounted to RMB11.8 trillion in 2020, and the figure rose
29.9% from the previous year to RMB2.8 trillion in the first
quarter of 2021. In the Global Payments Report 2021, Worldpay
from FIS forecasts that Hong Kong’s e-commerce market is
projected to grow rapidly over the next four years to US$29
billion from US$21 billion. In the meantime, the use of electronic
payment in Hong Kong is also on the rise. According to data
from HKMA, the Faster Payment System (“FPS”) processed
a total of 138 million transactions denominated in Hong Kong
dollar in 2020, a surge of 2.16 times.

OPERATIONAL RESULTS

For the Year, the Group recorded revenue of HK$1,285.2 million
(2020: HK$864.0 million), representing an increase of 48.7%
as compared to that for the Prior Year. Profit for the Year was
HK$703.9 million (2020: HK$471.0 million), representing an
increase of 49.5% as compared to that for the Prior Year. Total
comprehensive income attributable to equity shareholders
amounted to HK$703.6 million (2020: HK$471.2 million),
representing an increase of 49.3% as compared to that for the
Prior Year. Basic and diluted earnings per share were 41.47
HK cents (2020: 27.75 HK cents). The board of directors (the
“Board”) of the Company recommended the payment of a final
dividend of 13.0 HK cents per share (2020: 28.0 HK cents per
share) for the Year.
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According to the statistics of HKEX, the average daily turnover
for the Year was approximately HK$155.06 billion, a significant
increase of approximately 68.1% from approximately HK$92.24
billion for the Prior Year. Market turnover rose sharply, pushing
up the Group’s revenue. In view of changes in the market
conditions, the Group adjusted its marketing and operating
strategies in a timely and appropriate manner. Besides, the
Group invested heavily in the research and development of
one-stop mobile trading apps, BS Securities (Baobao) and
BS Futures (Doudou), as it anticipated the rapid increase in
investor demand for financial technology. With continuous
improvement of their performance and remarkable results, the
apps successfully drew hundred of thousands of downloads by
mainland and Hong Kong investors. They raised the proportion
of mainland clients in the Group’s clientele, marking a significant
step in its expansion in the mainland market. The Group will
continue to improve its trading platforms and services while
upgrading its network security devices in order to strengthen the
protection of its clients’ interests, be well-prepared for market
fluctuations, overcome challenges and seize opportunities.
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TOTAL NUMBER OF CLIENT ACCOUNTS
AND ASSETS

Although the COVID-19 pandemic has brought a huge impact on
the real economy, under the loose monetary policies of global
governments and central banks, the market liquidity is abundant
and capital flows into the asset markets, which drives the
stock markets to maintain steady growth. The Group that has
made constant progress over the years, regardless of market
conditions, has invested a lot of resources to provide clients
with more comprehensive, better quality and more professional
services. As at the end of March 2021, the Group, together with
the Central Head Office, all branches and “Bright Smart Mobile
Teaching Centre”, had a total of 14 outlets covering the core
areas of Hong Kong, with most of them operating seven days
a week, breaking the industry tradition. The mobile teaching
centre improved client service quality and offered convenience
to all clients. The Group’s proactive expansion successfully led
to a steady growth in the total number of client accounts. During
the Year, the number of new accounts (after deducting the
number of client accounts closed) reached 144,609, increasing
the total number of client accounts to 482,413, a growth of
42.8% as compared to 337,804 as at 31 March 2020. As at 31
March 2021, client assets (including cash, stocks and margin
deposits) increased by 77.1% to approximately HK$74.2 billion
(81 March 2020: approximately HK$41.9 billion).
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REVENUE

During the Year, the Group recorded revenue of HK$1,285.2
million (2020: HK$864.0 million), representing an increase of
48.7% as compared to that for the Prior Year. A summary of the
Group’s revenue by business divisions is set out below.
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2021 2020
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Proportion Proportion
of total of total  Increment/
revenue revenue (decrement)
LE -1 ON HHEBA i,/
Z LAl Z LBl CR )
HK$‘000 % HK$‘000 % %
THERT FTHT
Revenue from: RARTEE WA
— Securities brokerage - BEER 517,581 40.3% 258,292 29.9% 100.4%
— Hong Kong futures and  — &8 HERBREL
options brokerage 120,400 9.4% 128,358 14.9% (6.2%)
— Global futures brokerage — BRIRHIE &4 92,753 7.2% 101,424 11.7% (8.5%)
— Bullion trading -ESBRS 15,177 1.2% 10,423 1.2% 45.6%
— Leveraged foreign — ERAINERS
exchange trading 3,305 0.2% 1,385 0.2% 138.6%
— Stock option brokerage - EHESL 16,167 1.3% 12,445 1.4% 29.9%
— IPO brokerage - BRAPHABELR 46,919 3.6% 15,730 1.8% 198.3%
Interest income from IPO %/X”D\Eﬂ%’}“%mﬂﬁﬂ B
financing 'ON 201,661 15.7% 33,474 3.9% 502.4%
Interest income from margin /& g & F| 8 W A
financing 271,238 21.1% 302,486 35.0% (10.3%)
1,285,201 100.0% 864,017 100.0% 48.7%
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I. Securities brokerage

The total turnover of securities on HKEX for the Year was
HK$38,300.4 billion, a year-on-year increase of 67.4%
(2020: HK$22,875.3 billion). The surge in turnover of Hong
Kong stocks boosted the performance of the Group’s
securities brokerage business. Commission income from

I. BHEEL

BRETIAFE 2 485K R & 58 8%15383,004
EB T R EABT4A% (DT T F:
228,753B L) c BB R SBEBRA - &
PAEEBSECLEBNRRAZE - K
EEBHFELBESWALSS176BEB T

the Group’s securities brokerage business amounted to ZE-TF 2583B8B L) HHREE

HK$517.6 million (2020: HK$258.3 million) and accounted
for 40.3% (2020: 29.9%) of the total revenue, a rise of
100.4% as compared with the Prior Year.

Commission Income from Securities

Brokerage of the Group

AEERFLLASHA
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aBEET
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Hong Kong Stock Market
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II. Hong Kong futures and options brokerage

Due to the growing market volatility, investors tend to
“avoid risks”, resulting in a reduction in the transaction
volume of derivative products the number of derivative
contracts traded on the Hong Kong Futures Exchange
Limited (the “HKFE”) for the Year decreased by 13.7% to
139.6 million (2020: 161.7 million), commission income from
the Group’s Hong Kong futures and options brokerage
business went down by 6.2% to HK$120.4 million for
the Year as compared to that for the Prior Year (2020:
HK$128.4 million), accounting for 9.4% (2020: 14.9%) of the
total revenue.

Commission Income from Hong Kong
Futures and Options Brokerage of the Group
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HK$Million (Million)
BEEL ARBE

(B&)

140 200

1284 =6.2%

120.4
120
150
100
80
100
60
40
50
20
0 — — O
2020 2021
—E-TE B

Year ended 31 March
HE=RA=+—HILFE

BABLZEREBERAR | —T-F/ ——FFR

II.

ERBERVELER

AR MEEEME - & & & E (8 =R
R STEERNRZERL - FFH
ERXRGERAR(HRANZITEERS
FAHA R KRB AIB96EBR( T T
F: 161 7A BR) F $B18.7% M IR - &K
EEAFERSESHERPEELES
W AE12048 BB L (ZE2ZF 11284
BEAEL) REFETEKE.2%  hae
A% (Z BT F 1 14.9%) °

Transaction Volume of Derivative

Contracts at the HKFE
FTEEGHNRBRFIZREE

617 _13.7%

139.6
——— —
2020 2021
—E-THF —E-—F

Year ended 31 March
HE=A=1T—HIFE

39



Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEWED M

III. Global futures brokerage

IV.

VI.

40

With the repeated outbreak of COVID-19, the global market
situation has become even more unstable, leading to
higher investment risks and a tendency to be cautious
among investors. Commission income from global futures
brokerage for the Year decreased by 8.5% to HK$92.8
million as compared to that for the Prior Year (2020:
HK$101.4 million), accounting for 7.2% (2020: 11.7%) of the
total revenue.

Bullion trading

Geopolitical instability this year led to an increased risk
aversion in the market and drove the gold price higher
and higher. Income from the Group’s bullion trading
business for the Year rose by 45.6% to HK$15.2 million as
compared to that for the Prior Year (2020: HK$10.4 million),
accounting for 1.2% (2020: 1.2%) of the total revenue.

Leveraged foreign exchange trading

Income from the Group’s leveraged foreign exchange
trading business for the Year increased by 138.6% to
HK$3.3 million as compared to that for the Prior Year
(2020: HK$1.4 million), accounting for 0.2% (2020: 0.2%) of
the total revenue.

Stock options brokerage

Commission income from the Group’s stock options
brokerage business for the Year went up by 29.9% to
HK$16.2 million as compared to that for the Prior Year
(2020: HK$12.4 million), accounting for 1.3% (2020: 1.4%)
of the total revenue. As stock options are highly leveraged
investment products, the Group carefully monitors
the margin level of stock option accounts and makes
adjustments according to market conditions in order to
properly control risks.

III. RRPELEL

IV.

VI.
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VII. IPO brokerage and IPO financing

With the reform of the mechanism of HKEX and the
thawing of Sino-US relations, more Chinese concept
stocks are listed in Hong Kong, driving a surge in IPOs.
Commission income from the Group’s IPO brokerage
business for the Year increased substantially by 198.3%
to HK$46.9 million as compared to that for the Prior Year
(2020: HK$15.7 million). Interest income from IPO financing
surged by 502.4% correspondingly to HK$201.7 million
(2020: HK$33.5 million).

VIII.Margin financing

During the Year, the Group’s average daily margin lending
increased by 34.0% to HK$7.84 billion (2020: HK$5.85
billion). Due to the decline in HIBOR, the Group’s interest
income from margin financing for the Year amounted to
HK$271.2 million (2020: HK$302.5 million), representing a
year-on-year decline of 10.3%, and accounting for 21.1%
(2020: 35.0%) of the total revenue. The Group implements
effective credit control procedures and recorded no bad
debts in the past few years.

INVESTMENT RETURNS

In order to enhance its financial performance, the Group
held Hong Kong-listed securities and futures contracts as
investments during the Year. As at 31 March 2021, the carrying
value of equity investments and futures investments stood at
HK$70.6 million (2020: HK$48.5 million). During the Year, the
investment returns from financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss was HK$10.1 million (2020: loss of HK$2.1 million).
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OPERATING EXPENSES AND NET PROFIT KREFFpITRAR =X
MARGIN

Operating expenses of the Group for the Year increased by ARNEEAREEZFLHLE FEE FF34.3%
34.3% to HK$744.3 million as compared to that for the Prior Year — A744.38&B 0 (ZT =T F : 554.38 &)
(2020: HK$554.3 million). Nevertheless, net profit margin of the B AR E B4 F R F £54.8% (Z T - T F:
Group rose to 54.8% (2020: 54.5%). 54.5%) °

Net Profit Margin

T =
%
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42 Bright Smart Securities & Commodities Group Limited | Annual Report 2020/21



Management Discussion
EEEWED M

A breakdown of operating expenses is as follows:

and Analysis

RERXFAMT

Increment/
2021 2020 (decrement)
#m,/
—B-o—F —T-THF OR )
HK$‘000 HK$'000 %
THER TAT
Staff cost B IR A 152,895 127,472 19.9%
Amortisation and depreciation BT E 79,519 89,635 (11.3%)
Finance costs B 75 B AR 239,223 138,178 731%
Advertising and promotion expenses & & N EEF X 34,979 15,595 124.3%
Auditors’ remuneration % SR BN & 1,703 1,704 (0.1%)
Commission, handling and KemMe FEBREEER
settlement expenses 143,997 88,593 62.5%
Information and communication B EBEARAX
expenses 47,512 46,740 1.7%
Rental, rates and building e ZMkEFER
management fees 4,772 5,733 (16.8%)
Legal and professional fee ERREXEER 2,133 2,783 (23.4%)
Miscellaneous expenses MIER X 37,579 37,906 (0.9%)
744,312 554,339 34.3%
FUTURE PLANS RIRETE

Looking ahead, the COVID-19 pandemic and political factors
will continue to affect the development of global economy and
financial markets. Variants of the virus continue to spread in
many countries, but the availability of vaccines is expected
to bring the pandemic under control. Markets look forward to
economic recovery. Global trade and production activities have
begun to resume, and demand for commodities and energy
such as oil and metals will be stronger. Traditional sectors, such
as retail, tourism, aviation and manufacturing, are expected to
rebound after the pandemic eases. On the contrary, the new
economy sector saw amazing growth in the past year, and
its valuation grew rapidly. If there is an increase in debt and
interest rates, the development of new economy stocks may be
hindered, and market funds may frequently rotate between the
old and new economy sectors. Meanwhile, geopolitical issues
cannot be ignored. In recent years, the contradiction between
China and the US has intensified, with the two countries
competing with each other in technology, economy, national
defence, etc. The US policy towards China will also increase
market volatility and affect investment sentiment. Under the
complex and volatile political and economic situation, investors
should always remain prudent and manage risks well.
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However, regardless of changes in market conditions, the Group
will continue to adopt an aggressive development strategy
and also introduce new products, services and market offers
to expand its clientele. Apart from continuing to optimise and
improve all online trading channels and regularly enhancing
the functions of the Baobao and Doudou apps and improving
the speed to place an order, the Group will also establish a
complete branch network that will cover the 14 outlets in the
core areas of Hong Kong, in a bid to provide investors with
professional and considerate investment services. Moreover, it
will continuously identify sites at prime geographical locations
with high pedestrian flow to set up new branches to support
the business development, and will also hold regular job fairs to
attract a large number of talents with an aim of enhancing the
service quality as well as taking up the responsibility to nurture
the next generation of elites for the industry.

Meanwhile, to take up an important role in investors’
education, the Group launched a broadcasting channel “Bright
Smart Finance Channel”, through which it makes a financial
programme on each trading day to provide investors with
instant information and answer their questions. Besides, it
will organize various investment seminars free of charge and
stock and futures investment simulation competitions. For
instance, the Group partnered with world-renowned stock
exchanges, financial institutions and top industry experts to
provide investors with comprehensive, reliable and free wealth
management information so as to enhance their knowledge
about financial products and economic trends across the world
and broaden their investment choices. It believes that investors’
education should be open for all, easy to understand and
diversified so as to enhance the financial literacy of the public
via different channels and assist them in developing responsible
financial habits, behaviours and decisions.
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DEVELOP DIVERSIFIED GLOBAL
FINANCIAL PRODUCTS

The Group has thoroughly studied investors’ habits, behaviour
and investment trends, and analysed them according to client
data and surveys. In view of the rising attention to and popularity
of global financial products, investors have growing interest in
such products. The Group has connected its online securities
and futures trading platforms as well as mobile apps to markets
around the world, providing comprehensive and professiona
brokerage services and bringing together Hong Kong stocks,
US stocks, Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect A shares,
Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect A shares, China B shares,
Japanese stocks, Taiwanese stocks, Singaporean stocks,
Australian stocks, UK stocks, Hong Kong futures, Hang Seng
Index options, Hong Kong stock options, Dow Jones Futures,
A50 Futures, foreign exchange futures, gold futures, oil futures,
copper futures, HKEX’'s CNH Gold Futures, USD Gold Futures,
leveraged foreign exchange products, iron ore futures, IPO share
subscription and margin financing. It will continuously seek and
expand global investment products so as to cater to the needs
of different clients. The Group believes that investors’ interest in
global financial products is growing. Therefore, it will continue
to develop more global financial products to meet market
demands.
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PROMOTE DIGITALISED INVESTMENT
SERVICES

As the Group anticipates that the development of fintech will
significantly change the investment habits of its clients, it
actively engaged in digitalising investment services by making
substantial investments in half a year of time to develop two
mobile trading apps, namely BS Securities (Baobao) and BS
Futures (Doudou). They are equipped with Al3.0 features (such
as behavioural authentication, news tracking and personalised
portfolio monitoring). The Group’s mobile apps can fulfil all the
investment needs of its clients, enabling them to open accounts,
trade global financial products and read global financial news
right away at anytime and anywhere. Since the Group always
strives for excellence and invests substantially in fintech and
software and hardware support, new features were developed
and added to the Baobao and Doudou apps with a view to
satisfying market needs. For example, the Baobao app now
allows users to check the gain or loss of their positions, sell
odd lots automatically, browse trading records within a month,
search for warrants and Callable Bull/Bear Contracts (CBBC),
check the amount of CBBC in public hand, and receive push
message. In order to bring investors closer to the global
market, the Group launched “24-hour Electronic Direct Debit
Authorisation (eDDA) Services” approved by the HKMA with
famous banks in Hong Kong. This service allows clients to
deposit money and trade stocks and futures anytime, anywhere
regardless of time differences and Hong Kong holidays after
going through a simple registration procedure with any bank
account on Baobao and Doudou apps.

The Group keeps pace with the times and spends substantial
costs to upgrade existing hardware and software. It has
increased clients’ confidence in the Group’s brand, services and
trading systems and won praises from the industry and media,
including the Outstanding Stock and Futures Trading App Award
by CAPITAL for two straight years, the award for outstanding
securities and futures trading app by Sky Post, the Outstanding
Securities Trading Mobile APP award by The Chamber of
Hong Kong Computer Industry and Metro Broadcast, and
the Best Securities Mobile Apps in Greater China Award by
Metro Daily, in recognition of the Group’s outstanding results
in the development of the Baobao and Doudou apps. This
demonstrates the popularity of its online trading systems
amongst the clients, the industry and the media for its fast
speed, stability, security and reliability.
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As the application of fintech in the wealth management industry
matures, the Group plans to promote digitalised and smart
trading services amongst its clients, combine online and offline
marketing and operating strategies, reduce costs, enhance its
efficiency, expand its clientele and enhance their experience
using fintech, in a bid to strengthen its core competitiveness and
leadership position in the industry.

ENHANCE ONLINE TRADING SECURITY

At the same time, the Group has invested substantial resources
in improving the efficiency and capacity of its online trading
systems to meet clients’ needs. In order to offer a more
convenient and stable online trading platform, the Group has
also made huge investment in upgrading its trading systems,
relocated its central computer system to the centralised data
centre of HKEX in Tseung Kwan O, and conducted large-scale
tests on all transaction systems, including regular simulated
tests involving a trading volume exceeding five times of the
existing peak volume on HKEX, so as to continuously enhance
the efficiency and stability of the existing securities and
futures trading platforms. As for network security, the Group
has implemented the “dual password” security measure and
authentication by which two different passwords are required for
logging into the trading systems and conducting transactions.
Furthermore, an email will be delivered instantly or a push
message will be sent on Baobao and Doudou apps to notify the
clients of any login or any transaction conducted electronically
through their accounts in accordance with the regulatory
requirements. In addition, the Group also closely monitors and
counteracts any unrelated fake website. If any such website
is identified, the Group will notify the clients and take legal
actions against the website in order to prevent its clients from
suffering unnecessary loss. The Group will keep abreast of the
latest market developments and study the need and room for
capacity expansion of its trading systems. It will also step up
client education on online trading security and enhance their
awareness and skills of risk prevention.
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TAP INTO MAINLAND MARKET

In recent years, the mainland has been actively reforming and
widening the opening-up of its capital market, as a gradual
move towards internationalisation. The mainland is gradually
lifting the restrictions on foreign ownership of mainland-based
financial institutions, such as futures and securities firms and
mutual funds. It means that Hong Kong investors can also wholly
own the shares of mainland-based securities firms. With a huge
population, the mainland enjoys enormous potential in terms
of consumption power, productivity and investment capacity.
In addition, the mainland’s GDP grew 2.3% in 2020 despite the
epidemic, demonstrating the strong resilience of its economy.
Therefore, the Group is determined to tap into the potential
and forward-looking mainland market. It will raise its brand
awareness and establish a unique brand image in the mainland
via its online and offline hardware and software support,
professional and considerate client service team and up-to-date
promotional and marketing strategies.

CONCLUSION

The Group, with the “client-oriented and service-first” philosophy
and the “value-for-money” market positioning, adopted both
aggressive and defensive strategies at the moment when
the real economy went downhill. On the one hand, it has
been committed to optimising the performance of Baobao
and Doudou apps to improve user experience. On the other
hand, it allocated more resources on various online and offline
platforms for publicity and promotion and increasing brand
exposure, attracting more investors from Hong Kong and
mainland China to open accounts and trade products through
Bright Smart Securities. As demand in the regions where some
of its branches are located is almost saturated, the Group
has further optimised its branch network, actively looks for
potential locations to establish new footholds, and reaches
a wider range of target clients, in order to expand its market
share and strengthen its brand competitiveness. The Group’s
achievements today depend on the long-standing support, trust,
recognition and loyalty of its clients. The Group will be dedicated
to providing clients with better services and developing safer,
more stable, faster and more convenient trading platforms in
the future, so as to reward clients for their love and support and
make them feel at home. The Group will meanwhile develop
more diversified businesses, recruit talents from different
sectors and seize every valuable opportunity, so as to enhance
its operation efficiency and seek higher returns for shareholders.
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE, LIQUIDITY AND
FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group’s operations were financed by shareholders’ equity,
cash generated from operation and bank borrowings.

The Group maintains sufficient liquidity with total bank deposits,
bank balances and cash amounting to HK$418.5 million as at
31 March 2021 (2020: HK$477.7 million). The Group had bank
borrowings of HK$11,436.0 million as at 31 March 2021 (2020:
HK$2,858.8 million) which bore interest primarily at floating rate.
The bank borrowings were primarily collateralised by its margin
clients’ securities pledged to the Group. As at 31 March 2021,
unutilised banking facilities amounted to HK$9,183.4 million
(2020: HK$18,049.6 million). The Group’s gearing ratio (total
bank borrowings excluding IPO financing divided by the total
shareholders’ equity) was 425.7% (2020: 150.3%). As at 31
March 2021, the Group had net current assets of HK$1,943.9
million (2020: HK$1,708.3 million) and a current ratio (current
assets divided by current liabilities) of 1.1 times (2020: 1.4 times).

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in
economic conditions. For the licensed subsidiaries, the Group
ensures that each of the subsidiaries maintains a liquidity level
adequate to support the level of activities with a sufficient buffer
to accommodate increases in liquidity requirements arising
from potential increases in the level of business activities.
During the Year, all the licensed subsidiaries complied with the
liquidity requirements under the Securities and Futures (Financial
Resources) Rules (Cap. 571N of the Laws of Hong Kong “FRR”).

CHARGES ON ASSETS

No asset of the Group was subject to any charge as at 31 March
2021 and 2020.
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BEEENWEDTN

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2021, corporate guarantees provided by the
Company in respect of banking facilities granted by authorised
institutions to its subsidiaries engaging in securities and futures
broking amounted to HK$14,917.2 million (2020: HK$15,947.5
million). As at 31 March 2021, the subsidiaries of the Company
have utilised HK$7,535.0 million of these aggregate banking
facilities (2020: HK$2,334.0 million).

As at 31 March 2021, the directors did not consider that any
claim would be made against the Group under any of the
guarantees.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The capital commitments as at 31 March 2021 were
approximately HK$2.3 million (2020: HK$2.7 million).

EMPLOYMENT AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had a work force of 260
employees (2020: 263 employees). Staff costs, excluding
directors’ emoluments, amounted to approximately HK$127.1
million for the Year (2020: HK$112.7 million). The Group's
remuneration policy aims to offer competitive remuneration
packages to recruit, retain and motivate competent employees.
The Group believes that the remuneration packages are
reasonable and competitive and in line with market trends. The
Group has put in place a bonus scheme for its executives and
employees as a measure to provide a competitive remuneration
package for the Group’s long-term growth and development.
The Group also provides appropriate training and development
programmes to its employees to enhance the staff’'s work ability
and personal efficiency.

SIGNIFICANT ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL
OF SUBSIDIARIES

During the Year, the Group did not make any significant
acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries.
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LITIGATION

As at 31 March 2021 and up to the date of this report, the Group
has not been involved in any litigation of significance.

RISK MANAGEMENT
Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to amounts due
from clients, brokers and clearing houses. The management
has a credit policy in place and the exposure to the credit risk is
monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of amounts due from clients, individual evaluations
are performed on all clients (including cash and margin clients)
based on the underlying collateral. Cash clients are required
to place deposits as prescribed in the Group’s policy before
execution of any purchase transactions. Receivables due from
cash clients are due within the settlement period commonly
adopted in the relevant market practices, which is usually within
a few days from the trade date. Because accounts receivable
from cash clients relate to a wide range of customers for
whom there was no recent history of default, there has not
been a significant change in credit quality and the balances
are considered fully recoverable, and the prescribed deposit
requirements and the short settlement period involved, the
credit risk arising from the amounts due from cash clients is
considered low. The Group normally obtains liquid securities
and/or cash deposits as collateral for providing financing to
its cash and margin clients and has policy to manage these
exposures on a fair value basis. Margin loans due from margin
clients are repayable on demand. For commodities and
futures brokerage, an initial margin is required prior to opening
transaction. Market conditions and adequacy of securities
collateral and margin deposits of each cash account, margin
account and futures account are monitored by the management
on a daily basis. Margin calls and forced liquidation are made
where necessary.
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BEENWEDN

In respect of amounts receivable from brokers and clearing
houses, credit risks are considered low as the Group normally
enters into transactions with brokers and clearing houses which
are registered with regulatory bodies and enjoy sound reputation
in the industry.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk as
credits are granted to a large population of clients.

The Group does not provide any other guarantees which would
expose the Group to credit risk.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible for
their own cash management, including the raising of loans to
cover expected cash demands, and to ensure compliance with
FRR. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its current and
expected liquidity requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash
and adequate committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
long terms.

Interest rate risk

The Group charges interest on its margin clients and cash
clients with outstanding loan amounts on the basis of its cost of
funding plus a mark-up. Financial assets (such as margin loans
and deposits with banks) and financial liabilities (such as bank
loans) are primarily at floating rates. The Group’s income and
operating cash flows are not subject to significant interest rate
risk.
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Foreign exchange risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily arising from
financial instruments that are denominated in United States
dollars (“USD”), Renminbi (“RMB”), Singapore dollars (“SGD”),
Japanese Yen (“JPY”), Australian dollars (“AUD”) and British
pound (“GBP”). As the Hong Kong dollar (“HKD”) is pegged
to the USD, the Group considers the risk of movements in
exchange rates between the HKD and the USD as insignificant.
In respect of financial instruments denominated in other
currencies, the Group ensures that the net exposure is kept at
an acceptable level by buying or selling foreign currencies at
spot rates where necessary to address short-term imbalances.
The management monitors all the foreign currency positions on
a daily basis.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to price changes arising from listed
equity investments, futures contracts and accounts receivable
classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

The Group’s equity investments are listed on the SEHK while
investment in futures contracts are traded on HKFE. Listed
investments held in the financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss portfolio have been chosen based on their
longer term growth potential and are monitored regularly for
performance against expectations.

Accounts receivable from margin, cash and IPO clients expose
the Group to price risk as their fair value is made with reference
to the fair value of collaterals, capped by the principal amount
and accrued interest, without discounting.
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Biographies of Directors
ESREREERE 2GR

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. YIP Mow Lum
Chairman & Executive Director

(Appointed as a director on 4 August 2009 and elected as the
chairman on 4 August 2010)

Aged 69, is the founder, the Chairman of the Board, an
Executive Director and the controlling shareholder of the
Company. Mr. Yip is also the Chairman of the Nomination
Committee, a member of the Remuneration Committee and Risk
Management Committee of the Company. He is responsible for
the formulation of corporate strategies, overseeing operations
and the overall steering of the Group’s management. Mr. Yip
has solid experience in brokerage industry and investment and
has around 30 years’ management experience in securities
and futures brokerage. He is a director of certain subsidiaries
of the Group. Mr. Yip is a responsible officer recognised by the
Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong (“SFC”) for
engaging in the Type 2 (dealing in futures contracts) regulated
activity. He is the sole director of New Charming Holdings
Limited, the controlling shareholder of the Company and the
uncle of Mr. Chan Wing Shing, Wilson, one of the Executive
Directors of the Company and the father of Ms. Yip Wing Yan,
Jacquelyn, the Assistant to Chairman of the Group.

and Senior Management
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Mr. HUI Yik Bun
Executive Director & Chief Executive Officer

(Appointed as a director and Co-Chief Executive Officer on 5
October 2015 and re-designated as Chief Executive Officer on
31 May 2016)

Aged 47, is an Executive Director and the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company. He is responsible for overall business
development, operations and management of the Group. He
is also a member of the Risk Management Committee and a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. He has over 27
years of experience in securities and futures businesses, and
has worked in a number of securities firms. Mr. Hui has expertise
in brokerage operations, sales management and market
operations of securities and futures businesses, particularly with
over 17 years of experience in frontline management. Mr. Hui is
also a responsible officer recognised by the SFC for engaging
in the Type 1 (dealing in securities), Type 2 (dealing in futures
contracts), Type 4 (advising on securities), Type 5 (advising on
futures contracts), Type 7 (providing automated trading services)
and Type 9 (asset management) regulated activities.
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Mr. CHAN Wing Shing, Wilson
Executive Director
(Appointed on 4 August 2010)

Aged 56, is an Executive Director of the Company and the
Dealing Director of the Group in charge of the daily dealing
operations of securities and futures businesses. Mr. Chan is
also a director of Bright Smart Securities International (H.K.)
Limited and Bright Smart Futures & Commodities Company
Limited, both are subsidiaries of the Group. He has over 20
years’ experience in securities and futures businesses and is
a responsible officer recognised by the SFC for engaging in
the Type 1 (dealing in securities), Type 2 (dealing in futures
contracts), Type 4 (advising on securities), Type 5 (advising on
futures contracts), Type 7 (providing automated trading services)
and Type 9 (asset management) regulated activities. Mr. Chan
is the nephew of Mr. Yip Mow Lum, the founder, the Chairman
of the Board and the controlling shareholder of the Company
and the cousin of Ms. Yip Wing Yan, Jacquelyn, the Assistant to
Chairman of the Group.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. YU Yun Kong
Independent Non-executive Director
(Appointed on 4 August 2010)

Aged 55, is an Independent Non-executive Director, the
chairman of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee,
and the Risk Management Committee as well as a member
of the Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Yu is a
practising certified public accountant with over 30 years’
experience in public accounting practice. He is a fellow member
of both the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and also
an associate member of the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong.
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Mr. SZETO Wai Sun
Independent Non-executive Director
(Appointed on 4 August 2010)

Aged 62, is an Independent Non-executive Director, a member
of the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Risk Management Committee
of the Company. Mr. Szeto holds a Bachelor’s Degree in
Laws (Hons) and a Postgraduate Certificate in Laws from
The University of Hong Kong, and obtained the Professional
Certificate in Chinese Civil & Commercial Law, a course jointly
organised by Tsinghua University in the PRC and the School
of Professional and Continuing Education of The University
of Hong Kong in 2002. He also holds a Professional Diploma
for the Financial Times Non-Executive Director issued in May
2015, and is a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors.
Mr. Szeto was admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong in 1985
and worked in a number of law firms in Hong Kong including
Edmund Cheung & Co. and Y.T. Chan & Co., before founding
his own firm Sun Lawyers LLP (formerly known as W.S. Szeto &
Lee, Solicitors) in 2003. He remains the Senior Partner of Sun
Lawyers and is a practising Notary Public in Hong Kong. He had
been an independent non-executive director of Target Insurance
(Holdings) Limited (a company of which its shares are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, Stock Code: 6161)
during the period from November 2014 to December 2020.
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Mr. LING Kwok Fai, Joseph
Independent Non-executive Director
(Appointed on 4 August 2010)

Aged 65, is an Independent Non-executive Director, a member
of the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and Risk Management Committee
of the Company. Mr. Ling has over 25 years’ experience in
accounting, finance and administration and has been a director
and the company secretary of a charitable organisation since
2004. Mr. Ling has been an independent non-executive director
of Pangaea Connectivity Technology Limited (a company of
which its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, Stock Code: 1473) since January 2021. Mr. Ling joined
Midland Realty (Holdings) Limited in 1990 and was the executive
director when he left the company in 1997. Prior to that, he was
a controller of Hong Kong Telephone Company Limited and has
also worked at Chase Manhattan Bank and the First National
Bank of Boston in accounting field. Mr. Ling is an associate
member of The Chartered Governance Institute (formerly, The
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators) and The
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries, holding Chartered
Secretary and Chartered Governance Professional dual
designations.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. YIP Mow Lum

(Biographical details are set out on page 54)
Mr. HUI Yik Bun

(Biographical details are set out on page 55)
Mr. CHAN Wing Shing, Wilson

(Biographical details are set out on page 56)
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Ms. YIP Wing Yan, Jacquelyn
Assistant to Chairman
(Joined the Group in July 2018)

Aged 40, is the Assistant to Chairman of the Group with the
responsibilities for assisting the Chairman of the Board in
overseeing the Group’s daily internal operations and devising key
strategies for future development plan. She leads, coordinates
and gives advices to various departments to provide optimum
supports and quality services. She holds a Bachelor's Degree
in Business Administration (major in Accountancy) from the City
University of Hong Kong. Ms. Yip is the daughter of Mr. Yip Mow
Lum, the founder, the Chairman of the Board and the controlling
shareholder of the Company and the cousin of Mr. Chan Wing
Shing, Wilson, one of the Executive Directors of the Company.
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Ms. LI Wan Mei
Chief Financial Officer
(Joined the Group in November 2008)

Aged 37, is the Chief Financial Officer in charge of the overall
financial and accounting management of the Group. Ms. Li has
over 15 years’ accounting experience, including three years’
experience gained in PricewaterhouseCoopers. She holds a
Bachelor’s Degree in Business Administration from the Lingnan
University and is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. CHAN Kwan Pak

(February 2011-May 2012; re-appointed in October 2012)

Aged 64, is a member of The Chartered Governance
Institute (formerly, The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators) and The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries, holding dual designations of Chartered Secretary
and Chartered Governance Professional. He is also a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Chan has extensive experience in company
secretarial practices in respect of listed companies.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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SCOPE AND PERIOD OF REPORTING

A major trend for corporate development, sustainability has
become a key topic that draws the attention of stakeholders.
Policies set out in this report have been prepared with
the participation of and upon the consideration by major
stakeholders including substantial shareholders, directors, the
management and employees to address future challenges.

To achieve sustainability, the Group strives to promote
environmental protection, instilling corporate social
responsibilities to its business and management strategies and
maintaining a culture of sound governance. This report covers
a reporting period from 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021 (the
“Year”). Disclosure are made primarily under the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide set out in Appendix 27
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), to inform
stakeholders of the Group’s performance in environmental,
social and governance terms.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE POLICIES

The Group’s environmental, social and governance policies are
based on five basic principles set out below:

° To enhance corporate value and focus on shareholders’
return;

° To foster financial transparency and boost investors’
confidence;

° To cater to customers’ needs and protect customers’
interests;

° To develop employees and safeguard employees’ interests;
and

° To support environmental protection and seek to give back
to the community.
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Environmental
Policies on environment and energy

Environmental protection and energy conservation form
an important part of our corporate social responsibilities.
Apart from full compliance with laws and regulations
relating to environmental protection, the Group also seeks
to prevent pollution, conserve energy and reduce emission,
with a view to achieving sustainability in the course of its
day-to-day operations.

Use of resources

Operating in the financial services sector, the Group
upholds energy conservation and advocates the best
use of resources. Disclosures on emissions and use of
resources primarily relate to the use of electricity, water
and paper in its head office and branch offices, as well
as the greenhouse gas emissions in the course of petrol
consumption by vehicles of the Company. Except for the
mentioned emissions and use of resources, the Group’s
business has no direct impact on the environment and
natural resources.
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Environment and natural resources

1.

Greenhouse gases

Scope of greenhouse
gas emissions

Sources of emissions

Emissions as a
percentage of
total emission

Volume of
emissions (in
tonnes of COe)

BmE

(BAWE = & 16 B BYHRE
BERBHKREE BE BUR 285 fh Lt
Scope 1
Direct emissions Consumption of petrol by the 75.6 6.7%

Group’s fleet of vehicles

& =1
HEEW RNEEERKETHERE
Scope 2
Indirect emissions Purchase and use of electricity 1,002.1 88.4%
g E2
3 52 HE 7 BRE
Scope 3
Other indirect emissions Consumption of paper 55.4 4.9%
& =3
E h [ 52 HE B R EFE
Total
#at 1,133.1 100.0%

During the Year, a total of 1,133.1 tonnes of CO.g,
which mainly comprises carbon dioxide, methane
and nitrous oxide, were emitted from the Group’s
operations as greenhouse gas emissions.

Electricity

During the Year, the Group consumed 1,002,118
kilowatt-hours of electricity. Measures were taken
for energy conservation, including the purchase of
energy-saving office equipment and appliances,
such as the use of LED lights and energy-saving
light bulbs; setting the default mode of printers and
computers at energy-saving; encouraging switching
off computers, air-conditioners and illumination
systems during non-office hours or periods of
extended away; and ongoing improvements to
equipment including illumination and air-conditioning
systems to uplift the overall energy efficiency.
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Water

During the Year, the Group consumed approximately
1,822 cubic metres of water. As part of the water
usage fee was included in the management fee paid
to landlord, full data on water consumption are not
available. The Group also encourages saving on
water use among employees.

Petrol

During the Year, the Group consumed 28,072 litres
of petrol in its vehicles, representing emission of
75.6 tonnes of CO,e in aggregate. In purchasing its
vehicles, the Group takes environmental protection
and energy efficiency into due consideration.

Hazardous wastes and packaging materials

No hazardous wastes or packaging materials are
produced from the business operations of the Group.
In selecting suppliers or cooperation partners, the
Group takes into consideration, among others, their
environmental and energy policies, to maximise
environmental protection and minimise pollution.

Non-hazardous wastes

Non-hazardous wastes produced from the operations
of the Group primarily comprise paper used in
offices, which amounted to a total of approximately
11.5 tonnes of paper and in turn 55.4 tonnes of CO_e
emission during the reporting period. The recycled
papers were not included in the calculation of GHG
emission. To minimise paper consumption, a number
of measures are in place, including measures to
encourage setting double-sided printing as the
default mode and reuse of paper and so forth.

In recent years, the Group has sought for a paperless
working environment by adopting electronic means
for internal dissemination of information, such as
payroll notices, circulars, memoranda and so forth.
This has saved the use of space, facilitated the
sharing of information on our intranet, and cut down
on the use of paper, and in turn augmented efficiency
in our day-to-day operations.
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Further, digitised services including electronic
statements, account opening through mobile apps
and account opening through the internet have been
made available. We also use electronic mails and
messaging tools in disseminating latest promotional
materials to our customers.

We also recommend shareholders to access
information including HKEx announcements and
shareholders’ correspondences via the internet.
The policies for a paperless workplace contribute
to environmental protection as well as saving on
operating expenses.

Measures for green offices

To produce less wastes and recycle resources,
suppliers are regularly arranged to collect used
printing cartridges and toners for recycling purpose,
while recycling bins are placed at its head and branch
offices for collecting used paper.

Social

Employment and labour practices

Employment

The Group cares about the health and well-being
of its employees. All employees are entitled to life
insurance, discretionary bonus, medical benefits,
paid annual leaves, paid sick leaves, educational
subsidies, examination subsidies and so forth.
Details are set out in a staff handbook to ensure that
employees fully understand their rights and duties.
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Health and safety

The Group provides a safe and healthy workplace for
its employees in compliance with relevant laws and
regulations such as the “Occupational Safety and
Health Ordinance” in Hong Kong.

We care about the physical and mental health of
each and every one of our employees, with frequent
production of posters to remind its employees of
occupational safety and health.

Development and training

The Group acknowledges that employees are
the most important assets of the Company. To
maintain its leading position in the vibrant and
versatile financial market, the Group encourages
and subsidises employees at different job grades to
enroll and/or participate in development or training
courses in support of their career and professional
development.

Trainings in preparation for sitting qualification
examinations for securities and futures practitioners,
continuing professional training and customer
services training are offered to frontline staff of the
Group.

Labour standards

Recruitment are conducted by the human resources
department of the Group according to relevant labour
laws and regulations, including but not limited to, the
“Employment Ordinance” in Hong Kong. Personal
data collected in the course of recruitment are only
used for selecting suitable candidates. Further,
employees’ background information are verified in
detail to ensure that no illegal workers, compulsory
labour or child labour are hired.
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Operating practices

Supply chain management

The Group attaches great importance to the
mutually beneficial and long-term relationship with
its suppliers. In its procurement policies, the Group
adheres to the principle of “cost effectiveness”, under
which high-quality customer services are ensured
while costs are minimised. Different departments stay
in good communication with its suppliers, conduct
review and checking processes from time and
time. In making decisions for procurement, factors
including historical price quotations, product offering,
service offering, performance and environmental
and social policies by suppliers are all taken into
consideration, so that suppliers adhering to similar
notions and offering reasonable prices are selected.

Product responsibility

Internal control and compliance procedures are
in place to ensure compliance with all relevant
laws and regulations by the Group’s frontline staff
members. The Group also provides relevant training
to its employees, thereby ensuring that employees
apprehend the nature and risks underlying financial
services and that they are equipped with professional
knowledge sufficient for them to provide the
most suitable advice to their customers under all
circumstances.

Customer opinions/complaints

With clear black-and-white procedures within the
Group, all disputes and complaints are investigated
and resolved in an impartial and rapid manner.
General complaints are dealt with by the customer
services department, which replies accordingly
to the respective customers. Compliance-related
complaints are dealt with independently by the
compliance department, which replies accordingly
to the respective customers and/or relevant law
enforcement bodies.
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Laws and regulations

The Group has obtained all licences, qualifications
and permits required of its business operations. The
compliance department is responsible for ensuring
that business operations comply with laws and
regulations. Updates on relevant laws and regulations
are notified to relevant operating units and employees
from time to time. During the Year, there had been no
violation of any laws or regulations on the part of the
Group that would have or would likely have material
adverse effect on the Group.

Privacy of personal data

For the protection of privacy in respect of personal
data, the Group has developed its policies for the
protection of personal data on the basis of the
Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance. With due regards
to personal data privacy, the Group is committed to
fully enforcing and observing the principles of data
protection as well as all relevant provisions in the
Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance. The Group seeks
to ensure that appropriate measures are in place to
prevent the misuse or leakage of personal data, and
shall hold such personal data only for the purpose of
such collection.

The Group’s Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance/
Privacy Policy Statement are made available on its
website to disclose the relevant protection policies to
its customers.
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Anti-corruption

Anti-corruption/Anti-money laundering ("AML”)

To build its corporate culture and procedures that
stay in line with laws and regulations as well as
ethics, the Group has established policies on anti-
corruption and AML, which stipulate procedures for
screening customers, “know your customers” policy,
rules for archiving and rules for whistleblowing in
case of suspected deals.

Gifts and benefits

The Group has developed its policies against
bribery and the receipt or provision of gifts. In all
circumstances, employees must declare any receipt
of gifts or benefits to the compliance department,
which would advise based on the circumstances,
for example whether such gifts or benefits can
be accepted, should be rejected or other ways of
handling.

Policies for handling internal complaints

We have policies for handling internal complaints,
whereby employees may report to the chairman of
the Board any improper behaviours on an anonymous
basis. Such improper behaviours include but are not
limited to:

° improper behaviours involving financial
reporting;
° improper behaviours involving internal control;

° behaviours in violation of any applicable laws;

° behaviours posing threat to the safety or health
of the others; and

° wilful concealment of any one of the above.
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Whistleblowers do not face intimidation, retaliation or
improper disciplinary actions in any form as a result
of reporting the aforesaid behaviours. The Company
uses its best endeavours to keep all disclosed
information confidential and to handle the same in a
prudent manner. Without consent of the respective
employees, the Company will not disclose the identity
of the reporting employees. However, under certain
circumstances such as where it becomes necessary
to initiate litigation procedures due to investigation,
the Company may be required by law or be obliged
under law to disclose the identity of the reporting
employees. In such event, all reasonable steps
will be taken by the Company to ensure that such
employees will not get affected. Any acts to harass or
affect the whistleblowers will be considered serious
misconducts and once established would result in
termination of employment.

Customer services

Dedicated customer services have bestowed on
the Group trust and support from its customers.
With clear and black-and-white internal procedures,
the Group impartially and rapidly investigates and
resolves all disputes and complaints. As an integrated
financial services provider, we have set up service
teams that are comprised of different professionals
to provide diversified financial services, including
securities brokerage, margin financing, commodities
and futures brokerage, bullion trading, forex trading
and so forth. As of 31 March 2021, 117 of the Group’s
employees were persons licenced by the Securities
and Futures Commission to engage in one or more of
the regulated activities.
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During the Year, the Group was granted the following
accolades with its caring and professional service
attitudes:

— Top Active Exchange Participants in Stock
Futures, Top Active Exchange Participants
in Stock Options, Top Active Exchange
Participants in Weekly Index Options, Top Active
Traders in Options — After-Hours Trading, and
Top Breakthrough Exchange Participant —
Leveraged and Inverse Product Turnover by
HKEX

—  Listed Company Award of Excellence 2020 by
Hong Kong Economic Journal

— Most Popular Brokerage Brand by TVB Weekly
— Best Reward & Recognition Strategy Award
(Platinum) by CTgoodjobs

— Outstanding securities and futures trading app
by Sky Post

— OQutstanding stock and futures trading app by
CAPITAL

—  Extraordinary Enterprise Award 2020 and Hong
Kong Outstanding Enterprise Award 2020 by

Economic Digest

— Best IPO service Award by Zhitong Caijing/
Hithink RoyalFlush Information Network

—  Best Integrated Service by iFeng Finance
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Community
Community investment

Recognising the responsibility of a good corporate citizen
to contribute to the community, the Group has long
maintained its eagerness to serve and give back to the
community, with active participation in various community
activities. The management of the Group advocates staff
participation in philanthropic deeds, to arouse attention to
the community and drive further participation from other
people in community services.

Hong Kong has been ravaged by COVID-19 since 2020,
Mr. Yip Mow Lum, Chairman of the Group, provided some
support for the frontline medical workers in their fight
against the virus, by donating HK$10 million to the Hospital
Authority of Hong Kong (HA) in the name of “Yip Mow Lum
Charity Fund”.

During the Year, the Group has made a donation of
HK$250,000 to The Chinese International School
Foundation Limited, in order to support the all-rounded
development of students.

During the Year, the Group donated HK$100,000 to
UNICEF Hong Kong in support of the implementation of
COVAX, to help and ensure the people in middle-and
low-income countries and regions can be vaccinated.

During the Year, the Group has sponsored The Community
Chest BEA Charity Golf Day 2021 with a donation of
HK$45,000 for mental health services provided by the
Chest’s member agencies

The Group has also been awarded the following
certificates of appreciation and commendation:

— Award of Excellence by The Community Chest

—  Caring Company Award granted by the Hong Kong
Council of Social Service

Caring Company Scheme
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to maintaining high standards
of corporate governance and complying with regulatory
requirements, to secure and uplift confidence of shareholders
as well as potential investors. In order to meet expectations
of the public and shareholders and fulfill its commitment to
good corporate governance, the Board reviews the Company’s
corporate governance practices from time to time.

During the year ended 31 March 2021 (the “Year”), the Company
has applied the principles of, and has complied with, all the
code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

BOARD COMPOSITION

The Board comprises six Directors, half of whom are non-
executive directors independent from the management. The
Board is responsible for formulating the overall strategies of
the Company, ensuring the availability of sufficient funds and
resources for implementing such strategies, overseeing the
financial position of the Company, and complying with laws and
regulations in the course of business operations. All members
of the Board possess the skills and experience required by
the businesses of the Group. As at 31 March 2021, the Board
comprised three executive Directors, namely, Mr. Yip Mow Lum
(Chairman), Mr. Hui Yik Bun (CEO) and Mr. Chan Wing Shing,
Wilson; and three independent non-executive Directors, namely,
Mr. Yu Yun Kong, Mr. Szeto Wai Sun and Mr. Ling Kwok Fali,
Joseph. The biographical details of the current Directors are set
out in the “Biographies of Directors and Senior Management”
section of this annual report.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

CG Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman
and CEO should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual. To balance power and authority, Mr. Yip
Mow Lum acts as the Chairman of the Company, whereas Mr.
Hui Yik Bun acts as CEO.

Their respective responsibilities are clearly established. The
Chairman is responsible for ensuring that the Board properly
discharges its responsibilities and conforms to good corporate
governance practices and procedures. In addition, he is also
responsible for ensuring that all Directors are sufficiently briefed
on issues arising at Board meetings and that all Directors
receive adequate, complete and reliable information in a timely
manner. The CEO is responsible for day-to-day management
and administration of the Group’s business, including the
implementation of significant strategies formulated by the Board.

RESPONSIBILITIES AND DELEGATION

The Board, under the leadership of the Chairman, is responsible
for formulating the Company’s corporate strategy, overseeing
the management of the Company and evaluating the
business performance, with the ultimate aim to maximise the
shareholders’ value and long-term success of the Company.
The management is responsible for day-to-day management
and operation of the Group within the authority delegated by the
Board.

In addition, the Board has established four Board committees
namely, the Audit Committee, the Risk Management Committee,
the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee
and has delegated to these committees various functions and
responsibilities set out in their respective terms of reference.
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During the Year, the Company was in full compliance with the
requirements under the Listing Rules, with three independent
non-executive Directors on the Board throughout the VYear.
In addition, Mr. Yu Yun Kong and Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph
have the appropriate professional qualifications of accounting
and related financial management experience. In addition, the
Company has received written confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors of his independence to the
Group pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers
all the independent non-executive Directors are independent.

Mr. Chan Wing Shing, Wilson is a nephew of Mr. Yip Mow
Lum. Mr. Yip Mow Lum, Mr. Hui Yik Bun and Mr. Chan Wing
Shing, Wilson concurrently are directors of several subsidiaries
of the Company. Save as disclosed above, there are no other
relationships between the Board members, including financial,
business, family or other material/relevant relationships.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company acknowledges the importance of diversity at
the Board in contributing to the quality of performance of the
Company. The Board has adopted a Board Diversity Policy.
In determining the composition of the Board, the Company
takes into account a number of factors, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background
or professional experience. Appointment of Directors is solely
based on meritocracy. The Board Diversity Policy is among
the criteria used in selecting members to join the Board.
Furthermore, the Company also takes into consideration its
own business model and specific needs form time to time in
determining the optimal composition of the Board.
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BOARD PRACTICES

The Board holds at least four regular meetings annually at
approximately quarterly intervals to discuss the Group’s
business development, operations and financial performance.
Notice of at least 14 days is given to all Directors for all regular
Board meetings. All regular Board meetings adhere to a
formal agenda in which a schedule of matters is addressed to
the Board and the Directors are invited to include matters of
special concerns for discussion in the agenda. All Directors
have access to the Board papers and all related materials, and
are provided with adequate information by the management to
enable the Board to make informed decisions on the matters to
be discussed. The minutes of the Board meetings have sufficient
details of the matters discussed at Board meetings which are
prepared and kept by the Company Secretary and are opened
for inspection by any Director. The Directors are free to access
to the management for enquiries about further information, when
required, and the Directors can obtain independent professional
advice at the Company’s expense.

During the Year, four regular Board meetings and one general
meeting were held. Details of the attendance of the Directors to
the regular Board meetings and general meeting are as follows:

Name of Director

Executive Directors: BITES:

Mr. Yip Mow Lum BRMEE

Mr. Hui Yik Bun AFEW R E

Mr. Chan Wing Shing, Wilson B oK BB 5T A
Independent Non-executive Directors: BIFHTEE:
Mr. Yu Yun Kong R ENM 5 A&

Mr. Szeto Wai Sun A)E 4 3 A&

Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph % B 18 St A
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AFEE BFQELRTHAEFTSEHEER
—RABERARE - BEFREFETHERLK
RABZHERFRAOT:

Attendance/

Attendance/ number of
number of board CELEIEL
meetings held meeting held
HEBITESEE HEBORE
ERZRE REZRE

4/4 11

4/4 11

4/4 11

4/4 11

4/4 11

4/4 11
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Every newly appointed Director will receive comprehensive,
formal and tailored induction package from the company
secretary ensuring that he/she has a proper understanding
of the Company’s operation, business, the relevant laws
and regulations, the Listing Rules and governance policies.
The Company Secretary also provides the updates on latest
development and changes in the Listing Rules and other relevant
legal and regulatory requirements to the Board from time to
time.

In addition, all Directors are encouraged to participate in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. During the Year, all Directors
participated in continuous professional development through
reading materials on regulatory updates, director’s duties and
responsibilities and corporate governance matters and attending
relevant seminar(s) or course(s) provided by professional bodies.
All Directors have provided the Company with a record of the
relevant training undertaken during the Year as summarized
below:

Name of Director

Executive Directors BITES

Mr. Yip Mow Lum ERMEE

Mr. Hui Yik Bun TR EE

Mr. Chan Wing Shing, Wilson BR ok 3 2k A&
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHTES
Mr. Yu Yun Kong RENM & A&

Mr. Szeto Wai Sun AIE#E &
Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph B S
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v/ v/ v/
v/ v/ v/
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ACCESS TO INFORMATION BY DIRECTORS

In relation to regular Board meetings, notice of at least 14 days
shall be given to Directors allowing them to have sufficient time
to participate. Meanwhile, Agendas and meeting documents
are sent to all Directors 3 days prior to the respective meeting
to ensure that Directors have sufficient time to familiarize
themselves with the matters to be discussed and to play their
roles of supervision. For meetings of committees under the
Board, notice shall also be given to Directors in accordance with
the requirement specified in terms of reference of respective
committee, and agendas and meeting documents are also sent
to all Directors 3 days prior to the respective meeting.

All Directors are entitled to have access to Board papers,
minutes and financial information, and also entitled to make
enquiry to the management regarding operating data and
financial information of the Company. The management must
submit the information requested by the Directors within
reasonable time so that the Board can play its role effectively.

Further, the Company provides all Directors with monthly
updates on the Company’s performance, financial position and
prospects, so that Directors are well aware of the affairs of the
Group and can in turn perform their duties under the Listing
Rules.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Each executive Director has entered into a service agreement
with the Company for a fixed term of three years, which will
automatically be renewable for one successive year, and will
continue thereafter unless and until terminated by either party
giving the other prior notice in writing (not less than three
months’ notice for Mr. Yip Mow Lum and Mr. Hui Yik Bun; and
not less than twelve months’ notice for Mr. Chan Wing Shing,
Wilson). They are subject to retirement from office by rotation
and re-election by shareholders at annual general meetings in
accordance with the articles of association of the Company (the
“Articles”).

CG Code provision A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive Directors
should be appointed for a specific term subject to re-election.
Each of the three independent non-executive Directors of the
Company are appointed for a fixed term of one year, which will
automatically be renewable for one successive year, and will
continue thereafter unless and until terminated by either party
by giving the other party a three months’ prior notice in writing.
All three independent non-executive Directors are also subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election by shareholders at
the annual general meetings of the Company according to the
provisions of the Articles.

According to the Articles, at each annual general meeting of the
Company, one-third of the current Directors, or if there are not
three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not
less than one-third, shall retire from office by rotation at least
once every three years. A retiring Director shall be eligible for
re-election. Any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual
vacancy shall hold office only until the first general meeting of
the Company after his/her appointment and shall be subject
to re-election at such meeting. Any Director appointed by the
Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only
until the next following annual general meeting of the Company
and shall then be eligible for re-election.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code
of conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors.
Having made specific enquiries of each Director, all the Directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
throughout the Year.

COMPLIANCE MANUAL

The compliance manual of the Company has been prepared by
the Company with reference to relevant regulatory guidelines
and other industry best practices, setting out ethical standards,
values and specific obligations on topics such as dealing in
securities, anti-money laundering and personal benefits, thereby
ensuring that all Directors, management members and staff
members abide by the ethics and integrity in compliance with
standards of the Company.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD
Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three members, all of whom are
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Yu Yun Kong,
Mr. Szeto Wai Sun and Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph. None of them
are involved in the day-to-day management of the Company. Mr.
Yu Yun Kong is the chairman of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing the Company’s
financial information (including the Company’s financial
statements, annual reports, interim reports and major comments
on financial reporting contained in the financial statements),
examining the Company’s financial reporting system and
procedures for internal supervision and control, and making
recommendations to the Board on matters regarding the
appointment of external auditors and the fixing of the audit fee,
etc. The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources
enabling it to discharge its duties.
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A summary of work performed by the Audit Committee during
the Year is set out as follows:

o reviewed the audited financial statements of the Company
for the year ended 31 March 2020;

° reviewed the interim financial statements of the Company
for the six months ended 30 September 2020;

o reviewed the effectiveness of the accounting and financial
reporting function of the Group; and

° reviewed and recommended the Board on the re-
appointment of external auditor.

Two Audit Committee meetings were held during the Year.
Attendance records of relevant Directors are set out as follows:

Name of Director

Mr. Yu Yun Kong (Chairman)
Mr. Szeto Wai Sun
Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph

The Audit Committee has recommended to the Board that

KPMG, Certified Public Accountants (“KPMG”), be nominated for

re-appointment as the external auditor of the Company at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

BABLEREBERAR | —T T/ ——FFR

BB R L

B
¥

ZEERAFEEZTHERARNT :

e EHMAQRBE-_Z-_TF=A=+-—H
LHFEEZEBEZWHRE:

o EHAQNFEE-E-_TEAA=+HI
NEAZFRHMB®RE:

o RIARKE GNP RBAL 2 MAe
54

s FERINERBMETRIVYAEFTER
HEE -

ERREENAFERABTTMRESE
EEZHECHEFAINT:

Attendance/
number of Audit
Committee

meetings held
HE/BITERKE
EEE8B2ZRHE
R ML E(ER) 2/2
A 1E 4 e 2/2

2/2
ERREQCMEZERE  EARTERER

RBFRGLREZEBEBNESHMEFTH G
BhEB T (TREE)AARE ZINERLEED -

81



Corporate Governance Report

ERERME

Risk Management Committee

The Risk Management Committee comprises five members,
namely, Mr. Yip Mow Lum, Chairman of the Board and Mr. Hui
Yik Bun, an executive Director and the CEO, together with three
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Yu Yun Kong,
Mr. Szeto Wai Sun and Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph. Mr. Yu Yun
Kong is the chairman of the Risk Management Committee.

The major duties of the Risk Management Committee are to
review the risk management and internal control systems other
than the financial control and reporting system and to consider
major investigation findings on the risk management and
internal control matters of the Company. The Risk Management
Committee is provided with sufficient resources enabling it to
discharge its duties.

A summary of the work performed by the Risk Management
Committee during the Year is set out as follows:

° reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control system;
and

° reviewed the risk register to identify, mitigate and monitor
significant risks.

A Risk Management Committee meeting was held during the

Year. Attendance records of relevant Directors are set out as
follows:

Name of Director
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Attendance/
number of Risk
Management
Committee

meeting held
HERTRR
EEZEEER
Z IR

Mr. Yu Yun Kong (Chairman) REMEE(FE) 11
Mr. Yip Mow Lum HEERMEE 11
Mr. Hui Yik Bun FFREW KL 1/1
Mr. Szeto Wai Sun AR EAE 11
Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph & BB S A 1/1
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises four members, namely
Mr. Yip Mow Lum, Chairman of the Board, together with three
independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Yu Yun Kong, Mr.
Szeto Wai Sun and Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph. Mr. Yip Mow Lum
is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for, among others,
reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually
and make recommendations on any proposed changes to
the Board to complement the Company’s strategy; reviewing
the Board’s diversity policy, as appropriate; and review the
measurable objectives that the Board has set for implementing
the Board’s diversity policy, and the progress on achieving
the objectives; identifying individuals suitably qualified to
become members of the Board and selecting or making
recommendations to the Board on selection of individual
nominated for directorships; assessing the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors; making recommendations
to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of
Directors and succession planning for Directors, in particular
the Chairman and the CEO; and determining the policy for
nomination of Directors. The Nomination Committee is provided
with sufficient resources enabling it to discharge its duties.

A summary of the work performed by the Nomination Committee
during the Year is set out as follows:

° reviewed the structure, size, diversity of composition and
succession of the Board;

° reviewed the independence of the independent non-
executive Director; and

° made recommendation to the Board on the re-election of
Directors.
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A Nomination Committee meeting was held during the Year.
Attendance records of relevant Directors are set out as follows:

RAZERNAFERGTT—REE
ZHBRERIIMT

BERES

Attendance/

number of

Nomination

Committee

meeting held

HEBITRE

ZEE8R

Name of Director ZRE

Mr. Yip Mow Lum (Chairman) ERMNEE(FE) 11

Mr. Yu Yun Kong R ENM % & 11

Mr. Szeto Wai Sun A EMEFT A 1/1

Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph & B8 e A 11
Nomination Policy RBEBEBX

The nomination policy aims to set out the nomination criteria
and procedures to nominate, select and appoint (including the
re-election thereof) suitable candidates to be a director of the
Company.

The selection criteria in assessing the suitability of potential
candidates includes, but not limited to, their character
and integrity, professional qualifications, skills, knowledge,
experience, expertise and measurable objectives set out in the
board diversity policy.

The nomination procedures for each appointment and re-
election of Directors shall be evaluated using a substantially
similar process and shall be fair and transparent. The
Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing this policy to
ensure its effectiveness.

REBREEINEHRERFEEREF  UER
BELZCTEBREER)FEREARLRR
T

HEBERZACSTABZBERMFBEED
BREFzmERHAE  EXRER - KA
B R FEAUAREFTENEZTTIEHEAM
B2ATERR -

BRAZAERERESZRAEFENBXEM
RZRRETHZ  LEAFRER - RAHE
EeRERMBRUERITZAER -

84 Bright Smart Securities & Commodities Group Limited | Annual Report 2020/21



Corporate Governance Report

A\//‘-\\
1F éﬂﬁﬂﬁ%

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises four members,
namely, Mr. Yip Mow Lum, Chairman of the Board, and three
independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Yu Yun Kong, Mr.
Szeto Wai Sun and Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph. Mr. Yu Yun Kong
is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for, among others,
making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
remuneration policy and structure for all Directors’ and senior
management’s remuneration and on the establishment of a
formal and transparent procedure for developing remuneration
policy; reviewing and approving the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives; making recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual executive Director and
senior management; making recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration of non-executive Directors; considering
salaries or fees paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group; and ensuring that no Director or any of
his associates is involved in deciding his own remuneration. The
Remuneration Committee is provided with sufficient resources
enabling it to discharge its duties.

A summary of the work performed by the Remuneration
Committee during the Year is set out as follows:

° reviewed the Directors’ fees and made recommendation to
the Board; and

° reviewed the current remuneration package of the
executive Directors and senior management and made
recommendation to the Board.

Details of the amount of Directors’ emoluments during the
Year are set out in note 9 to the financial statements in this
annual report. The Directors’ emoluments are determined
with reference to the Company’s operating results, individual
performance and the prevailing market rates. The emolument
policy of the employees of the Group is set up on the basis
of their performance, qualifications and competence, as well
as market trends. The work performed by the Remuneration
Committee during the Year included the review and approval of
remuneration scheme of the Group and the remuneration of all
Directors and submission of the same to the Board.
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A Remuneration Committee meeting was held during the Year.
Attendance records of relevant Directors are set out as follows:

FHMZEENAFERITT —REE
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Attendance/

number of

Remuneration

Committee

meeting held

HEBITHMN

ZEE8R

Name of Director ZIRE
Mr. Yu Yun Kong (Chairman) REW & E(FE) 11
Mr. Yip Mow Lum BRMEE 1/1
Mr. Szeto Wai Sun A EMEFT A 1/1
Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph & B8 e A 11

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is responsible for, inter alia, developing and reviewing
the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance;
reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management;
reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; and
reviewing the Company’s compliance with the code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report. This corporate
governance report has been reviewed by the Board in discharge
of its corporate governance function.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS/SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The following table lists out in bands the remuneration of the
Directors and senior management whose names appear in the
“Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” section of
this annual report for the Year:

15,000,001-20,000,000
10,000,001-15,000,000
5,000,001-10,000,000
1-5,000,000

EEEARE

E=Z2RE(ETEBNEMNERNARAND
XEABENER RIVNEEEERSAE
BABWBINBEEXER BENEER
AEETARMEERE TENRRMER
EHARRETTUANBERARRERERES
FZHRE - AEEXRERABECHEFTSEMMU

BORCEE AR -
EE SREBAETH

TRIHAFHREZRSRERBZEE] 6
ZEERSREBRABRAFE ZFMAR

Number of

persons

A"

Total %2 &%
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Board is responsible for overseeing the preparation of
financial statements for each financial period, which give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company, and
of the results and cash flow for that period. In preparing the
financial statements for the Year, the Board has selected
suitable accounting policies and has applied them consistently,
adopted appropriate Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and Hong Kong Accounting Standards which are pertinent to
its operations and relevant to the financial statements, made
judgments and estimates that are prudent and reasonable, and
has prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chan Kwan Pak, the Company Secretary, is an external
service provider and was appointed by the Board. He is a
fellow member of the Association of Chartered and Certified
Accountants, a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and The Chartered Governance Institute (formerly
The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators). He
reports to the Chairman and CEO and assists the Board in
functioning effectively. All the Directors could have access to
the advice and services of the Company Secretary at any time
in relation to their duties and operation of the Board. During
the Year, he undertook not less than 15 hours of professional
training to update his knowledge and skills.

The primary contact person with the Company Secretary during
the Year was Ms. Li Wan Mei, the Chief Financial Officer of the
Company.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

During the Year, KPMG, the external auditor of the Group,
provided the following services to the Group:

BEREFEX

EXEeREERSVBBRZMBREABET
tF ERMBHERAEE LA VB RRART]
ZHRREZMEZEZERBRERE - RBRAE
FEZUBHRRK EFSCEZBIER/RRA
BEZEHHE  RMEASEER MR
REBCBETAEVBRELARFTEGE
A - fFHBESBZABH RGN  XERIEE
REEERHRPWBRE -

RAWE

NREAMERLGBALERINERBIERE BE
FEZRME - EARBEBHAREFMAGER
SEUNBERANERGREHRARIAELS
(AR HERITRABRAG®)ER - RAE
FRITHERER IHBESSABERE -
MEEEHNERAEBRENESSEFEHE
AARIMESKERLRRY - AFE - REMW
EC2BADRBENE 2 FEXEI - AEH
H A R RE -

AEERRMENTEBRBARARAY A
EFHENE-

B A% BLEm

AEE AEBZIBZEMESHAAAEE
REHIAT RS -

HK$’000
Service rendered Fr 12 14t R 7% THE T
Audit services ERRE
Annual audit FEEZ 1,456
Non-audit services FEZRB
Interim review B 25 ) 247
Taxation service 15 R 7% 61
Total @st 1,764
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board has ultimate responsibility to establish and maintain
adequate risk management and internal control systems and to
review their effectiveness. Hence, such systems are designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Process used to Identify, Evaluate and Manage
Significant Risk

Pursuant to the Group’s framework, senior management is
primarily responsible for designing and implementing the
policies and procedures of internal controls, while the Board
and the Risk Management Committee oversee the actions of
senior management and review the effectiveness of the controls
established on an annual basis in respect of the financial year.

Risk management of the Group is a continuous process carried
out at all levels of the Group. Each management team is required
to identify the risks in their division faces and classify them into
appropriate categories. All risks identified are given a risk rating
which is evaluated based on the likelihood and consequence
of the risks. Mitigation measures and plans are then developed
based on the control gaps evaluated and the predetermined risk
appetite to manage the risks to an acceptable level.

All risks identified and the corresponding mitigation measures
are recorded in the relevant risk register to facilitate review of the
senior management, the Risk Management Committee and the
Board on an ongoing basis.

Internal Audit Function

The Group’s internal audit function for the Year has been
performed by the Internal Audit Department which has
unrestricted access to review all aspects of the Group’s
business activities and is responsible for quarterly monitoring
and reviews on internal and operational controls. They directly
report to the Chairman of the Board and the Risk Management
Committee.

The Risk Management Committee and the Board have
confirmed that there is no fundamental deficiencies with material
adverse consequences.

[ Bz E & &P B 2
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EEEEBARMNESNMIAEE AR WA
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156 B M R R AT IR XA KSR o
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Internal Control System

For the Year, the Board has, through management, the Audit
Committee and the Risk Management Committee, conducted a
review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems.

The review covered all material controls over financial,
operational and compliance issues, risk management,
information systems security, the effectiveness of financial
reporting and compliance with the Listing Rules.

In view of the improvements made to the systems and the
appropriate measures taken, the Board considered that the
systems are effective and adequate.

The Board has also reviewed and is satisfied with the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting, internal
audit and financial reporting functions.

Handling and Dissemination of Inside Information

The Board has adopted the Disclosure of Inside Information
Manual to handle and disseminate inside information to comply
with the requisite inside information disclosure requirements as
specified under the Securities and Futures Ordinance and the
Listing Rules.

Dividend Policy

The dividend policy aims to set out key criteria on payment of
dividends of the Company.

Payment of dividends shall remain to be determined at the
sole discretion of the Board of the Company, except the final
dividend shall be subjected to shareholders’ approval at general
meeting.

In proposing any dividend payout, the Board shall also take
into account, inter alia, the operating results, cash flow,
financial condition and capital requirements of the Group and
the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.
The Company’s distribution of dividends shall also be subject
to any restrictions under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands and the Articles as well as all applicable laws, rules and
regulations.

The dividend policy will be reviewed from time to time. The
dividend policy allows the Board to declare special dividends
from time to time in addition to the interim and/or annual
dividends. There is no guarantee that any particular amount of
dividends will be distributed for any specific periods.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

90

Procedures for convening an extraordinary general
meeting and putting forward proposals

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Company’s Articles,
any one or more shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholder(s)”) holding, at the date of deposit of the
requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company having the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company can deposit a written request to
convene an extraordinary general meeting (“EGM”) for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition
to the Board or the Company Secretary at Head Office
of the Company at 10/F, Wing On House, 71 Des Voeux
Road Central, Central, Hong Kong. Shareholders can also
put forward proposal(s) at general meetings in the same
manner.

The Company will verify the request with the Company’s
branch share registrar in Hong Kong and upon their
confirmation that the request is proper and in order,
the Board will be asked to convene an EGM by serving
sufficient notice to all Shareholders in accordance with the
requirements set out in the Listing Rules and the Articles.

Such EGM shall be held within two months after the
deposit of the requisition. If within 21 days of such
deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene an EGM,
the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the
same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall
be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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. Procedures for sending enquiries to the Board

Shareholders are welcome to send in any written enquiries
to the Board for the attention of the Company Secretary
by post to the head office of the Company at 10/F, Wing
On House, 71 Des Voeux Road Central, Central, Hong
Kong. The Company Secretary would direct the enquiries
received to appropriate Board Member(s) or the Chairman
of the Board Committee(s) who is in charge of the areas of
concern referred therein for further handling. The Board,
assisted by the Company Secretary, would make its best
efforts to ensure that all such enquiries are addressed in a
timely manner.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

In order to develop and maintain a continuing investors’
relationship with the Company’s shareholders, the Company has
compiled a Shareholders Communication Policy and established
various channels of communication with its shareholders, such
as publication of interim and annual reports, press releases
and announcements of the latest development of the Company
in a timely manner. The annual general meetings provide an
opportunity for shareholders to exchange views with the Board.
Moreover, resolutions are proposed at annual general meetings
on each substantially separate issue, including the election of
individual Directors and details of the proposed resolutions are
set out in a circular.

The financial and other information relating to the
Group has been published on the websites of the
HKEXnews (https:/www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company
(https://www.bsgroup.com.hk).
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The Board of Directors is pleased to present their report
together with the audited consolidated financial statements of
the Group for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding,
while the principal activity of the Group is the provision of
financial services, including securities broking, margin financing,
commodities & futures broking, bullion trading and leveraged
foreign exchange trading.

ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

Details of the analysis of the Group’s revenue and profit for the
Year contributed by operating segments are set out in note 12 to
the financial statements of this annual report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group’s business during the Year, which includes
a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing by
the Group, an analysis of the Group’s financial key performance,
particulars of important events affecting the Group during the
Year, and an indication of likely future developments in the
Group’s business, can be found in the Management Discussion
and Analysis set out on pages 31 to 53 and the environmental
policies can be found in the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report on pages 61 to 72 of this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the Year, as far as the Board and management are
aware, there was no material breach of or non-compliance
with the applicable laws and regulations by the Group that has
a significant impact on the businesses and operations of the
Group.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

The Group’s success depends on the support from key
stakeholders including employees and customers.

The Group provides a harmonious working environment to
employees and ensures all of them are reasonably remunerated.
The Company regularly reviews and updates its policies on
remuneration and benefits, training as well as occupational
health and safety.

The Group has the mission to provide excellent customer service
while maintaining long term profitability and business growth.
The Group pays close attention to various stakeholders and
maintains frequent communication with them, with a view to fully
understanding and listening to their appeals and making positive
responses based on the actual circumstances of the Group.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The profit and affairs of the Group for the Year are set out in the
financial statements on pages 118 to 211 of this annual report.

FINAL DIVIDENDS

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of
13.0 HK cents per share for the year ended 31 March 2021,
subject to the approval of the final dividend by the Company’s
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting (“AGM”)
to be held on Wednesday, 18 August 2021. If approved, the
final dividend will be paid to the Company’s shareholders on
Thursday, 9 September 2021. Shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on
Thursday, 26 August 2021 will be entitled to the proposed final
dividend.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS FOR
ENTITLEMENT TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT
THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed, for the
purpose of determining shareholders’ entitlement to attend and
vote at the AGM, from Thursday, 12 August 2021 to Wednesday,
18 August 2021 (both days inclusive), during this period no
transfer of shares will be registered. In order to attend and
vote at the AGM, shareholders should ensure that all transfer
documents, accompanied by the relevant share certificates,
are lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong
Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration, not
later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 11 August 2021. The AGM
will be held on Wednesday, 18 August 2021.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS FOR
ENTITLEMENT TO THE PROPOSED FINAL
DIVIDEND

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed, for
the purpose of determining shareholders’ entitlement to the
proposed final dividend, from Tuesday, 24 August 2021 to
Thursday, 26 August 2021 (both days inclusive), during this
period no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to qualify
for the proposed final dividend, shareholders should ensure
that all transfer documents, accompanied by the relevant share
certificates, are lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level
54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for
registration, not later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 23 August
2021.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company
are set out in note 26(c) to the financial statements of this annual
report.
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DISTRIBUTABILITY OF RESERVE

The reserves of the Company are distributable to the equity
shareholders subject to the provisions of the Company’s
Memorandum and Articles of Association and provided that
immediately following the distribution the Company is able to
pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

At 31 March 2021, the aggregate amount of reserves available
for distribution to equity shareholders of the Company was
HK$746,407,000 (2020: HK$740,569,000).

DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the Year
amounted to HK$395,000 (2020: HK$2,280,000).

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five years ended 31 March 2021 are set out in the “Five-
year Financial Summary” section on page 212 of this annual
report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association or the relevant laws of the
Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to its existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S SHARES

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Apart from those disclosed in the “Share Option Scheme” below,
no equity-linked agreements were entered into during the Year
or subsisted at end of the Year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company conditionally approved and adopted a share
option scheme (the “Scheme”) on 4 August 2010. The Scheme
was effective for 10 years from 25 August 2010 and hence it
expired on 24 August 2020. During the Year, the Company did
not adopt any new share option scheme and no share options
were granted, exercised, lapsed or cancelled pursuant to the
Scheme.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 March 2021
are set out in note 19 to the financial statements of this annual
report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS

During the Year, the percentage of the Group’s revenue
attributable to the Group’s largest client and the five largest
clients in aggregate were 0.7% and 2.8% (2020: 1.9% and
6.0% respectively) respectively. The Group’s principal activities
are providing securities, commodities and futures brokerage,
margin financing, bullion trading and leveraged foreign exchange
trading financial services. In the Board’s opinion, the Group has
no major suppliers due to the nature of the Group’s principal
activities.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, during the Year, none
of the Directors nor any of their close associates nor any
shareholders of the Company (which to the best knowledge of
the Directors, who owns more than 5% of the number of issued
shares of the Company) had any interest in any of the Group’s
five largest customers.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at 31 March 2021, none of the Directors is interested in any
business, apart from the Group’s businesses, which competes
or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
businesses of the Group.

RETIREMENT SCHEME

The Group has a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme. Particulars
of the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme is set out in note 24 to
the financial statements of this annual report.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The primary goal of our policy for remuneration packages is
to ensure that the Directors are fairly rewarded and that they
receive appropriate incentives to maintain high standards of
performance.

Employees’ remuneration are determined in accordance with
individual’s responsibility, competence and skills, experiences,
performance and market pay level.

Details of the Director’s emoluments and the five highest paid

individuals of the Group for the Year are set out in notes 9 and
10 to the financial statements of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the Year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Yip Mow Lum (Chairman)
Mr. Hui Yik Bun (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Chan Wing Shing, Wilson

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Yu Yun Kong
Mr. Szeto Wai Sun
Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph

In accordance with Article 108 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Chan Wing Shing, Wilson and Mr. Yu Yun Kong
will, retire by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The biographical details of the Directors and senior management
of the Company as at the date of this annual report are set out in
the “Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” section
on pages 54 to 60 of this annual report.

ES

RAFERBEEARERY  ARBZEER:

BITES:

REMEEEE)
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REMAEE
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE AGREEMENTS

No Director offering for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company or
its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the employing
company within one year without payment of compensation
other than statutory compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, every
Director shall be indemnified out of the assets of the Company
from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages
and expenses which he/she shall or may incur or sustain by
reason of any act done or about the execution of their duty or
otherwise in relation thereto. In addition, the Group has arranged
appropriate insurance covers relevant legal actions against the
directors. The level of such insurance coverage is reviewed
annually.

INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Connected
Transactions/Continuing Connected Transactions” and
“Material Related Party Transactions” as set out in note 30 to
the consolidated financial statement in this annual report, no
transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which the
Company or its holding companies or controlling shareholders
or any of its respective subsidiaries was a party and in which
a Director or an entity connected with a Director is or was
materially interested, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the Year or at any time during the Year.

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Connected
Transactions/Continuing Connected Transactions” and
“Material Related Party Transactions” as set out in note 30 to
the consolidated financial statement in this annual report, no
contract of significance (i) between the Company (or any of
its subsidiaries) and its controlling shareholder (or any of its
subsidiaries); or (i) for the provision of services to the Company
(or any of its subsidiaries) by its controlling shareholder (or any of
its subsidiaries) subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time
during the Year.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS/CONTINUING BEXS BHEBERS
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

1. Tenancy Agreements 1. HEH=R
AEEBWERMEP)EETHEEATEIE
THEWR  LWEHEHEBK ETARR
BTAEE2HERAERS

The Group had entered into several tenancy agreements
(as the tenant) with some connected persons, which
constituted continuing connected transactions of the
Group under the Listing Rules:

Transaction

(Note 1)

Tenancy made on 3 January 2019
(monthly rental: HK$1,142,000)

R-E-NE-R=BiuzRH
(B7#:1,142,000% )

Tenancy made on 3 January 2019
(monthly rental: HK$430,000)

RZE-NE-R=RITLZEY
(A - 430,000% )

Tenancy made on 3 January 2019
(monthly rental: HK$240,000)

RZE-NE-R=RITLZEY
(A 240,000% 7T)

Tenancy made on 3 January 2019
(monthly rental: HK$180,000)

RZE-NE-RA=RITLZEY
(A% :180,000% 1)

100

Name of
counterparty
(Note 2)
RaHA Term of agreement
P

EES

Victory Beauty Limited as 1 April 2019 to
the landlord 31 March 2022
ABERARIEAEEE —E-NERA-HE
.y B

Well Point Limited as the 1 April 2019 to

landlord 31 March 2022
AEERAAEAEEY —T-NENA-HEZ
—F--_F=fA=+-H
Sea Magic Limited as the 1 April 2019 to
landlord 31 March 2022
DEERAMEAEE —T-NENA-HEZ
—F--_F=fA=+-H
Top Sunshine 1 April 2019 to
Development Limited as 31 March 2022
the landlord
BRERER AT ZZ-NERA-AZ
fER%x “E-CEZRAZT-R

Amount for
the Year
HK$'000
Address of premises KEESE
LIES B TER
10/F, Wing On House, 13,704
71 Des Voeux Road Central,
Central, Hong Kong
ERTREHET
NEXZEEAE012
Mezzanine Floor, Peter Building, 5,160
58-60 Queen’s Road Central,
13-17 Stanley Street, Central,
Hong Kong
EARRERAER58-60% R
AT EARNEEE
G/F. & Cockloft, Nos. 2,880
141-145 Kwong Fuk Road, Tai
Po, New Territories, Hong Kong
ERMAAEERSE
1411455 30 T R B8
1/F, Golden Hill Commercial 2,160

Building, Nos. 39-41 Argyle
Street, Kowloon, Hong Kong

EENREE £
V-NELUEXKE
1B2E
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Name of Amount for

Transaction counterparty the Year

(Note 1) (Note 2) HK$’000

R Term of agreement Address of premises rEEGHE

, / ifh 8 6F 4 LESE TAR

Tenancy made on 3 January 2019 Fortunate State Limited as 1 April 2019 to The Entrance (at Left Frontage) of 10,332
(monthly rental: HK$861,000) the landlord 31 March 2022 Portion A1 of Shops Nos. 6, 7

and 8 on G/F, M/F and 1/F of
Honour House, Nos. 375-381
& 375A-379A Nathan Road, No.
24 Kansu Street and Nos. 2-10
Woosung Street, Kowloon
RIE-NE-AZBiIuzB% RAERAFIEAEEY _—T-NENA-BZE  NEBEHES75-381K375A-379A
(A7 :861,000% ) ZEIZEZRET-B OB HEHURRRDE2105
SEAES  TRSHHBAHA
FEEZANSS  BEZER

—B2E
Tenancy made on 3 January 2019 Peaceful Smart Limited 1 April 2019 to Rooms 2301 & 2302 on 23/F., Wing 9,420
(monthly rental: HK$785,000) as the landlord 31 March 2022 On House, 71 Des Voeux Road
Central, Central, Hong Kong
RZZE-NF-A=RiTuzfs BETERAR E-NENA-RE  BETEREHEMR
(A7 :785,000% 1) fER%E ZEIZEZREt-H KREBKRESE
2301 2302F
Tenancy made on 3 January 2019 Realmate Limited as the 1 April 2019 to 5th to 9th floor and Roof, 79 Pok Fu 6,600
(monthly rental: HK$550,000) landlord 31 March 2022 Lam Road, Hong Kong
RIZE-NF-AZBiTuzfs BEEBRLAEAEE —T-NENA-HZ  BEIRMETRSZ0E2EEXRS
(A7 :550,000% 7T) ZEZZF=R=+-H
Tenancy made on 3 January 2019 Great Challenge Limited as 1 April 2019 to Car Parking Space Nos. 1, 2, 3, 4, 238
(monthly rental: HK$ $19,800) the landlord 31 March 2022 5, & 5S on Lower Ground Floor

of Floral Tower, Nos. 1-9 Mosque
Street, Hong Kong
RIZ-NE-A=BiTuzff SEERAFEAEE ZT-NERA-HE FAEERMEISRRMTEE

(R7:19,800% ) ZEZZF=R=+t-H 1:2-3-4 5R5SHZBEM
TOTAL 50,494
@t
Notes: HBiat -
1. Monthly rental was exclusive of management fees, 1. AETEEEES WHEREM-

government rent and rates.

2. Each an associate of Mr. Yip Mow Lum (“Mr. Yip”), 2. EEEARARBER BITEEFHRERK
Chairman, executive Director and controlling shareholder of REEMEE(EEENDZBHEA-
the Company.

3. The annual cap for the Year was HK$53,110,000. 3. ARFEEZFE LR A537110,000% T °
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2.

102

Financial Services Agreements

Name of connected person

BEALER

Mr. Yip and his associates, together as

“Mr. Yip's Group”
EREREBEA
SEIELEEE]

Mr. Hui Yik Bun (“Mr. Hui") and his
associates

HEWEE(HFEEIREBEA

Mr. Chan Wing Shing, Wilson
(“Mr. Chan”) and his associates,
together as “Mr. Chan’s Group”

RAAAE(REEDREBEA

GRIRELEE)

Mr. Yu Yun Kong (“Mr. Yu") and his
associates

RABEE(REENREBEA

Mr. Szeto Wai Sun ("Mr. Szeto”) and his

associates

AEAREL(AREENREREA

Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph
(“Mr. Ling”) and his associates
EABTE(EREIREBEA

Annual cap

FELR

IPO Annual Cap
BRDREEFE LR
Margin Annual Cap
FREE LR

IPO Annual Cap
BRDAZEFELR
Margin Annual Cap
RFREE LR

IPO Annual Cap
BRDRAZEEFELR
Margin Annual Cap
HFREE LR

IPO Annual Cap
BRDREEFELR
Margin Annual Cap
FREE LR

IPO Annual Cap
BERDREEEE LR
Margin Annual Cap
FREE LR

IPO Annual Cap
BRDREEFELR
Margin Annual Cap
FREE LR

Amount for

HK$'000

EELREE

TAL

4,000,000

1,000,000

100,000

10,000

20,000

10,000

20,000

10,000

20,000

10,000

20,000

10,000

2.

the annual cap Payment from/

to the Group
rEEEH/
AFAEEZEH

Advance from the Group
AEEZER

Advance from the Group
REEZBR

Interest paid to the Group
INFREEZHE

Advance from the Group
REEZBR

Advance from the Group
REEZBR

Interest paid to the Group
XNFAEEZHE

Advance from the Group
REEZBR

Advance from the Group
REEZBR

Interest paid to the Group
XNFAEEZHE

Advance from the Group
REEZBR

Advance from the Group
FREZBH

Interest paid to the Group
XNFAEEZHE

Advance from the Group
AREZBH

Advance from the Group
AEEZBH

Interest paid to the Group
XNFAEEZHE

Advance from the Group
REEZBR

Advance from the Group
REEZBR

Interest paid to the Group
XNFAEEZHE

& B AR A% 5 R

Maximum
amount for
the Year
HK$'000
rEE
EaeH
THL
2,199,023

593,019

8,045

1,363

4,126

49

5,227

282

Amount for
the Year
HK$'000
rEELH
FATL

9,437

61
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Note:

Mr. Yip, Mr. Hui and Mr. Chan are executive Directors of the
Company. Mr. Yu, Mr. Szeto and Mr. Ling are independent non-
executive Directors of the Company. Mr. Chan is a nephew of Mr.
Yip.

3. Brokerage Services Agreements

The aggregate amount of brokerage commission income
paid by the relevant connected persons for the brokerage
services provided by the Group for the Year are set out as
below:

Name of connected person
MEATHS

Mr. Yip’s Group
EEESHE

Mr. Chan’s Group
PREEKHE

BABLEREBERAR | —T T/ ——FFR

g
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RELE  RAIERERELRERKNRRBILIEHR
TEE - BREEREEEZING -

R IR 1 R
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Amount for

Annual Cap the Year
HK$’000 HK$’000
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T TT FET
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103



Directors’ Report
EEERE

104

Annual review of the continuing connected
transactions

The independent non-executive Directors had reviewed the
above continuing connected transactions and confirmed
that the transactions were:

(@) entered into in the ordinary and usual course of
business of the Group;

(b) conducted on normal commercial terms or on terms
no less favorable to the Group than terms available to
or from independent third parties; and

() entered into in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of
the Company as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the
Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information”
and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter
on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued his
unqualified letter containing his findings and conclusions in
respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed
by the Group in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing
Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided
by the Company to The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

FEBERZZFEEX

BUYFNITEZCER LIBERERS
WHERZERXS:

(a) AEBEZEER—REHBEPE

k2

b) BR—BEBEEKXIBRTERAEE
RTHREBUE=TT ZIGRFETT
I54

0 WREMBIZHHEELET HEXAF
BERNEARTBRRERNE Z1&

Eon
A °

ARBZEBMCERE  UREBEBEBER
B2 R 300058 (RERNIEL MK E
MESAHBHAINERER] Y2RE
BB A B M2 B R E7405% [ #
REB(ETRADAAFEBEIZNZ
BN IR ARBE 2B EREIZEH
W& o RIBE WA AFE14A56(F - X BUAD
ERAKEMRBRBEZREREISELH
BEBRESHERNEWIEREBR KM -
ARBEMELHARHAARRHE (B
ZXFTD) R SR AZ BREM K 1 B
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the material related party transactions undertaken
by the Group in its normal course of business are set out in
note 30 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual
report. Those related party transactions which constituted
connected transactions/continuing connected transactions
under the Listing Rules, which are set out in the section headed
“Connected Transactions/Continuing Connected Transactions”
on pages 100 to 104 of this annual report, have complied with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. However, certain transactions
are exempt from the disclosure requirements in Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules as they are (i) below the de minimis threshold
under Rule 14A.76(1) or (i) financial assistances received on
normal commercial terms and were fair and reasonable and
were for the benefit of the Group and no security over the assets
of the Group was granted in respect of those transactions under
Rule 14A.90.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
THE DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OF THE COMPANY IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
OF THE COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As at 31 March 2021, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ”)) as recorded in
the register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”) were as follows:
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Interests in shares of the Company (the “Shares”)

Name of Director

EEns

Nature of interest

EEMEE

RART R (RS 2 S

Long/short
positions

B/ KR

Number of
Shares

BHEE

Approximate
percentage of
the issued
voting Shares
HEBT
RERG
ZHBAEDIH
(%)

Mr. Yip Mow Lum (Note 1) Interest in a controlled  Long position 900,000,000 53.02%
B LR E1) corporation ge
REEERER
Mr. Yip Mow Lum Beneficial owner Long position 183,776,280 10.83%
BRMEE ERBEAA A
Mr. Hui Yik Bun Beneficial owner Long position 600,000 0.03%
TFEWEE ERBEAA e
Mr. Yu Yun Kong Beneficial owner Long position 608,829 0.03%
REM & ERBAA A
Mr. Szeto Wai Sun (Note 2) Beneficiary of trust Long position 631,666 0.03%
A E 4 5 ok & (fY it 2) FRXaEA e
Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph Beneficial owner Long position 210,700 0.01%

EEES AL

Notes:

ESBEAA

e

900,000,000 & 5 T RAZERBR A (E
EEEFBERMEERERBZAREFER -
It EERMEERIB(EFRBEEN) WA B
RZEROTPHEBEE -

1. 900,000,000 Shares were held by New Charming Holdings 1.
Limited, a company wholly owned by Mr. Yip Mow Lum, the
Chairman of the Board. Therefore, Mr. Yip Mow Lum is deemed to
be interested in these Shares by virtue of the SFO.

BE(GEERBEEG (FAEEZHEA
BYRTESARHETLEREAERNZS
631,666 0% % {7 # B # 25 ©

2. As a beneficiary of a trust, Mr. Szeto Wai Sun, an independent 2.
non-executive Director, is deemed to be interested in those
631,666 Shares by virtue of the SFO.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2021, none of the
Directors or the chief executive of the Company had any
interest or short positions in any Shares, underlying Shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE
PARTIES OTHER THAN DIRECTORS OR
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OF THE COMPANY IN
THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 March 2021, the parties (other than Directors or chief
executive of the Company) who had interests or short positions
in the Shares and underlying Shares as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of
the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange are as follows:

Nature of interest
EaitE
Beneficial owner

BEalBA

Name of Shareholder

BRRES

New Charming Holdings Limited (Note)
HRAERERDR (M T) )
Note:

900,000,000 Shares were held by New Charming Holdings Limited,
a company wholly owned by Mr. Yip Mow Lum, the chairman of the
Board. Therefore, Mr. Yip Mow Lum is deemed to have an interest in
these Shares.

BABLEREBERAR | —T T/ ——FFR

Long/short positions

/%R

Long position

BREXHBEEEN R_T_—F=A=1t—
B ARAZREFHHZSTBRAEBMEEALRT]
o HAE AR AE (R(GEHZRBMEHEMD)EXV
mAriE 2 ER) 2EMRD - BERDRESS
BEEMBRAIAR  MAEERDZIAREN
ARARECE 7N BB GO E35218 5 E A
BRZECMALE  AREFLETICAE
ARBMBZ Az EmIAE -

RRARESHABRSTHRAEUNL
RADBR G R HEER D <& &8 R K

)=

RZEZ—F=ZA=+—H ARRAEZHHES
TTHRABUAIATRBRORBERDHES
THRENIAR MZEEIIABRERARF
RIBE(EAE R EIEG)EIGIERTEEAEBERTZ
ZRMAREE  KESTME ARG RBRAT
AR

Number of
Shares and

Approximate
percentage of
underlying the issued
Shares voting Shares
BROBER HERTRERS
HERGHE ZBHEI

900,000,000 53.02%

Kt -
900,000,000k IR BT RAERER AR (EEEE

FEEMELEZEERZARFEE - Bl - XM
TEHRARZERD D HEA R -
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2021, none of the
parties (other than the Directors or chief executive of the
Company) had any interest or short position in the Shares or
underlying Shares as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Option
Scheme” in this annual report, at no time during the Year was
the Company, its holding company or any of their subsidiaries,
a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures
of, the Company or any other body corporate.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Board of Directors,
as at the date of this annual report, there has been sufficient
public float of more than 25% of the Company’s issued shares
as required under the Listing Rules.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the Year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company are set out in the “Corporate Governance Report”
section on pages 73 to 91 of this annual report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to discharging its corporate social
responsibility as well as protecting the environment by
minimizing the negative impact of the Group’s existing business
activities on the environment. Details of which are set out in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report on pages 61 to
72 of this annual report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE
OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers all of the independent non-executive Directors are
independent.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
have been audited by Messrs. KPMG, who will retire at the
conclusion of the forthcoming annual general meeting. Messrs.
KPMG, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-appointment.
A resolution for the re-appointment of Messrs. KPMG Certified
Public Accountants, as the independent auditor of the Company
will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

PROFESSIONAL TAX ADVICE
RECOMMENDED

If the shareholders of the Company are unsure about the
taxation implications of purchasing, holding, disposing of,
dealing in, or the exercise of any rights in relation to the shares
of the Company, they are advised to consult an expert.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE ACCOUNTS

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of
accounts for each financial period, which gives a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the results and
cash flows for that period. In preparing the accounts for the
year ended 31 March 2021, the Board of Directors has selected
suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently,
made judgments and estimates that are prudent and
reasonable, and has prepared the accounts on a going concern
basis. The Board of Directors is responsible for keeping proper
accounting records which disclose, with reasonable accuracy at
any time, the financial position of the Group.

On behalf of the Board

Hui Yik Bun
Executive Director & Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong
28 June 2021
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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e

To the shareholders of
Bright Smart Securities & Commodities Group Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Bright
Smart Securities & Commodities Group Limited (“the Company”)
and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages 118 to
211, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2021, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 March 2021 and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’'s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code”) together with any ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated
financial statements in the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Revenue recognition: Brokerage commission income

Refer to note 4 to the consolidated financial statements and the
accounting policies on page 154.

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
Brokerage commission income represented Our audit procedures to assess the recognition
62% of the total revenue of the Group for the of brokerage commission income included the
year ended 31 March 2021. following:
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Brokerage commission income arising from
brokerage trading of securities, commodities
and futures is recognised on a trade date
basis. Where the customer is given rights
to additional discounted or free services in
the future as a result of paying brokerage
commission, an appropriate amount of the
brokerage commission income is deferred
and recognised when those material rights
are utilised by the customers or expire.
Other commission income subject to
volume rebate arrangements is recognised
once it is highly probable that a significant
reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur.

We identified the recognition of brokerage
commission income as a key audit
matter because revenue is one of the key
performance indicators of the Group and
therefore there is an inherent risk that the
timing of recognition of revenue could be
manipulated to meet specific targets or
expectations.

112

assessing the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of key internal
controls relating to revenue recognition.
For the key underlying systems used for
the processing of transactions in relation to
the brokerage commission income, trading
volumes, commission rates and volume
rebates, this included involving our information
technology specialists to assess the design,
implementation and operating effectiveness
of a selection of relevant key internal controls
over access to these systems and controls
over data and change management;

developing an expectation of brokerage
commission income and deferred revenue for
the current year based on our consideration
of trading volumes, commission rates and
historical data, comparing our expectation
with the actual brokerage commission income
recorded by the Group and investigating
any significant differences between our
expectation and the amounts recorded by the
Group;

performing retrospective review on the material
rights estimated to be utilised by customers
by comparing estimates against the Group’s
internal records, our prior year records and
other factors, if any; and

comparing details of journal entries raised during
the current year which affected revenue with
underlying documentation on a sample basis.

MELRERARRHRHEER
R MEPRXNBLAEMER
TENRBRZRRITNALE
R BELRerEEL Rk
B YNEFTIEASEAR
LEFHERD  ZeREHA
FRABENZH  RBAWR
TeROABCHAZMRAL
BEERD -

AMCRELReRARR A
BRRESEE —ERERA
B BREBRZEEE R
EREMAZBRZHTERE
BRARRETRBAHZZEAR

Bo
A

B 2R BHRRESR
it SRAREERELR
SRABELRS  X5E -
SERRABRMCBREARZ
% ZBHARMANES RN
EXRF-RIRBAERN
B 2R BHRRESR
wit BRALFZR A
RHBEREREE 224

IMRBHAER LSS A
ERELERNANHELL

BERARERRA L BHH
B LHRAMHEREER B
SECH ERALASUA
AAAMERESR SRER
BeeR ANERER:

Lﬂﬂﬂﬁﬁ%%ﬁ E£E

EE Al &@ﬁﬁ&ﬁ
MH%M@)L&&J%?%
TRz EXER: R

BELBAEEY ERLERT
WAZ &2 EHERREX
R

Bright Smart Securities & Commodities Group Limited | Annual Report 2020/21



Independent Auditor’s Report

BYZBARE

Valuation of accounts receivable from margin clients

Refer to notes 16 and 28 to the consolidated financial
statements and the accounting policies on pages 170 to 173 and

pages 190 to 2083.

The Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

At 31 March 2021 accounts receivable from Our audit procedures to assess the valuation of

margin clients
representing 68% of
assets.

The Group classified accounts receivable
from margin clients as financial assets
measured at fair value through profit or loss
(‘FVPL).

Margin clients are required to pledge
securities as collateral in order to obtain
credit facilities for securities trading.
The amount of credit facilities granted to
margin clients is determined based on the
discounted value of securities accepted by
the Group as collateral.

Management exercises judgement in
estimating the fair value of accounts
receivable from margin clients based on
collateral valuation. Management assessed
the value of collateral held at the reporting
date, which principally comprised listed
securities, with reference to quoted prices.

In cases of collateral shortfalls, management
will also consider other factors such as
available remedies for recovery and the
financial situation of the borrower.

We identified assessing valuation of
accounts receivable from margin clients as a
key audit matter because of its significance
in the context of the Group’s financial
statements.
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totalled HK$10,805 million, accounts receivable from margin clients included
the Group’s total the following:

understanding and assessing the design,
implementation and operating effectiveness
of the key internal controls over the approval,
recording and monitoring of accounts
receivable from margin clients and collateral
shortfalls and valuation assessment
procedures. For the key underlying systems
used for the processing of transactions in
relation to accounts receivable from margin
clients, this included involving our information
technology specialists to assess the design,
implementation and operating effectiveness
of a selection of relevant key internal controls
over access to these systems and controls
over data and change management;

assessing the valuation of accounts receivable
from margin clients by comparing the carrying
value of underlying securities as recorded
in the margin shortfall report with publicly
available market prices on a sample basis;

assessing the existence of collateral by
comparing underlying securities held as
collateral as extracted from the Group’s
records with custodian statements from
brokers or clearing houses on a sample basis;
and

assessing the disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements with reference to the
requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards.
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’'s report that includes our opinion.
This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.
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° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence and, where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.
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From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Ko Sze Man.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

28 June 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HE_T-_—F=ZA=+—BLEFECAETIR)

Revenue A 4 1,285,201 864,017
Other income E b U &5 5 243,395 239,503
Other net gain/(loss) Hh e as /(B H8)F 8 6 32,904 (20,270)
1,561,500 1,083,250

Staff costs BT A 7(b) (152,895) (127,472)
Amortisation and depreciation BHELITE (79,519) (89,635)
Other operating expenses HEmgEMx 7(c) (272,675) (199,054)
Profit from operations BEEHF 1,056,411 667,089
Finance costs B 75 B AR 7(a) (239,223) (138,178)
Profit before taxation R Bt A& R 7 817,188 528,911
Income tax B 15 4 8 (113,283) (57,933)
Profit for the year FRRA 703,905 470,978
Other comprehensive income for SR EMZHEWE :

the year:
ltems that may be reclassified Higrge a8 E

subsequently to profit or loss B=mrIEE

— Exchange reserve — EHFHE (293) 233
Total comprehensive income EERRELFAZE

attributable to equity Wi R

shareholders for the year 703,612 471,211
Earnings per share BEREF
Basic (cents) E 7R () 11 41.47 27.75
Diluted (cents) e () 11 41.47 27.75

The notes on pages 124 to 211 form part of these financial
statements. Details of dividends declared for the year are set out

in note 26(b).
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
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At 31 March 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
RZZBEZ—F=A=+—BUABTITR)

Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y BB REE 13 106,516 159,826
Intangible assets EEE 14 5,783 5,783
Deferred tax assets BELEHIREE 25(b) 268 122
Other receivables, deposits and Hip el siE - e &

prepayments TET SR IE 17 3,822 16,944
Other non-current assets HMIEREBEE 15 78,429 77,715
Total non-current assets _ : *RBEESE 194818 260,390 _
Current assets REBEE
Accounts receivable JiE I BR 3R 16 15,139,668 5,644,787
Other receivables, deposits and HiEWHE  Zek

prepayments AT R IE 17 26,063 26,441
Amount due from a related company & Uz — 5 B8 B 2 5 50IE 3 =
Financial assets at fair value through XA FEFFAE R 2

profit or loss = 70,593 48,539
Financial assets at amortised cost HEEK AT ECEREE 7,787 =
Tax recoverable Al AR B 75 18 25(a) 972 1,321
Cash and cash equivalents e RkBReEEY 18(a) 418,483 477,657
Total currentassets ~ #“BEE®E 15,663,569 6,198,745
Current liabilities REaE
Accounts payable FE 5 BR 3K 20 2,061,356 1,301,268
Accrued expenses and other payables & 5T 5 & & £ {th f& (- 7018 21 103,417 65,071
Amount due to a related company B —RE B AR IAE - 200,136
Bank loans RITER 22 11,436,038 2,858,789
Lease liabilities HEBE 23 61,141 59,845
Current taxation BN EARE 18 25(a) 57,764 5,378
Total current liabilites ~ #®&af@E#A® 0 13,719,716 4,490,487
Netcurrentassets = #"&8&EEFE 1,943,853 1,708,258
Total assets less current liabilites ¥EZREBRABAS/ 2,138,671 1,968,648
Non-current liabilities knBEE
Accrued expenses and other payables [& 5 5 52 & E b & (< 20 21 1,431 7,238
Lease liabilities HEAR 23 6,565 59,104
Total non-current liabilities EREBBERRE 7,996 66,342
NET ASSETS EEFE 2,130,675 1,902,306
BIR5SmEBRERAE | — -/ —_—FFK 119



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
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At 31 March 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
RZZBEZ—F=A=+—HUABTITR)

EQUITY =

Share capital [N 26 509,189 509,189
Share premium % 9 &= (B 26 738,020 738,020
Exchange reserve EHEE 26 205 498
Merger reserve B HEE 26 (20,000) (20,000)
Retained profits IR 8 & 26 903,261 674,599
TOTAL EQUITY ERAE 2,130,675 1,902,306

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on KEFEeRN _ZT-_—F XA+ N\ B ELEE
28 June 2021, F g -

Directors

5=

Yip Mow Lum Hui Yik Bun
ERM FEW

The notes on pages 124 to 211 form part of these financial SF124E211B 2 W BRI EH B RERE P

4N o

statements. 7]
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 March 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HE_ZT-_—F=ZA=1+—BLEFECAETIR)

Share Share  Exchange Merger Retained
capital premium reserve reserve profits  Total equity
& R4 % E B XA REEF ERAR
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tr T T T T T
At 1 April 2019 RZZE-LEMA-A 509,189 738,020 265 (20,000) 1,695,816 2,923,290
First adoption of HKFRS 16 BARBEAMBRE
£ E16% - - - - (1,969) (1,969)
Adjusted balance at 1 April 2019 RZZE-NENA—-H
ARRER 509,189 738,020 265 (20,000) 1,693,847 2,921,321
Changes in equity for the year ended HE-E-Zf
31 March 2020: =A=t+-HL
FEZEEED:
Profit for the year ERET - - - - 470,978 470,978
Other comprehensive income E2EkE - - 233 - = 233
Total comprehensive income FREENELEE
for the year - - 233 - 470,978 471,211
Dividend paid during the year FRRMHRE 26(0) = = - —  (1490,226)  (1,490,226)
At 31 March 2020 R-ZZ-EF
ZA=+-H 509,189 738,020 498 (20,000) 674,599 1,902,306
At 1 April 2020 RZE-SEMA-H 509,189 738,020 498 (20,000) 674,599 1,902,306
Changes in equity for the year ended HEZ-F=—%
31 March 2021: ZA=t-8Lt
FEVERED:
Profit for the year ERREF - - - - 703,905 703,905
Other comprehensive income 2 mbE - - (293) - - (293)
Total comprehensive income FRE2ENRAE
for the year - - (293) - 703,905 703,612
Dividend paid during the year FRRMHRE 26(0) - - - - (475,243) (475,243)
At 31 March 2021 R-B--%
=ZRA=1+-H 509,189 738,020 205 (20,000) 903,261 2,130,675

The notes on pages 124 to 211 form part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
GERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HE-Z - F=ZA=+—HLEFEUABTIIR)

Operating activities R SEE

Cash (used in)/generated from operations &4 %% (FiA), /FiBIR4E  18(b) (7,680,611) 2,297,392
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid ENEENER (60,694) (44,596)
Net cash (used in)/generated from BESEE (FTH) /FisR$

__operating activites  ®& (7,741,305) LSz
Investing activities RETE

Purchase of financial assets at amortised BEEIR#BEKATEZ S

cost B & E (7,789) =
Purchase of financial assets at fair value BEZAFEFABZZE

through profit or loss B & E (333,101) (108,317)
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets &R AFEFAEBR 2

at fair value through profit or loss Bh & E TS BB 321,150 66,452
Payment for purchase of property, BEYE BEX

plant and equipment BLENEN (16,721) (4,936)
Dividend received 2 AR & 21 214
Interest received B Uk B 93,195 167,326
Net cash generated from investing RETBFREREFE

activities 56,755 120,739
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
LERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2021 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HE_ZT-_—F=ZA=1+—BLEFECAETIR)

Financing activities mMESEE
Capital element of lease rentals paid ENHERS CEARLS (60,456) (70,244)
Interest element of lease rentals paid =EN] Tﬂ ElHe 2 EHD (2,491) (3,838)
Net proceeds from /(repayment of) BITERBREFRE

bank loans (5@ TOFER) 8,571,666 (582,204)
(Repayment of)/proceeds from amount due &t —RIE: A F (GB),/

to a related company Fr 18 s 18 (200,136) 60
Dividend paid B E (475,243) (1,490,226)
Interest paid 2 F B (236,732) (134,340)
Net cash generated from/(used in) BEEEFTE(FTR) RS

financing activities F 7,596,608 (2,280,792)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and iﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%

cash equivalents W), 1 hn 5 (87,942) 92,743

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April AREA—-BZRER

REEEY 477,657 401,254
Effect of foreign exchange rates EXEE &
changes 28,768 (16,340)
Cash and cash equivalents at R=ZA=+—H=ZzHREE
31 March HeEZEEY 18(a) 418,483 477,657

The notes on pages 124 to 211 form part of these financial F124Z211E 2T EXIEHBEREREP I
statements. e
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% #R R B &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B BEBAN - AETIIR)

124

GENERAL INFORMATION

Bright Smart Securities & Commodities Group Limited
(“the Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman lIslands
on 4 August 2009 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of
1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands.
The registered office of the Company is P.O. Box 31119
Grand Pavilion, Hibiscus Way, 802 West Bay Road, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1205, Cayman lIslands. The consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (together
referred to as the “Group”).

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The principal activities and other particulars
of its subsidiaries are set out in note 19 to the financial
statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective
term includes all applicable individual HKFRSs,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), and
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. Significant accounting policies adopted
by the Group are disclosed below.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B & SRR M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B % & 5= A5
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F A TTEIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance (Continued)

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments to
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the
Group. Note 3 provides information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial application
of these developments to the extent that they are
relevant to the Group for the current accounting
period reflected in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

The measurement basis used in the preparation of
the financial statements is the historical cost basis,
except that certain financial instruments are stated
at their fair value in accordance with the accounting
policy set out below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs require management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the year in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that year, or in the year of the revision and future
years if the revision affects both current and future
years.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B IS RAR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(©)

Basis of consolidation

(i)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the
Group. The Group controls an entity when it is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over
the entity. When assessing whether the Group
has power, only substantive rights (held by the
Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated
into the consolidated financial statements from
the date that control commences until the date
that control ceases. Intra-group balances and
transactions and any unrealised profits arising
from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses resulting from
intra-group transactions are eliminated in the
same way as unrealised gains but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

In the Company’s statement of financial
position, an investment in a subsidiary is stated
at cost less impairment losses (see note 2(h)(ii)
unless the investment is classified as held for
sale.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B & SRR M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(©)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

(ii)

Business combinations involving entities
under common control

The consolidated financial statements
incorporate the financial statements of the
combining entities or businesses as if they
had been combined from the date when the
combining entities or business first came under
the control of the controlling parties.

The net assets of the combining entities or
business are recognised at the carrying values
prior to the common control combination.

The consolidated financial statements include
the results of each of the combining entities
or business from the earliest date presented
or since the date when combining entities or
business first came under the control of the
controlling parties, where this is a shorter
period, regardless of the date of the common
control combination.

The comparative amounts in the consolidated
financial statements are presented as if the
entities or businesses had been combined at
the previous reporting date or when they first
came under control of the controlling parties,
whichever is shorter.
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B TTIIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
(see note 2(h)(ii)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or
disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment
are determined as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
item and are recognised in profit or loss on the date
of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment, less their
estimated residual value, if any, using the straight-line
method over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Over the
Lease term

—  Properties leased for own use

Shorter of the
unexpired term of
lease and 3 years

—  Leasehold improvements

—  Motor vehicles and yacht 5 years
—  Office equipment 5 years
—  Furniture and fixtures 5 years
—  Computers and software 5 years

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value,
if any, are reviewed annually.
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BA IS MR MR
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e)

®

Intangible assets
Intangible assets include club and school debentures.

The intangible assets that are acquired by the Group
are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation
(where the estimated useful life is finite) and
impairment losses (see note 2(h)(ii)). Amortisation
begins when the asset is available for use, i.e. when
it is in the location and condition necessary for it
to be capable of operating in the manner intended.
Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful
lives is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the assets’ estimated useful lives as
follows:

—  Debentures are amortised over the unexpired
term

Intangible assets are not amortised while their useful
lives are assessed to be indefinite. Any conclusion
that the useful life of an intangible asset is indefinite
is reviewed annually to determine whether events
and circumstances continue to support the indefinite
useful life assessment for that asset. If they do
not, the change in the useful life assessment from
indefinite to finite is accounted for prospectively from
the date of change and in accordance with the policy
for amortisation of intangible assets with finite lives as
set out above.

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses
whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration. Control is conveyed where the
customer has both the right to direct the use of the
identified asset and to obtain substantially all of the
economic benefits from that use.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

®

Leased assets (Continued)

As a lessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s) and
non-lease component(s), the Group has elected not
to separate non-lease components and accounts
for each lease component and any associated non-
lease components as a single lease component for all
leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability,
except for short-term leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets
which, for the Group are primarily office furniture.
When the Group enters into a lease in respect of
a low-value asset, the Group decides whether to
capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The
lease payments associated with those leases which
are not capitalised are recognised as an expense on
a systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is
initially recognised at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial recognition,
the lease liability is measured at amortised cost and
interest expense is calculated using the effective
interest method. Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or rate are not included in
the measurement of the lease liability and hence are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

®

Leased assets (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease
is capitalised is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
plus any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any initial direct costs
incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-
of-use assets also includes an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it
is located, discounted to their present value, less
any lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset
is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment.

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising from a
change in an index or rate, or there is a change in
the Group’s estimate of the amount expected to
be payable under a residual value guarantee, or
there is a change arising from the reassessment
of whether the Group will be reasonably certain to
exercise a purchase, extension or termination option.
When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in
profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use
asset has been reduced to zero.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(g) Financial assets and financial liabilities
Investments

Investments held by the Group are classified into one
of the following measurement categories:

amortised cost, if the investment is held for
the collection of contractual cash flows which
represent solely payments of principal and
interest. Interest income from the investment is
calculated using the effective interest method
(see note 2(p)(iii)).

fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVOCI”) — recycling, if the contractual
cash flows of the investment comprise solely
payments of principal and interest and the
investment is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both the
collection of contractual cash flows and
sale. Changes in fair value are recognised in
other comprehensive income, except for the
recognition in profit or loss of expected credit
losses, interest income (calculated using the
effective interest method) and foreign exchange
gains and losses. When the investment is
derecognised, the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income is recycled from equity
to profit or loss.

FVPL if the investment does not meet the
criteria for being measured at amortised
cost or FVOCI (recycling). Changes in the fair
value of the investment (including interest) are
recognised in profit or loss.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)

(i)

BIESETRHEERRAF | —FT_F/

Credit losses and impairment of assets

Credit loss from financial instruments

The Group recognises expected credit losses
allowance (“ECL”) on the following items:

— financial assets measured at amortised
cost (including cash and cash equivalents,
accounts and other receivables, deposits
and prepayments);

— debt securities measured at FVOCI
(recycling); and

— loan commitments issued, which are not
measured at FVPL.

Financial assets measured at fair value,
including units in equity securities measured at
FVPL, equity securities designated at FVOCI
(non — recycling) and derivative financial
assets, are not subject to the ECL assessment.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses. Credit losses are measured as
the present value of all expected cash shortfalls
(i.e. the difference between the cash flows due
to the Group in accordance with the contract
and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i)

Credit loss from financial instruments
(Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

For undrawn loan commitments, expected
cash shortfalls are measured as the difference
between (i) the contractual cash flows that
would be due to the Group if the holder of the
loan commitment draws down on the loan and
(i) the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive if the loan is drawn down.

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted
using the following discount rates where the
effect of discounting is material:

— fixed-rate financial assets, accounts
receivable and other receivables:
effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition or an approximation thereof;

— variable-rate financial assets: current
effective interest rate; and

— loan commitments: current risk-free rate
adjusted for risks specific to the cash
flows.

The maximum period considered when
estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual
period over which the Group is exposed to
credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into
account reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost
or effort. This includes information about past
events, current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=EEBI - LBITIHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(i) Credit loss from financial instruments

(Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

ECLs are measured on either of the following

bases:

— 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from possible default
events within the 12 months after the

reporting date; and

— lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from all possible default
events over the expected lives of the items
to which the ECL model applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables, lease
receivables and contract assets are always
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
ECLs on these financial assets are estimated
using a provision matrix based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
factors that are specific to the debtors and an
assessment of both the current and forecast
general economic conditions at the reporting

date.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i)

Credit loss from financial instruments
(Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

For all other financial instruments (including loan
commitments issued), the Group recognises a
loss allowance equal to 12-month ECLs unless
there has been a significant increase in credit
risk of the financial instrument since initial
recognition, in which case the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of
a financial instrument (including a loan
commitment) has increased significantly since
initial recognition, the Group compares the risk
of default occurring on the financial instrument
assessed at the reporting date with that
assessed at the date of initial recognition. In
making this reassessment, the Group considers
that a default event occurs when (i) the borrower
is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the
Group in full, without recourse by the Group
to actions such as realising security (if any is
held); or (ii) the financial asset is 90 days past
due. The Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort.
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B & SRR M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=EEBI - LBITIHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i) Credit loss from financial instruments
(Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit
risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition:

BrESETRHEEFRAF |

failure to make payments of principal or
interest on their contractually due dates;

an actual or expected significant
deterioration in a financial instrument’s
external or internal credit rating (if
available);

an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of the
debtor; and

existing or forecast changes in the
technological, market, economic or
legal environment that have a significant
adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to
meet its obligation to the Group.
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B TTIIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i)

Credit loss from financial instruments
(Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)
For loan commitments, the date of initial
recognition for the purpose of assessing ECLs
is considered to be the date that the Group
becomes a party to the irrevocable commitment.
In assessing whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition of a
loan commitment, the Group considers changes
in the risk of default occurring on the loan to
which the loan commitment relates.

Depending on the nature of the financial
instruments, the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is performed on either an
individual basis or a collective basis. When the
assessment is performed on a collective basis,
the financial instruments are grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics, such as past
due status and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date
to reflect changes in the financial instrument’s
credit risk since initial recognition. Any change
in the ECL amount is recognised as an
impairment gain or loss in profit or loss. The
Group recognises an impairment gain or loss for
all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a
loss allowance account, except for investments
in debt securities that are measured at FVOCI
(recycling), for which the loss allowance is
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the fair value reserve (recycling).

2

FESTTHES)

(h FEBEREERE®R)

(i)

EMIANFEBRE)

=B E g AIE LT (&)
HREFAEMS  ARFMHE
HEEEBERBZNRERB PR
?ﬂﬁﬂiglﬁkﬁﬂ_—ﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬁ*
ZEIKIAER ° u:F1E :fﬁ
QW%%%TM%FMX%E
AEEFR AEEGEZEHR
ERABERBCERELEEN
ZRABZ B -

FARemTAZED iz
BERBAELEAZTFGETIRE
RS K [F EEET o i
HRAEEETTIER @M T
ANEEREERR S (N5
R R R EERERFTAR) D4 -

RERESEREFFERBARE
é%ﬁ'uﬁﬁiﬂlﬁﬁﬂ
MER AR ZEE R R E

E‘EHM:.T?EEETE %EZTEH’%EJJ
THTA 18 o5 B 58 73 Uk (B UK 28 3K S
1B AEEAE TR TARER
HEWRSNER  WEBER
BERHEHEABRZETIAZE

=

HE HERRAFEFAEMD
2EkE(AEE) 2T AFE

ZEBEFRERIN  EBRE
BENEt2EKSER X
RAFERFE(EE) Rt -

Bright Smart Securities & Commodities Group Limited | Annual Report 2020/21



Notes to the Financial Statements
B & SRR M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B % & 5= A5

F A TTEIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i)

BIESETRHEERRAF | —FT_F/

Credit loss from financial instruments
(Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income on credit-
impaired financial assets

Interest income recognised in accordance with
note 2(p)iii) is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless
the financial asset is credit-impaired, in which
case interest income is calculated based on the
amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount
less loss allowance) of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether a financial asset is credit-impaired. A
financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes the following observable events:

— significant financial difficulties of the
debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

— it becoming probable that the borrower

will enter into bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i)

Credit loss from financial instruments
(Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income on credit-

impaired financial assets (Continued)

— significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on the debtor;
or

— the disappearance of an active market for
a security because of financial difficulties
of the issuer.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset
is written off (either partially or in full) to the
extent that there is no realistic prospect of
recovery. This is generally the case when the
Group determines that the debtor does not have
assets or sources of income that could generate
sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts
subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a
reversal of loss allowance in profit or loss in the
period in which the recovery occurs.
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B & SRR M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=EEBI - LBITIHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(ii) Impairment of other assets
Internal and external sources of information
are reviewed at each reporting date to identify
indications that the following assets may be
impaired or an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased.

property, plant and equipment, including
right-of-use assets;

intangible assets; and

investment in subsidiaries in the Company’s
statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated.

BrESETRHEEFRAF |

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset.
Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from
other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group
of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)

(i)

142

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other assets (Continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss if the carrying amount of an asset,
or the cash-generating unit to which it
belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect
of cash-generating units are allocated to
reduce the carrying amount of the assets
in the unit (or group of units) on a pro
rata basis, except that the carrying value
of an asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs to sell, or
value in use, if determinable.

Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable
amount. A reversal of impairment loss
is limited to the asset’s carrying amount
that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior
periods. Reversals of impairment losses
are credited to profit or loss in the period
in which the reversals are recognised.

Account and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the group has an

unconditional right to receive consideration. A right

to receive consideration is unconditional if only the

passage of time is required before payment of that

consideration is due. If revenue has been recognised

before the group has an unconditional right to receive

consideration, the amount is presented as a contract
asset.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=EEBI - LBITIHIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i)

0))

(k)

@)

BIESETRHEERRAF | —FT_F/

Account and other receivables (Continued)

Except for accounts receivable arising from cash
clients, margin clients and subscriptions of new
shares in IPO which are stated at financial assets
measured at FVPL; receivables are stated at
amortised cost using the effective interest method
less allowance for credit losses (see note 2(h)(i)).

Accounts payable and other payables

Accounts payable and other payables are initially
recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at
amortised cost unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially
at fair value less attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between the amount initially recognised
and redemption value being recognised in profit or
loss over the period of the borrowings, together with
any interest and fees payable, using the effective
interest method.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, and demand deposits with banks. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group’s cash management
are also included as a component of cash and cash
equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated
cash flow statement. Cash and cash equivalents are
assessed for ECLs in accordance with the policy set
out in note 2(h)(i).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(m) Employee benefits

(i)

(i

(il

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees.

Contributions to Mandatory Provident Funds
as required under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss as
incurred.

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee
cost with a corresponding increase in a share
option reserve within equity. The fair value is
measured at the grant date using the Black-
Scholes model, taking into account the
terms and conditions upon which the options
were granted. Where the employees have
to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options, the total
estimated fair value of the options is spread
over the vesting period, taking into account the
probability that the options will vest.

Where the Company enters into equity-
settled share-based payment arrangements
involving employees of subsidiaries, the cost is
recognised in “Investment in subsidiaries” and
credited to the “Share option reserve” over the
vesting period. The equity amount is recognised
in the capital reserve until either the option is
exercised (when it is included in the amount
recognised in share capital for the shares
issued) or the vested option expires (when it is
released directly to retained profits).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n) Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that they relate to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case the relevant amounts of tax are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and
any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax
assets also arise from unused tax losses and unused
tax credits.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(m) Income tax (Continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those
that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary differences, provided those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods into
which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset
can be carried back or forward. The same criteria are
adopted when determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses
and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to
reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss
or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes,
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that
affect neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided
they are not part of a business combination), and
temporary differences relating to investments in
subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of the
reversal and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable that they
will reverse in the future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(m) Income tax (Continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at each reporting date and is reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow the related tax
benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed
to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when the
liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets
are offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred
tax assets against deferred tax liabilities if the Group
has the legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Group intends either to settle on a net basis,
or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(m) Income tax (Continued)

(0)

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

— the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant amounts
of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered,
intend to realise the current tax assets and
settle the current tax liabilities on a net
basis or realise and settle simultaneously.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle
the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits
is remote.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(p)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when control over a product
or service is transferred to the customer, at the
amount of promised consideration to which the
Group is expected to be entitled, excluding those
amounts collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is
after deduction of any trade discounts.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other
income recognition policies are as follows:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Brokerage commission income

Brokerage commission income is recognised
on a trade date basis when the relevant
transactions are executed. Volume rebate to
customers is recognised to the extent that it
is highly probable that a significant reversal in
the amount of cumulative revenue recognised
will not occur when the uncertainty associated
with the variable consideration is subsequently
resolved. Where the customer is given rights
to additional discounted or free services in
the future as a result of paying brokerage
commission, an appropriate amount of the
brokerage commission income is deferred
and recognised when those material rights are
utilised by the customers or expire.

Income from bullion trading
Income from bullion trading is recognised when
the related services are rendered.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method.

Handling and settlement fee income
Handling and settlement fee income are
recognised when the related services are
rendered.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(p)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

Dividends

Dividend income from listed investments
is recognised when the share price of the
investment goes ex-dividend.

Investment trading

Income from investment including realised fair
value gains or losses on trading investment is
recognised on a trade date basis.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the
statement of financial position initially when
there is reasonable assurance that they will be
received and that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them. Grants that
compensate the Group for expenses incurred
are recognised as income in profit or loss
on a systematic basis in the same periods
in which the expenses are incurred. Grants
that compensate the Group for the cost of an
asset are deducted from the carrying amount
of the asset and consequently are effectively
recognised in profit or loss over the useful life
of the asset by way of reduced depreciation
expense.

(q) Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of
reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(q@)

(r)

(s)

Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)

The results of foreign operations are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the dates of the transactions. Statement of
financial position items, including goodwill arising on
consolidation of foreign operations acquired on or
after 1 January 2005, are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the closing foreign exchange rates at the
end of the reporting period. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the
exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences relating to
that foreign operation is reclassified from equity to
profit or loss when the profit or loss on disposal is
recognised.

Fiduciary activities

The Group commonly acts as trustees and in
other fiduciary capacities that result in the holding
or placing of assets on behalf of its customers.
These assets arising thereon are excluded from the
consolidated financial statements, as they are not
assets of the Group.

Related parties

(i) A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(1) has control or joint control over the Group;
(2) has significant influence over the Group; or
(8) is a member of the key management

personnel of the Group or the Group’s
parents.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(s) Related parties (Continued)

(i) An entity is related to the Group is any of the
following conditions applies:

1)

The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third party.

The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the
Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (i).

A person identified in (i)(1) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of the Group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with

the entity.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

®

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the consolidated financial
statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes
of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business
and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and
the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments to

HKFRSs that are first effective for the current accounting
period of the Group.

Amendments to HKFRS 3, “Definition of a business”

Amendments to HKFRS 16, “Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions”

The Group has elected not to adopt and apply the

practical expedient to all qualifying Covid-19-related rent
concessions granted to the Group during the reporting
period. Consequently, rent concessions received have
been accounted for as lease measurement. There is no
impact on the opening balance of equity at 1 April 2020.
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VAR TTHIR )

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

None of the developments have had a material effect
on how the Group’s results and financial position for
the current or prior periods have been prepared or
presented. The Group has not applied any new standard
or interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.

REVENUE

The principal activities of the Group are securities broking,
margin financing, commodities and futures broking, bullion
trading and leveraged foreign exchange trading.

The amount of each significant category of revenue is as
follows:

3
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Revenue from contracts with EFB UK IREERFE155

customers within HERAZEFAHWA

the scope of HKFRS 15
Brokerage commission #&®® 793,820 516,249
Revenue from other sources HimEKR A
Dealing income from bullion trading EeBRIMA 15,177 10,423
Dealing income from leveraged foreign BEENINERZIA

exchange trading 3,305 1,385
Interest income from margin financing FREENEWA 271,238 302,486
Interest income from IPO financing BRAABEERER BRA 201,661 33,474
e 491,381 347,768

1,285,201 864,017

The Group’s customer base is diversified and no customer
had transactions which exceeded 10% of the Group’s
revenue.

The Group has applied the practical expedient in
paragraph 121 of HKFRS 15 and does not disclose
information about the remaining performance obligation
that have original expected durations of one year or less.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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5 OTHER INCOME 5 Hawz

Interest income from FEUWA KA
Financial assets carried at RBERTIE2SREE
amortised cost
— Authorised institutions — RAHE 53,438 141,933
— Others — Hftb 1,178 4,064
54,616 145,997
Financial assets carried at FVPL DEAFEFABZZAR
JIRzEeMEE
— Cash clients —BagpP 38,561 21,329
93,177 167,326
Handling and settlement fees FEBREEER 125,022 65,142
Dividend income Iz BB A 21 214
Government grants (note) BB (K 22) 14,923 =
Sundry income HMIA WA 10,252 6,821
243,395 239,503
Note: During the year, the Group successfully applied for funding Bat: FAR AEEEKIHMEAFENITHRE
support from the Employment Support Scheme under BB EREES TSR]
the Anti-epidemic Fund, set up by the Hong Kong SAR FEREESYR  “ZESETERLE
Government. The purpose of the funding is to provide RHVBEPURBETEEHIED
financial support to enterprises to retain their employees EE - BEHER  AEETBRE
who would otherwise be made redundant. Under the MEHEB BNV AREEASARRAIES
terms of the grant, the Group is required not to make TfEHe -

redundancies during the subsidy period and to spend all the
funding on paying wages to the employees.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(B ZHIEBIN - LABTIIR)

6 OTHER NET GAIN/(LOSS) 6 Hauzs (FE)FE

Realised gain/(loss) from BB (EBEB)KRE
— Financial assets at fair value through — BAFEFABZZ
profit or loss TREE 14,714 (3,130)
Unrealised (loss)/gain from KREW(ER) MmKE
— Financial assets at fair value through — BAFEFABRZ
profit or loss TREE (4,611) 1,059
10,103 (2,071)
Net foreign exchange gain/(loss) SNEW R (B518)F 58 24,666 (10,033)
Loss on disposals of property, LEME - BE X
plant and equipment REEE (503) (385)
Error trades arising from dealings HERS (112) (345)
Others HAb (1,250) (7,436)
32,904 (20,270)
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7 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 7 BRFATER

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging: FrEADE A 2R T 5 & I8 -

Bt 3 B A

(@) Finance costs (a)

AT ZEF B X
- BRARBEEREZ

Interest expenses on
— Bank loans for IPO financing

WITERK 144,156 28,565
— Other bank loans — HEMIR1TER 84,836 03,788
— Lease liabilities (note 13) — HEBaBEMHZL13) 2,491 3,838
— Loans from related companies — REBHAREXR 6,029 11,014
— Others — HAfth 1,711 973
239,223 138,178
(b) Staff costs (b) BIK
Salaries, allowances and benefits in e RZUREVEF
kind 103,490 105,253
Discretionary bonuses B IS IE AL 45,822 18,360
Contributions to Mandatory Provident EHIMEATESHR
Fund 3,583 3,859
152,895 127,472
(c) Other operating expenses (c) HRKR&EMEX
Advertising and promotion expenses BEEREERY 34,979 15,595
Auditors’ remuneration = A B & 1,703 1,704
Commission, handling and KieBle  FEER
settlement expenses EHEER 143,997 88,593
Information and communication Bk BAMAX
expenses 47,512 46,740
Legal and professional fees FEEREEEA 2,133 2,783
Operating lease payments — - WiER RN
property rentals —WERS 146 98
Rates and building management fees EMREFEERER 4,626 5,635
Miscellaneous expenses MIERAY 37,579 37,906
272,675 199,054
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VAR TTHIR )

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 8

REZTHEWRBERZFEHR

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE

INCOME

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income represents:

) HEEEWHERZHIERE:

Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax

BHRE - BEEBREHR

Provision for the year FREE 114,157 57,867
(Over)/under-provision in respect of MAFEE

prior years (B8, TrRE® (728) 121

113,429 57,988

Deferred tax IE B IR
Origination and reversal of temporary TR ERE o ESREMD

differences (note 25(b)(i)) (B i 25(b)0)) (146) (55)
Total tax charge for the year FAMRIA S R 113,283 57,933
The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2021 is R —FRBNEUBETAE

calculated at 16.5% (2020: 16.5%) of the estimated
assessable profits for the year, except for one
subsidiary of the Group which is a qualifying

P ETFE SR B M #216.5% (—F =
TFE:16.5%) 8 - EAKE M
& 2R A ARSI RGBT R

corporation under the two-tiered Profits Tax rate GN o

regime.

For this subsidiary, the first $2 million of assessable
profits are taxed at 8.25% and the remaining
assessable profits are taxed at 16.5%. The provision
for Hong Kong Profits Tax for this subsidiary was

calculated at the same basis in 2020.

BEMBARTE -+ EH2,000,0007CH
BB T 28, 25% MU B - 4T BB
4 81 :16.5% Bt © KB R A2
EEFEREBREA-S-BER
A2 BEHE -
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8 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 8 ®E

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME (Continued)

(@)

(b)

EHRBRZAEB @)

Taxation in the consolidated statement of (@) HKEzEWRRZBIEE: (&)
comprehensive income represents: (Continued)

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2021 is
taken into account a reduction granted by the Hong
Kong SAR Government of 100% of the tax payable
for the year of assessment 2020-21 subject to a

maximum reduction of $10,000 for each business
(2020: a maximum reduction of $20,000 was granted

for the year of assessment 2019-20 and was taken

into account in calculating the provision for 2020).

—_

_?_ﬁi

F2ERENE
& 78 1 BT R BT B
T ERBFERTE—EHK100%
(£ BR %310,0007T) 2 FE f+ 7 18 =Rl
TR BBOE

SHRBHED A R
—E-EE

—NE_TERBRFERT

ZEiﬁ20,000TE%M) °

Reconciliation between tax expense and (b) BREAREGEZHEATHES
accounting profit at applicable tax rates:

5t oE A ¥ B

Profit before taxation B %5 Bl & A 817,188 528,911
Notional tax on profit before taxation ZEARNHEEEREF 2

calculated at the rates applicable to MEFE ZBRTA

profits in the countries concerned A B E IR 134,670 87,105
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AR A 2 I & 3,716 3,313
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue BERBUR BB E (20,851) (29,702)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not RERKRBDAMBEBEZ

recognised MG E 1 17
Utilisation of tax loss previously not By SRR R

recognised MIEEAE (192) =
(Over)/under-provision in respect of BAFE(BFE),

prior years TREE (728) 121
Others Hfth (3,333) (2,921)
Total tax charge for the year FARIBY LA 113,283 57,933
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9 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 9 EEMSE
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 2 B EBCR AE BI) 5E383(1) i XA &)
383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 (BEESMmERD R FE2EFHEE
of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits EEMewT:

of Directors) Regulations are as follows:

2021
—E_-&

Salaries, Contributions

allowances to Mandatory

Directors’ and benefits Discretionary Provident

fees in kind bonuses Fund

5% 2ER

40k BENEF METAL BRSUR

$000 $000 $000 $000

Tr T Tr Tr
Yip Mow Lum ERM - 8,942 7,104 - 16,046
Hui Yik Bun SFEW - 2,293 5,456 18 7,767
Chan Wing Shing, Wilson B 5K 3 - 968 323 18 1,309
Yu Yun Kong RER 252 - - - 252
Szeto Wai Sun B % 219 - - - 219
Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph REE 185 - - - 185
Total @t 656 12,203 12,883 36 25,778

Salaries, Contributions
allowances and  Discretionary  to Mandatory
Directors’ fees bonuses Provident Fund
EERE ENE e
$000 $'000
T T T
Yip Mow Lum S0 - 7,909 948 = 8,857
Hui Yik Bun FEW - 2,230 1,968 18 4216
Chan Wing Shing, Wilson Bk - 947 148 18 1,113
Yu Yun Kong AN 242 - - - 242
Szeto Wai Sun Bk i 210 - - - 210
Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph EBE 178 - - - 178
Total B 630 11,086 3,064 36 14,816
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9 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

No director received any emoluments from the Group as
an inducement to join or leave the Group or compensation
for loss of office and, no director waived or has agreed to
waive any emoluments.

10 INDIVIDUAL WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

Included in the emoluments of the five individuals with
the highest emoluments were the emoluments of 2
(2020: 2) Directors. The emoluments of Directors have
been disclosed in note 9 above. The aggregate of the
emoluments in respect of the other 3 (2020: 3) individuals
are as follows:

10

BEEME &)

MEEEAAKERRETAME - ERN
BBERASE  BSABERMBE  TE
EEREIRAERELAME -

RE WAL

IZFHESNEETEEME(ZE=F
FRREBEF -BEEWEE RN LW
BT -SBRT_R(CEZTEF =F)ALZ
P& azEmT:

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind g EMREMEF 4,929 4,989
Discretionary bonuses BB FEAL 8,152 1,430
Contributions to Mandatory Provident Fund 38 7& &t & 54 54

13,135 6,473

The emoluments of the 3 (2020: 3) individuals with the
highest emoluments are within the following bands:

REACERIRF CR)BREHFMAL
ZHENFATHE :

Nil to $2,000,000
$2,000,001 to $4,000,000
$4,000,001 to $6.000,000
$6,000,001 to $8,000,000
$8,000,001 to $10,000,000

Z £2,000,0007T 2 2
2,000,0017T £4,000,0007¢ - 1
4,000,0017T £6,000,0007T - -
6,000,0017T £8,000,0007T = -
8,000,0017T £10,000,0007T 1 =

1A B IR FE O B 4 1) 5% S A S ] B

No emoluments have been paid to these individuals as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office during the financial year
(2020: Nil).

BABLEREBERAR | —T T/ ——FFR

SESMBAREXNRNINARZ ZEHIE
REBRBECT-ZF H)-
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11 EARNINGS PER SHARE 11
Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit
for the year attributable to owners of the Company by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year.

BRE2F
BREFEF

BERERBMNEARFEARREBAR
EHENBEAFRERTERR 2 MEFH

Earnings vl

Profit for the year attributable to owners of AFEARQARHEA A

the Company ($°000) FEAG & A (For) 703,905 470,978
Number of shares &% 1 2B
Weighted average number of ordinary BETEBR Y

shares in issue (in thousands) hnRE S e (FAR) 1,697,296 1,697,296
Basic earnings per share (cents) SREREF (ML) 41.47 27.75
Diluted earnings per share iz #58 2 R

There was no dilutive potential ordinary share during the
year (2020: Nil) and diluted earnings per share is therefore
equal to basic earnings per share.

E EEEMEEERR (BB
) Bt SREEAFIEIAERE
ARF -
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(B % & 5= A5

F A TTEIR)

12 SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which

are organised by business lines.

In a manner consistent

with the way in which information is reported internally
to the Group’s most senior executive management for
the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment, the Group has presented the following three
reportable segments. No operating segments have been
aggregated to form the following reportable segments.

(a)

BIESETRHEERRAF | —FT_F/

Securities broking — provision of broking services
in securities traded in Hong Kong and overseas
markets, margin and IPO financing services to those
broking clients.

Commodities and futures broking — provision
of broking services in commodities and futures
contracts traded in Hong Kong and overseas
markets.

Bullion trading — provision of trading services in
bullion contracts traded in overseas markets.

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, the
Group’s senior executive management monitors the
results, assets and liabilities attributable to each
reportable segment on the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible assets and
current assets with the exception of unallocated
corporate assets. Segment liabilities include liabilities
and accruals attributable to the activities of the
individual segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is
earnings before finance costs and taxes (“EBIT”).
To arrive at EBIT, the Group’s earnings are further
adjusted for items not specifically attributed to
individual segments, such as corporate administration
costs.

—FFR

12

Bz AA2MNAT=Z@Er REDE -

BOMEBEHFGRABEEER

RNEBEZELEIR DB MR ER

EHTREEABNBLRENR—

=

BOFEE D BRAMBE TSI AT ]S D &P o

(a)

BEHRL — BRURBABRBINTS
BEZRBFZBERE  MBLEP
REFREERAFESHERS -

EmEkHEEL - REREERE
INMIZEE AR RBEGH &L
R -

ECBRS - RENSBIMBESE
Eﬁ‘i\ﬁm,ﬁﬁ’]s&%ﬁﬁ‘“
PEELE - EERERE

B EPHRBERS S EHE 2B
BR AEERSTHREEASZMU
TR R ARG D IR ELE -
EENEE:

7 Bz F\L?ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬂé%&mu@]
BE  MADEZRREERI - o
HEBEREEAMNS M EBDEEZEE
REAE-

RMEDHENEAB A EREAR
B %5 B A K B 1B B 2 B F (TEBITY) ©
RS HEBITH » AEEBEZF 5t &5
EHEBEARNDE BB (WMAR T
MA)VER#E— AR -
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12 SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 12 DEH/E =)

(b) Segment information

2021

g g 3:3
Commodities
and futures
broking
Bm R
HEER

Bullion
trading

Securities
broking

REEERS
$:000 $°000 $'000
Fr Fr r

164

Revenue from customers: REZEFZHWA:
— Brokerage commission -RBREe 580,667 214,816 - 795,483
— Dealing income LN - - 15,177 15,177
— Interest income from margin financing — FE & &5 B A 271,238 - - 271,238
— Interest income from IPO financing ~ — BAAREERE
MEKA 201,661 - - 201,661

Reportable segment revenue s s HEA 1,053,566 214,816 15,177 1,283,559
Interest income from cash clients ReRFFIBKMA 38,561 - - 38,561
Other interest income i ¥ S A 47,481 7,095 39 54,615
Handling and settlement fees FEEREEER 125,010 9 3 125,022
Reportable segment profit (EBIT) % 5 s 5 (EBIT) 964,392 72,338 11,014 1,047,744
Amortisation and depreciation FRERRNE

for the year (17,511) (8) - (17,519)
Finance costs KA (243,975) - - (243,975)
Additions to non-current segment assets FRRE 2k RB D HEE

during the year 16,685 - - 16,685
Reportable segment assets MREDHBEE 14,994,772 922,895 26,329 15,943,996
Reportable segment liabilities REsHaE (13,095,598) (557,230) (16,211)  (13,669,039)
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12 SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 12 ﬁ:’)\ %B ﬁ t|:|t (&)
(b) Segment information (Continued) (b) EER (&)

Commodities
Securities  and futures Bullion
broking broking trading
R
HERR E&BRSH
$'000 $'000
T T
Revenue from customers: REZEFPZHWA:
— Brokerage commission -BrfEd 286,467 230,754 - 517,221
— Dealing income LN - — 10,423 10,423
— Interest income from margin financing — # & & & Fl B A 302,486 - - 302,486
— Interest income from IPO financing ~ — BAAREERE
M E WA 33,474 - - 33,474
Reportable segment revenue g s HEA 622,427 230,754 10,423 863,604
Interest income from cash clients RexRPHEKA 21,329 - - 21,329
Other interest income it ¥ S WA 121,738 23,880 336 145,954
Handling and settlement fees FRERKEER 65,130 12 - 65,142
Reportable segment profit (EBIT) 8% 5 8% 5 (EBIT) 557,626 98,268 7,163 663,057
Amortisation and depreciation FREERTE
for the year (17,764) 8) - (17,772
Finance costs FBHA (137,383) (25) - (137,408)
Additions to non-current segment assets ERRE 2 RH D HEAE
during the year 4,931 - - 4,931
Reportable segment assets AREDBEE 5,761,546 706,429 43693 6,511,668
Reportable segment liabilities ARENHEE (4,069,128) (363,944) (24789)  (4,457,861)
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12 SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 12 DEH/E (2)

166

(©

(0 THREDTHBEA-BFN BER
BEZHEK

Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue,
profit, assets and liabilities

Revenue A

Reportable segment revenue AT R & 2 #B A 1,283,559 863,604
Elimination o (1,663) (972)
Unallocated corporate revenue AOBE AR A 3,305 1,385
Consolidated revenue mAa WA 1,285,201 864,017
Profit s A

Reportable segment profit (EBIT) Al R 24 2 26 & A (EBIT) 1,047,744 663,057
Finance costs B 75 A AR (239,223) (138,178)
Unallocated corporate income RABERRKA 117,345 107,446
Unallocated corporate expenses F N VNG (108,678) (103,414)
Consolidated profit before taxation REBI AR 817,188 528,911

Assets BE

Reportable segment assets AHkEDBEE 15,943,996 6,511,668
Elimination E | (213,541) (226,695)
Unallocated corporate assets AP ARIEE 127,932 174,162
Consolidated total assets meAEME 15,858,387 6,459,135
Liabilities 8@

Reportable segment liabilities s HBaE (13,669,039) (4,457,861)
Elimination Fagis 1,735,642 562,213
Unallocated corporate liabilities RKOMARARE (1,794,315) (661,181)
Consolidated total liabilities ERAEERE (13,727,712) (4,556,829)
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13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13 ¥ -BERZE
Properties Motor
leased for Leasehold  vehicles and Office  Furnitureand ~ Computers
ownuse improvements yacht  equipment fixtures  and software
BRAENE HE%E NEREE  BOERE  KAREE  EHRAM
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Tn T Tr Tr Tr T
Cost; A
At 31 March 2019 RZE-NE=A=1-A - 53,712 31428 18,957 15,161 32,919 152,177
Adoption of HKFRS 16 REFRHBREENZ10% 3,939 - - - - - 3,939
At 1 April 2019 RZE-NEMA-A 3,939 53,712 31,418 18,957 15,161 32,919 188,116
Additions hE 173,339 1,250 888 406 12 2,380 178,275
Disposals ih & - {7.9M) - (506) 2,107 (69) 10,653
Derecognition of right-of-use assets X |- BiEAE (20293) - = = = = (20293)
Exchange adjustments 2% . 1) . (14 - 22 Gl
LA \ZESREAIICR i T s
At 1 April 2020 R-Z-Z5MA-A 188,985 46,980 32,316 18,843 13,066 35,208 335,398
Additions RE 19,202 15,323 23 469 339 3 36,013
Disposals ih & - (5,436) - (1,006) (2,260) (127) (8,829)
Derecognition of right-of-use assets X I EREAE (25,562) - - - - - (25,562)
Exchange adjustments EZ3g - 14 - 17 - % 5
At 31 March 2021 RZEZ-£Zf=1-A 182,715 56,881 32,529 18,328 11,145 35,480 331,019

Accumulated depreciation: ~ EREHE:

At 1 April 2019 R-E-NEMA-H S 48,267 2,137 15,559 12,618 24,658 103,839
Charge for the year ERAY 73,781 4210 5,110 1201 1,165 2982 89,13
Wiitten back on disposals MEEREE - 7.821) = (£02) (1,98 (62) (10.268)
Derecognition of right-of-use assets X I EAEREAE (7,088) - = = = = (7,089)
Exchange adjusiments EXGE - (1) - (13 - (22) 4p)
At 31 March 2020 R-B-EE=f=1-A 66,693 44,645 8,507 16,371 11,800 27,556 175,572
At 1 April 2020 R-Z-ZFWA-H 66,693 44,645 8,507 16,371 11,800 21,556 175,572
Charge for the year ERREY 63,906 4,982 6,490 982 631 2,528 79,519
Written back on disposals REERRE - (5,160) - (914) (2,125) (127) (8,326)
Derecognition of right-of-use assets & It Bz (F BEEE (16,261) - - - - - (16,261)
Exchange adjustments Ex3z - 14 - 17 - 2 59
At 31 March 2021 RZE--£Zf=1-A 114,338 44,481 14,997 16,456 10,306 29,985 230,563
Net book value: FEFE:

At 31 March 2021 RZEZ-£Zf=1-A 68,377 12,400 17,532 1,867 839 5,501 106,516
At 31 March 2020 W-E-FEZf=1-H 122,292 2,335 23,809 2412 1,260 7,652 159,826
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13

168

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13 ¥ -BERSRE®)

(Continued)

Right-of-use assets ERAEEE

The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets by REREERNE D2 REEEREF
class of underlying asset is as follows: BEoNHT:

31 March 31 March
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF

=A=t—-H =ZHA=+—H
$’000 $'000
T Tt

Properties leased for own use, carried at BEREEYE  RIFTFER K

depreciated cost 5l BR 68,377 122,292
The analysis of expense items in relation to leases HEREaERCEEEECAXBEBRST
recognised in profit or loss is as follows: wm

Depreciation charge on properties leased BRAEWEITEMR S

for own use 63,906 73,781
Interest on lease liabilities (note 7(a)) HEBEF B (WZE7E) 2,491 3,838
Expense relating to short-term leases and E252 HAFA & &3 HA 1218 A

other leases with lease terms end within & RHEMTEE BB 2 M

12 months 146 98
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13

14

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13 ¥ -BERSRE®)

(Continued)

Right-of-use assets (Continued) ERAEEES)

During the year, additions to right-of-use assets were FRRNE 2 FH#EEE 519,292,0007T
$19,292,000 (2020: $173,339,000), which primarily related (2020%F : 173,339,0007T) * * Z B IR IE#
to the capitalised lease payments payable under new HEWEENCERNCBAERERRA -

tenancy agreements.

Details of total cash outflow for leases and the maturity HEz_Z-_—F=-ZA=+—HzZHERS
analysis of lease liabilities as of 31 March 2021 are set out mEAEERHEAENBAESMFHIBTIR
in notes 18(d) and 23, respectively. B M 7E18(d) K228 ©
As of 31 March 2021, there are no leases subject to R-EBE-_—F=ZA=+—H HERAEY
variable lease payment arrangement. A EHENRETH -
INTANGIBLE ASSETS 14 BEEE
Debentures
&%
$°000
F
Cost: RN
At 1 April 2019, 31 March 2020, R-ZZE-AFHTA—A8 -
1 April 2020 and 31 March 2021 —E-ZEE=A=+—H"
—E-EFWNA—-HEK
—_E-_—-H=H=+—H 6,600
Accumulated amortisation: RE#EE .
At 1 April 2019 RZE—-NFMNA—H 317
Charge for the year FAMX 500
At 31 March 2020 RZTEZEF=H=+—H 817
At 1 April 2020 and 31 March 2021 R-ZZB-ZFMA-BR
—E-—-F=H=+-—H 817
Net book value: REFE:
At 31 March 2021 R-E-_—H=ZH=+—H 5,783
At 31 March 2020 RZBEZEF=A=+—H 5,783
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15 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS 15 EERHEE

Statutory deposits with exchanges and RGREEMZEATER S
clearing houses 78,429 77,715

16 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 16 FEUYWERF

Accounts receivable from: U BR KA -
— Clearing houses — KEER 873,022 785,804
— Brokers and dealers — BRERRFH 461,807 210,195
Less: Loss allowance B BT 18 B R (1,248) (505)
Financial assets measured at amortised  H#HEK A EZ 2R EE

cost 1,333,581 995,494
Accounts receivable from: R KA -
— Cash clients —RERP 634,721 263,480
— Margin clients — HFREFP 10,804,648 4,385,813
— Subscription of new shares in IPO — RBEX HAEEHR 2,366,718 =
Financial assets measured at FVPL WEAFEFAERZZ

FREAEZEMEE 13,806,087 4,649,293

15,139,668 5,644,787
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16 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (Continued)

(a) Ageing analysis

The ageing analysis of accounts receivable from cash
clients based on the settlement date as of the end of
the reporting period is as follows:

16

EWERR (&)
(a) BRER AT

RBEHRRZERREFPERRK
MERZEREDTMT

Current ! B 109579 65283
Less than 1 month DR1E A 361,767 141,064
1 to 3 months 123{E A 137,648 34,543
More than 3 months % A 31{E A 25,727 22,590
525,142 198,197
634,721 263,480

Accounts receivable from cash clients relate to a wide
range of customers for whom there was no recent
history of default. These receivables are secured by
their portfolios of securities. Cash clients are required
to place deposits as prescribed in the Group’s credit
policy before execution of any purchase transactions.
At 31 March 2021, the total market value of their
portfolios of securities was $2,864,960,000 (2020:
$1,669,623,000).

BABLEREBERAR | —T T/ ——FFR

%%fﬁ%@ﬁﬁ%%&iﬁ&;%Lﬁﬁjﬁ
BAREEBIEP - ZFEIRK
MEZBESFBESEERT - ﬁMeimEﬂ
BEXRGA ReRFPARAEHE
21*%Eﬁz%ﬁﬁm RZEZ—F=
A=+—H EZFHHEeEzHEMAE
7,%2,864,960,00075(_ T - F:
1,669,623,0007T) °
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16 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (Continued)

(@) Ageing analysis (Continued)

Margin clients are required to pledge securities
collateral to the Group in order to obtain credit
facilities for securities trading. The amount of
credit facilities granted to them is determined by
the discounted value of securities accepted by
the Group. At 31 March 2021, margin loans due
from margin clients were current and repayable on
demand except for $195,000 (2020: $90,000) where
the margin loans were past due. $122,000 (2020:
$18,000) were past due for less than 1 month. $1,000
(2020: $1,000) were past due for 1 to 3 months.
$1,000 (2020: $5,000) were past due for 3 months
to 1 year. $71,000 (2020: $66,000) were past due
for over 1 year following the trading suspension of
the pledged securities. At 31 March 2021, the total
market value of securities pledged as collateral in
respect of the loans to borrowing margin clients
and all margin clients were $24,420,252,000 and
$32,897,670,000 respectively (2020: $10,376,614,000
and $14,641,209,000 respectively). Margin loans
that were past due were considered immaterial by

management.

For accounts receivable relating to subscriptions
of new shares in IPO, no ageing analysis of
subscriptions of new shares in IPO is disclosed as the
ageing analysis does not give additional value in view

of the nature of this business.

The fair value of accounts receivables from cash
client, margin clients and subscription in new shares
in IPO is determined by the fair value of collaterals,
capped by the principal amount and accrued interest,

without discounting.

16

FE W BR R ()

(a)

BRiR 2 #T (&)

FEEFARANS B KT E S KT
M UARBEERSEREERSE -
ﬁ%?&%Zﬁl%ﬁﬁé%’E&Z&%@Fﬁ
BEREHFCMAEEETE - RZF

Z—%=H=+—H " %1950007*5
(ZZE-FTHF : 90,0007T) ZHEER
mES  BRFREPZHFRER
BEVEA R BIZ ZEKEE - 122,0007T
(ZZE-F 4 :18,0007T) BHEI D —
@A + 1,000 (ZZEZF4F : 1,000
71:) mE—==A - 1,000t (=&
—ZZF :5000m) MEB=EAE—
&+ 71,000 (ZZEZZF 4 : 66,000
L) REBRRBLEFEEFREG B
i@ FoR_E-_—F=Z/=1+—

CREEERAREP R
)?e%}fﬁéﬂé RERBIERETR 2
BHLEMED %IJ%2442025200075&
32,897,670,0007C (ZZE=_F4F : 55l
/10,376,614,0007C K 14,641 ,209,000
L) o MEHARERFEEERAT
S N

LR B ERARE SN RN
RME - ERWEAXEHMEE - Rk
DT EEKBEIMEE WERE
EARBERARABEENR ZREK
DT e

FH&Z@%%%}E HFREPLABBAER
PHBEMRZERZAFEDR

BERRZAVFEETE  LRAATHE

KMEFHRE - AFRE -

172 Bright Smart Securities & Commodities Group Limited | Annual Report 2020/21



Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7 SRR B &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(Br = HIEBIN - LABTIIR)

16 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (Continued)

(@)

(b)

Ageing analysis (Continued)

Accounts receivable from clearing houses, brokers
and dealers are current. These represent (1) pending
trades arising from the business of dealing in
securities, which are normally due within a few days
after the trade date and (2) margin deposits arising
from the business of dealing in futures and options
contracts.

Loss allowance of accounts receivable

Loss allowance in respect of accounts receivable
measured at amortised cost are recorded using an
allowance account unless the Group is satisfied that
recovery of the amount is remote, in which case the
loss is written off against the accounts receivable
directly.

The movement in the loss allowance during the year
is as follows:

16

FE W BR X (&)
(a KREDW(E)

(b)

RUEER BERRSE RN
REH - ARABRFRENEEESF
BrHtEEERS  —RNRXHH
BREERNIHPRQESTHE K HE
BHEBZARRESR -

WA ERERE

NEHR AT EZRRERZER
BBABERLE  EAKEEAK
B 5K IB 2 AT RE MR SEH RSN - IR
T B R R R o

FREBBFAZEHNT:

At 1 April REA—H 505 183

Loss allowance recognised DR EEEE 743 322

At 31 March R=RA=+—H 1,248 505
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17

18

174

OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND
PREPAYMENTS

17 HbEWFE RERBESRE

Rental and utility deposits HE R KEEES 19,421 20,875
Prepayments AR 2,434 4,642
Other receivables EPMEH&Z A 8,061 17,911
29,916 43,428
Less: Loss allowance W EIE R (31) (43)
29,885 43,385

Included in the above balances are amounts of $3,822,000
as at 31 March 2021 (2020: $16,944,000) which are
expected to be recovered in more than one year.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

%:2:—¢:H:+—E ﬁki”
MR 7 T8 A3,822,000 L (B E
16,944,0007E) FEHRHER —FEKD -

18 RERREEEY

@ RERBAELZEVEHE:

Deposits with banks RITF R 53,811 56,253
Cash at bank and in hand RITRFERS 365,109 421,721
418,920 477,974
Less: Loss allowance W B IR (437) (317)
418,483 477,657

The Group maintains segregated accounts with
authorised institutions to hold client money in the
normal course of business.

At 31 March 2021, client money maintained in
segregated accounts not otherwise dealt with in the
financial statements amounted to $12,315,788,000
(2020: $8,355,102,000).

AEERRARBRBEBILES  NEF
EGBRTRARFED -

R_E-_—F=ZA=+—H8B ZERBI
REFEYERYBHRREMTIERZE
P& % 512,315,788,000 T (- B - T4 :
8,355,102,0007T) °
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18 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continuea)y 18 BHERBEEEYW (&)

(b)

Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash
(used in)/generated from operating activities:

(b) BRBAERELEEY (A,
FeREzHEK:

Profit before taxation R 5 A& A 817,188 528,911
Adjustments for: FUAT S EELFAE:
Amortisation and depreciation BiERITE 79,519 89,635
Finance costs B 7 B A 239,223 138,178
Dividend income B B U A (21) (214)
Interest income FERATBEFR R

(excluding interest income from ERNANGE: &5

margin and IPO financings) BE 2 F BB A) (93,177) (167,326)
Net foreign exchange (gain)/loss HNE (W ),/ B BT (24,666) 10,033
Loss on disposals of property, LEME BMEK

plant and equipment RE2EE 503 385
Net (gain)/loss arising from disposal of HEZRAFEFABRZ

financial assets at fair value TREEMEAZ

through profit or loss F (W), B R (14,714) 3,130
Net unrealised loss/(gain) on financial BEAFEFABEZ

assets at fair value through TRMEEZIARER

profit or loss FER (W) 4,611 (1,059)
Others Hitb (204) 111
Changes in working capital: EEE2¥EE:
Increase in other non-current assets HMFERDEE

& (714) (27,631)

(Increase)/decrease in accounts JIE g BR 3K (35 0n) R

receivable (9,472,735) 1,617,016
Decrease in other receivables, deposits ~ Efth B 18 - K4 &

and prepayments FEAS FRIE R 13,505 4,546
Increase in amount due from a related FE U — R B Bt 2 F)

company SRIE L AN (3) —
Increase in accounts payable JE 11 BR SR 38 BN 738,377 91,719
Increase in accrued expenses and other  FE &5 2 [ H b FE (-

payables FRIFIE N 32,697 9,958
Cash (used in)/generated from operations #& 4 %% (FTH),/

g < (7,680,611) 2,297,392
175
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(B BHEEB - WBTIIR)
18

(©

financing activities:

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from

Bank loans

BITER
$'000
T

18

(©

Lease
liabilities

HEER
$°000
Fr

Amount due
to a related
company
B —mH

M A
ME

$°000

T

ReRkBAEEEBY®

Accounts
[EVELI

FE 4 B 3
$°000
T

RETHELENEBEIHEK:

At 1 April 2019 RZT-NF
MA—H 3,445,515 36,259 200,076 1,226,209 4,908,059
Changes from financing cash RERS TR EE:
flows:
Repayment of bank loans ERRITER (582,204) - - - (582,204)
Proceeds from amount due to T — 5 BE %
a related company NAFBEZ
PRSI - - 60 - 60
Other borrowing cost paid BEREMEE
BAR (122,353) - (11,014) 973) (134,340)
Capital element of lease ENHERECE
rentals paid 5 - (70,244) — - (70,244)
Interest element of lease BRHEHES
rentals paid FEEH - (3,838) - - (3,838)
Changes from operating cash ~ &&HE&HZ
flows: gy
Change in accounts payable e R - - - 91,719 91,719
Exchange adjustments ER AR 4,522) = = (16,660) (21,182)
Increase in lease liabilities from  EEIFHHAEM
entering into new leases ENEEEE - 152,934 - - 152,934
Interest expenses FlBHE 122,353 3,838 11,014 973 138,178
At 31 March 2020 R-B-EBF
=HA=+-H 2,858,789 118,949 200,136 1,301,268 4,479,142
At 1 April 2020 P 7=
MA—H 2,858,789 118,949 200,136 1,301,268 4,479,142
Changes from financing cash RERS M EE:
flows:
Net proceeds from bank loans  $R{TERFTEHIE
R 8,571,666 - - = 8,571,666
Repayment of amount due toa T —F& g
related company NEEN - - (200,136) - (200,136)
Other borrowing cost paid EREMEE
A (228,992) - (6,029) (1,711) (236,732
Capital element of lease ENHEREZE
rentals paid Nzl - (60,456) - - (60,456)
Interest element of lease BRNHEHESZ
rentals paid FEHD - (2,491) - - (2,491)
Changes from operating cash ~ E&B L2
flows: 2
Change in accounts payable [ERRTEE - - - 738,377 738,377
Exchange adjustments ERAR 5,583 - - 21,711 27,294
Increase in lease liabilities from ~ HETZHEEM
entering into new leases ENEESE - 9,213 - = 9,213
Interest expenses FERZ 228,992 2,491 6,029 1,711 239,223
At 31 March 2021 RZBE=-%§
=RA=+-H 11,436,038 67,706 - 2,061,356 13,565,100
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18 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued)

(d) Total cash outflow for leases

Amounts included in the cash flow statement for
leases comprise the following:

18 WERBEEEBEYW &)
d HERESRHEAE

RenE8XRMIEERABRE

Within operating cash flows RELEHREMEN 146 98
Within financing cash flows REBEFRHEESREAN 62,947 74,082
63,093 74,180

19 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES

At 31 March 2021, the Company had direct or indirect
interests in the following subsidiaries, all of which are
private companies, particulars of which are set out below:

Place and date of
incorporation

BT AE R YRR

Name of company

DAER

Bright Smart Investment Holdings Limited
BIREERERLA

British Virgin Islands (BVI)/
22 October 2009

RBRABS/
“EENETAZTZA

Choice Max Limited British Virgin Islands (BVI)/
mEERAA 2 April 2014
EBRAES/
“E-MEMAZA

Fine Profit Investments Limited
FERERARATA

British Virgin Islands (BVI1)/

21 August 2018
EBRIEE/

“E-\£N\A-t-H
Marick Investments Limited British Virgin Islands (BVI1)/

15 April 2014
ABRAEE/

“Z-NEMATRA
Bright Smart Advertising Company Limited Hong Kong/

2 March 2020
BB/

it Sk 350y i

BABLEREBERAR | —T T/ ——FFR

Issued and fully
paid-up capital
BERTRAZRAE

19 RMBLAAZRE

R-B_—F=A=1+—H  ARFERAT
MEBAREAEERIEEER  ZEWME
REVGRILARTE - FHEHINWAT

Attributable
equity interest

EERAER
Direct Indirect

=83 Lk
100% -

Principal activities

TERHR

US$100
100X 7T

Investment holding

REERK

US$t 100% =
1%

Investment holding
RERRKR

US$1 100% =
ESD

Investment holding
RERR

US$1 100% —  Investment holding

ES REER
HK$1 - 100%  Inactive
BT TEa
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19 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Name of company
NG

Bright Smart Asset Management Limited
BIEEERERAT

Bright Smart Facilities Management Limited

Place and date of
incorporation

EMAL KA S

Hong Kong/
18 August 2011
R/
“E-——%\ATNH

Hong Kong/

(formerly known as Bright Smart Easy Finance 6 March 2014

Company Limited)
BTREEEERAA
(FIBRLHERBERAA)

Bright Smart Finance Channel Management
Limited
BT HERERARAA

Bright Smart Finance Online Channel Limited
BTHEBLERBRAA

Bright Smart Facilities Service Limited
(formerly known as Bright Smart Financial
Technology Limited)

BT RIERREERAF
(FBRT 2RHMRERLA)

Bright Smart Forex Limited
BABKINEERAR

274
“T-ME=ARA

Hong Kong/
22 May 2014

R/
“Z-MmERA-TZH

Hong Kong/
22 May 2014

Ek/
ZZ-MERAZTZA

Hong Kong/
7 September 2018
gt/
“Z-\ENAtA

Hong Kong/
23 April 2012
B/

“E--F#RAZF=A

Bright Smart Futures & Commodities Company Hong Kong/

Limited
RIBEREREBRAH

Bright Smart Global Bullion Limited
RIBREXBRAA

Bright Smart Investment Consultancy (China)
Company Limited
BT REAABR(PE)BERAF

178

14 November 1995
i/
“WNRET-AT+HEA

Hong Kong/
10 October 2012
R/
ZE-ZFTATA

Hong Kong/
9 November 2010
Ek/
“2-2Ft-AAA

19 R

Issued and fully

paid-up capital

ERTRBERE

HK$5,000,000
5,000,000 7.

HK$1
BT

HK$1
BT

HK$1
1B

HKS$1
1T

HK$30,000,000
30,000,000 ¢

HK$214,000,000
214,000,000/ 7T

HK$10,000
10,000% 7T

HK$1
oy

MEBARZRE (&)

Attributable
equity interest

EiERAER

Direct

E%

Indirect

[}
100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Principal activities
TEER

Asset management
services

BEERRY

Inactive
Tmex

Administrative services

TR

Production and broadcast
finance programs

RfERERMEHE

Administrative services

1T MR #%

Forex trading service
MER R

Futures and commodities
broking
ekl

Bullion dealing and
provision of bullion
trading service to
customer

BEEBEERMEPRH
B2 BRIRE

Investment holding

REER
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19 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continuedy 19 RHBATZRE (&)

Name of company
INGEE

Place and date of
incorporation

EMAL R A S

Issued and fully
paid-up capital
ERTRARRAE

Attributable
equity interest

JE 45 B K 4 4
Direct Indirect

EE A&

Principal activities
TEXH

Bright Smart Promotion Limited Hong Kong/ HK$1 S 100%  Administrative services
BT HEEERATA 25 August 2015 1% TBR%
B/
“Z2-rf\AZTEA
Bright Smart Property & Facility Management  Hong Kong/ HK$1 - 100%  Administrative services
Limited 3 June 2020 AT TBR%
RINERRBERBRAA B/
—ZCRERAZH
Bright Smart Property Management Limited ~ Hong Kong/ HK$1 = 100%  Administrative services
BTNEERERAT 31 March 2014 1% T8 MR
8/
ZE-ME=A=1-H
Bright Smart Property Management Service  Hong Kong/ HK$1 = 100%  Administrative services
Limited 22 August 2017 1T TR
RINFERRBEARAA Ek/
ZE-+EN\AZtCH
Bright Smart Securities International (H.K.) Hong Kong/ HK$1,141,000,000 — 100%  Securities broking and
Limited 10 August 1998 1,141,000,000% 10 margin financing
BTZHER(BE)ERAA B/ BABERARRE
—“AMANENATH
Charm Capital Limited Hong Kong/ HK$1 S 100%  Administrative services
BABRAA 18 February 2016 17T TBR%
R/
ZE-REZATNA
Everlasting Source Limited Hong Kong/ HK$1 S 100%  Administrative services
BYARAA 8 December 2010 1% TBR%
B/
Z2-ZE+-A)R
Glow Dragon Limited Hong Kong/ HK$1 - 100%  Administrative services
BEERAR 21 January 2010 BT THRS
B/
“E-Z5-A-t+-H
Huge Dynasty Limited Hong Kong/ HK$1 = 100%  Administrative services
BEBRAF 13 January 2010 BT TR
R/
—Z-Z5-f+=H

BABLEREBERAR | —T T/ ——FFR
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19

20

180

INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 19 RHIBAT 2R E (&)

Place and date of Issued and fully Attributable
Name of company incorporation paid-up capital equity interest Principal activities
IS FMAIHER A BEARBRRE JE 46 B 7 4 4 TEER
Direct Indirect
HE A&
|deal Magic Limited Hong Kong/ HK$1 S 100%  Administrative services
BEERAR 13 January 2010 1T TR
&/
“E-EF-f+=H
Merit Act Limited Hong Kong/ HK$1 S 100%  Administrative services
EEERAF 3 November 2009 B TH RS
B/
ZEENFT-AZH
Rainbow Town Limited Hong Kong/ HK$1 = 100%  Administrative services
T BRAH 8 October 2015 B TH RS
B/
“Z-R%TANA
Victor Tone Limited Hong Kong/ HK$1 - 100%  Administrative services
EABBAH 21 January 2010 18T THR%
B/
“E-T5-A-1+-H
BIREZARINERAR People’s Republic of China/ HK$1,600,000 - 100%  Inactive
(Note) (H1i2) 10 January 2011 1,600,000/ 7 Tmex
REARKAE/
—E-—%-A+H
Note: It is registered as a wholly foreign-owned enterprise under HeE: WRARTIBIEREAR LR EEZTM
the laws of the People’s Republic of China. RRENIEBEBERE -
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 20 BEERR

Accounts payable FE S BR 3K
— Cash clients —BHarP 471,844 343,920
— Margin clients — HEEP 891,915 628,132
— Clearing houses — BEM 210,178 307,416
— Brokers — & 487,419 21,800
2,061,356 1,301,268
All of the accounts payable are expected to be settled FrERMNEXREERN—FRNEENERE
within one year or are repayable on demand. KEE o
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21 ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER
PAYABLES

Bt R EMENKE

Commission rebate payable FER & Bl A 56,311 26,948
Accrued bonuses FEETIEAT 9,214 6,180
Stamp duty, trading levy and trading fee ~ BEfRTEITER « X5 HE &
payables R5E 13,711 8,572
Receipt in advance T8 W A 2,905 2,891
Other payables E b JE S FRIA 22,707 27,718
104,848 72,309
Included in the above balances are amounts of $1,431,000 E’\\: T —F=ZA=Z=+—HB &AL
as at 31 March 2021 (2020: $7,238,000) which are 4R 2 IE B1,431,000C(ZE T F:

expected to be settled in more than one year.

22 BANK LOANS

7238 ,00070) ' ThTEEIR —F &R E -

RITER

Secured loans BEMER

— Bank loans — RITERX 7,357,038 2,423,789

— Bank loans for IPO — BRAABERITER 2,365,000 =

Unsecured loans ﬂﬁiﬁg

— Bank loans — RITER 1,714,000 435,000
11,436,038 2,858,789

All the bank loans are repayable within one year and FIEHRITEREN —FR ko EAER

classified as current liabilities. The carrying amounts of the PBaE - HRTEECEMEREEATER

bank borrowings approximate their fair value. Ao

The bank loans as at 31 March 2021 are interest-bearing. RZBE-—F=ZA=+—HZRITEFKY

Securities collateral deposited by the Group’s margin BB - AEEAREFPFEECESE

clients was re-pledged to banks to secure loan facilities.
Such banking facilities were utilised to the extent of
$9,722,038,000 (2020: $2,423,789,000). The fair value of
the collateral re-pledged to banks as at 31 March 2021

amounted to $14,240,019,000 (2020: $5,918,574,000).

BABLEREBERAR | —T T/ ——FFR

#H Dﬁ%ﬁ#ﬁ%fﬁ C A BUS

,\B'Aﬁ‘-ﬂé

ﬁﬁﬁfi B & B2 8 9,722, 038 OOOTE(_

T T4 2423,789,0007T) ©

_7_

F=ZA=+—H BEBFTRT Zﬁﬁu%
N AE B14,240,019,000 (ZE=Z

5,918,574,0007T) °
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23 LEASE LIABILITIES 23 HEERE

AEEEEEHEABEZANIHANT

The Group had obligations under contractual maturities of
the lease liabilities as follows:

As at 31 March 2021
R-E--£=F=t+-H

As at 31 March 2020
TFZA=t-A

24

182

Present value
of the minimum

lease payments
BERERERE
$'000

i

Total minimum
lease payment

REAEFEAR

Present value
of the minimum
lease payments

REMRESNERE
$'000
Tr

Total minimum
lease payment
REMESNELR
$'000

Tr

$000
r

Within one year -ER 61,141 61,864 59,845 62,245
After one year but within  —F&EBRLER

five years 6,565 6,667 59,104 59,983

67,706 68,531 118,949 122,228

Less: total future lease - A RAERLAE

expense (825) (3,279)
Present value of lease ~ HEEEHE

liabilities 67,706 118,949

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS
— DEFINED CONTRIBUTION
RETIREMENT PLAN

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(“the MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees
employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance and not previously covered by
the defined benefit retirement plan. The MPF scheme
is a defined contribution retirement plan administered
by independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the
employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant
income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
$30,000 (2020: $30,000). Contributions to the plan vest
immediately.

24

BERAKEFN — ERAKENK
=t &

REERBEEBSRFMERTE ST EIEH B
RIEEBSEBEONRAAERIERRAE
TR EBEBAERTEREZEEL MR
flENEetE((REestE]) - 8HES
STEATEREIRIKTE  ABMIETA
B RERESHE BEXRHEEER
BBEREEMBEUWA Z5%M 8 1E H #
P MWEEAMBBYAS0,000t(ZE=F
F 1 30,0007T) & LR o sHEIERENR B
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25 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 25 HMEMBRRARRZFAEH
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement (a) GZEMBERRRZENEPBIERE:
of financial position represents:

Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax FABEBNEHAZ
expense for the year B AE 114,157 57,867
Provisional Profits Tax paid BT E &R SR (57,365) (53,810)
56,792 4,057
Represented by: DTHEERR:
Current taxation BN HA %4 18 57,764 5,378
Tax recoverable Al 3R [B] B 18 (972) (1,321)
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25 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 25 MEMBURRRZFAEBEH &)
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(Continued)

(b)(i) Deferred tax assets and liabilities represents: i) EEHEEEREREE:
The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities RR & B 15 AR S0 % R o 2 4B E R IR
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial (BE)/AEAKRBIRFENESH N
position and the movements during the year are as ™
follows:

Differences

between

depreciation

allowance and

Credit loss Accrued the related

allowance bonuses  depreciation
EEER RERER
B Bt HEREZZR
$°000 $°000 $°000

Tr T Tr

Deferred tax (assets)/liabilities AT REMELZERERE
arising from: (BE)/8f&:

At 1 April 2019 RZZ-NENRA—A (78) (1,310) 1,321 (67)
(Credited)/charged to consolidated REA2ARERGIA)/
statement of comprehensive income M (0 i282)

(note 8(3)) (65) 281 (271) (55)
At 31 March 2020 W-E-ZF=F=1+-H (143) (1,029) 1,050 (122)
At 1 April 2020 R-ZE-EENA-H (143) (1,029) 1,050 (122)

(Credited)/charged to consolidated REAZERERGIA)/
statement of comprehensive income 1% (#/:28/3))

(hote 8(a)) (137) (480) 471 (146)
At 31 March 2021 R-B--%=fA=1-H (280) (1,509) 1,521 (268)
(b)(ii) Reconciliation to the consolidated statement of b)) RS BB AR R K 2 HER

financial position

Net deferred tax asset recognised in the TR 4R A BFF Ak 0L & &
consolidated statement of financial MRZELERIEEE
position F A (268) (122)
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26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 26 EX - #EERE

(a) Movement in components of equity (a) ERARIDZ2EE
The reconciliation between the opening and closing AEBEHFEERSHEKE D F 16
balances of each component of the Group’s FREBCHBEHRN G SR ZD
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated ® o AARMEREEEK I D RFH)
statement of changes in equity. Details of the RFEREBzEBFBEHIOT:

changes in the Company’s individual components of
equity between the beginning and the end of the year
are set out below:

The Company RAE
Share Retained
capital Share premium profits Total equity
B I £ % B REET ERAE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $°000
T i T i
At 1 April 2019 RZE-NEMA-A 509,189 738,020 15,030 1,262,239
Profit and total comprehensive FREFREANGESE
income for the year = = 1,477,745 1,477,745
Dividend paid during the year FRRAZRE - - (1,490,226) (1,490,226)
At 31 March 2020 R=B-%%
=ZA=+-H 509,189 738,020 2,549 1,249,758
At 1 April 2020 R-E-Z£MA-A 509,189 738,020 2,549 1,249,758
Profit and total comprehensive FEREFREZAKELE
income for the year - - 481,081 481,081
Dividend paid during the year ERRIZRE - - (475,243) (475,243)
At 31 March 2021 R=B=-§
=ZA=+-H 509,189 738,020 8,387 1,255,596
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VAR TTHIR )

26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

186

(b)

Dividends

(i)

(i)

Dividends payable to equity shareholders of
the Group attributable to the year

Dividends declared in respect of the current
year are as follows:

26 EX - REBERE (&)

by BRE

U]

REEEERREEAFE
BB A

RAFEDERZBEBMT

Final dividend proposed after the end R ¥R & HI K 15 22 3 K &0
of the reporting period of 13.0 cents % 8 i% AR 13.01lL
per ordinary share (2020: 28.0 cents (ZE-ZF: tﬁxmﬁﬁx
per ordinary share) (2020 and 2021: 28 01UJ)(_ ToTFERC

1,697,296,308 shares)

— 4 :1,697,296,308

H&L) 220,649 475,243
Special dividend declared and #1,697,296,308 % ik {7
paid of 80.0 cents per share on IR R RERIRE
1,697,296,308 shares F0%80.01L - 1,357,837
The final dividend proposed after the end of MEBRREEZRPREERSF

the reporting period is subject to approval of
the shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company and has not
been recognised as a liability at the end of the
reporting period.

Dividends payable to equity shareholders
of the Group attributable to the previous
financial year, approved and paid during the
year:

(i)

A% B8 A AR ) FE fE A% BB K
SEMHERSAEET BXE
RNWMEHAERBEE -

A B IR RS £ — B
FEZRNRE(FREHER
A

Final dividend in respect of previous
financial year, approved and paid
during the year, of 28.0 cents per
ordinary share (2020: 7.8 cents per
ordinary share) (2020 and 2021:
1,697,296,308 shares)

F—MEREEIRBREE
AR 5 A% 28.011l
(Emﬁﬁt}&&}ﬂiﬁ)
(—7 —7 qz

% EE A 7.8l)
(—?—7 E'E&—?— $ :
1,697,296,308 % )

475,243 132,389

Bri
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26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 26 EX - BERKRE(#)

(Continued)
(¢) Share capital () B
2021 2020
“E--F %%
No. of shares  Nominal value No. of shares  Nominal value
RO #E AfE Kirg 8 HfE
$000 $:000
Tr T
Authorised ordinary shares of SRAEE0TH
$0.30 each: EEERR:
At 1 April/31 March REA—R/
ZA=t-H 10,000,000,000 3,000,000 10,000,000,000 3,000,000
Issued and fully paid: ERARAR:
At 1 Apri/31 March REA-R/
ZR=t-H 1,697,296,308 509,189  1,697,296,308 509,189
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive ETERFTEAERBDMTREIR 2
dividends as declared from time to time and are EREERARB ARG LRSI
entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the MIR—F - RARFFBREEMS -
Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with FrELBREEERZUA -

regard to the Company’s residual assets.

During the year ended 31 March 2020 and 31 March REBEEZTE-_TEF=-A=1+—HKRKZ

2021, no share options were exercised to subscribe E-_—F=ZA=+—HUIHFE T&E

for any ordinary shares. TEBRERBELTBR -

(d) Nature and purpose of reserve d FEMEREN

(i) Share premium iy RBRHEE
Under the Companies Law of the Cayman BREREBESERRE  AAF
Islands, the share premium account of the ZEMNEERTARARKRRES
Company may be applied for payment of ORI E - RIS ERE#H
distributions or dividends to shareholders TSRS EBE%R - AR
provided that immediately following the date on B NERABEBBREFREN
which the distribution or dividend is proposed to HEHER o

be paid, the Company is able to pay its debts as
they fall due in the ordinary course of business.
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26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

188

(d) Nature and purpose of reserve (Continued)

(i)

(i)

(vi)

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations as well as the effective portion
of any foreign exchange differences arising
from hedges of the net investment in these
foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies set out
in note 2(q).

Merger reserve

On 29 June 2010, the Company acquired
the entire issued share capital of Bright
Smart Futures & Commodities Co., Ltd,
Bright Smart Securities International (H.K.)
Limited and Merit Act Limited through Bright
Smart Investment Holdings Limited from
their respective shareholders. The difference
between the nominal value of the share capital
of the subsidiaries acquired as a result of the
restructuring exercise and the nominal value
of the share capital of the Company issued
in exchange thereof is treated as an equity
movement and recorded in “Merger reserve”.

Distributability of reserve

The reserves of the Company are distributable
to the equity shareholders subject to the
provisions of the Company’s Memorandum
and Articles of Association and provided that
immediately following the distribution the
Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due
in the ordinary course of business.

At 31 March 2021, the aggregate amount of
reserves available for distribution to equity
shareholders of the Company was $746,407,000
(2020: $740,569,000).

260 BEX - RERKRE#®)

d) REEERENE)

(i)

(iii)

(vi)

& 5
EXREEEMAELERE
BINRBMBHRERZINEEZRE
K EE I FE BRI FRE
mE L 2 E A BINEZREED
2 o BRERERIRI E2(0)FTE
ZEETBREIE -

RG]
R-FB—FFRAZtTHhEB &
REEBRAREEZBRBERA
AlREARERARARIF
BT EZBERGEE)BRAA
FMORBABRRR A BR R
BAERRZE2MERHITRA -
REMAETSMRREZHB R
BAZBAEEEARBEITIE
SREZBEAEEMEZEZR
BIFaZ2HERIE WK AlR
HrEmIA -

72 K {8
REARBZABERNHAR
AR W RBEFH 2K
BRAQRRAEENAERSEB
RHIBMERFAET » ARF
] ) a5 B IR 0 R o A e

RZEBE-_—F=A=+—H" 7
HORFARREREREZFH
& 424 %3 A746,407,00000 (=&
—ZF £ :740,569,0007T) °
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26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(e

Capital management

The Group’s primary objective when managing capital
is to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, so that it can continue to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by
securing access to finance at a reasonable cost. In
addition, certain subsidiaries of the Group licensed
by the Securities and Futures Commission (“SFC”)
are obliged to meet the regulatory liquid capital
requirements under the Securities and Futures
(Financial Resources) Rules (“FRR”) at all times.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain a balance
between the higher shareholder returns that might
be possible with higher levels of borrowings and
the advantages and security afforded by a sound
capital position, and make adjustments to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic conditions.
For the licensed subsidiaries, the Group ensures each
of them maintains a liquid capital level adequate to
support the level of activities with sufficient buffer to
accommodate for increases in liquidity requirements
arising from potential increases in the level of
business activities. During the financial year, all the
licensed subsidiaries complied with the liquid capital
requirements under the FRR.

27 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments outstanding at 31 March 2021 not
provided for in the financial statements were as follows:

26 EX - @BEEKRE &)

(e

EXREH

REBEEEAZHEERARER
SERELEZEN  UEEBRERE
BT RE®RERBEEEBIARIAE
EEW$HN%F&§ Zﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁx
B33 &2 7 Ho A 25 15 B A RS 2R Al 2
pboh - BESFRHAE EHE %%?Ea
((BEgHRUEFRIAEEE TMH
BRARIEREMRIREAEESFKE
B (MHER) A(THHERBRAD
HTIZEERBESRTE -

AEBBEBRLREHBRISLEEER
BB ErRHERSEEKTZER
PR RO FERBREAMATE KL
HREREREZEREFE  1ERE
RERFEZBEHERNGEBIELH
B pgHRHBARIME  AKEE
REMBLARERIFECEERE -
EMiﬁ%Fm%'Mﬁﬁﬁﬁéﬁ
ﬁtﬁ%ﬁﬁ%l@(ﬂmébééz
ﬁxtﬂ%ﬁbﬁﬁﬁm°\$wﬁ
FE - FIAFENEBRRHEESTI K
BRBUBTZRDESHRE °

27 BREYE

RZBE-_—F=ZA=+—HBHEEXR

1 75

REBBZERNEEWT

Contracted for BaT4 2,255 2,745
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28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES

190

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate, foreign currency
and equity price risks arises in the normal course of the
Group’s business. The Group’s exposure to these risks and
the financial risk management policies and practices used
by the Group to manage these risks are described below.

(@)

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
amounts due from clients, brokers and clearing
houses. The management has a credit policy in place
and the exposure to the credit risk is monitored on an
ongoing basis.

In respect of amounts due from clients, individual
evaluations are performed on all clients (including
cash and margin clients) based on underlying
collateral. Cash clients are required to place deposits
as prescribed in the Group’s policy before execution
of any purchase transactions. Receivables due from
cash clients are due within the settlement period
commonly adopted in the relevant market practices,
which is usually within a few days from the trade
date. Because accounts receivable from cash clients
relate to a wide range of customers for whom there
was no recent history of default, there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances
are considered fully receivable, and the prescribed
deposit requirements and the short settlement period
involved, the credit risk arising from the amounts
due from cash clients is considered low. The Group
normally obtains liquid securities and/or cash
deposits as collateral for providing financing to its
cash and margin clients and has policy to manage
these exposures on a fair value basis. Margin loans
due from margin clients are repayable on demand.
For commodities and futures brokerage, an initial
margin is required prior to opening transaction.
Market conditions and adequacy of securities
collateral and margin deposits of each cash account,
margin account and futures account are monitored
by the management on a daily basis. Margin calls and
forced liquidation are made where necessary.

28

BHERABREERAFE

AEBEZAREKRELREE

RBEE -

FE - INERABERE o TXE G A KE
FrEY 2 FR R RASELEE SR
BFTRM AR ERERRRED -

(a)

FERR

AEBZEERREIZREBBEE
F Bulk@#EEmMcER  EEE

RIEEERR  IHBEEEEER
/DAD\ o]

N

FRUEFERTE FAEEF (B
RekFREP)HAEREHER
miE R ERIFFG RATEMEE
RHH - REEPARANEEZHE
TR BUCREEPHRIBTINERET
GEHERFAZEEHRNDE - —
BAXHBERBRA - EXEERE
BEFERF IR 2RI PAERFKL

BEBABRIER AR 28D - Mg
EERBRELMSREERE &
BRREEPEREEZEERR
Hil - ARE—REMERAERAIR
EFBMERBESFR,XEEFRE
RARERHBRE CEMD - XA
BERZRAVFEEEZSTAR - BK
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28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(a)

(b)

BIESETRHEERRAF | —FT_F/

Credit risk (Continued)

In respect of amounts receivable from brokers and
clearing houses, credit risks are considered low as
the Group normally enters into transactions with
brokers and clearing houses which are registered
with regulatory bodies and enjoy sound reputation in
the industry.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit
risk as credits are granted to a large population of
clients.

The Group does not provide any other guarantees
which would expose the Group to credit risk.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group
are responsible for their own cash management,
including the raising of loans to cover expected cash
demands, and to ensure compliance with FRR. The
Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its current and
expected liquidity requirements and its compliance
with lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed
lines of funding from major financial institutions to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short and long
term.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash and funding in
the short and longer term. Except accrued expenses
and other payables amounted to $1,431,000 and
lease liabilities amounted to $6,565,000, all of the
Group’s liabilities are expected to be settled within
one year. The carrying amounts of all financial
liabilities equal the contractual undiscounted
cash outflow, except for bank loans of which the
contractual undiscounted cash outflow as at 31
March 2021 amounted to $11,439,016,000 (2020:
$2,859,590,000) and lease liabilities as set out in note
23.

—FFR
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BRREEERAFEE)

(@)

(b)

FERRE)

HARARE—RED M EEE# BT
AERNBERHZELLEEME
TR WEWEREREERERRX
ZEERBER -

HRAKERREZEFPREHEE - &
YEEAXEFEERER -

AEE W EEHERMEMER -
SAKREEmHEERR -

RBETER

AEEAENKLERBESTAZH
SEE  BREBEFUEMNESR
EHE - UHERTEVRERRA -
AEEBRRENEEEMRE
HRBELFE BWETEERH
BEREREHNRSHEBRKEAL
MHERBIRARAERERE @ AR
NEEHRDESTE -

REBE 2 BK AT BEE &R &8 B
MBECHFE  BREBEWES R
EoRHEBABNREHEE - brES
A S Ko o Ath B <F 3k 781,431,000t &

AEEHEN —FREN - - a2
AEZEMEMASREIIORIIRE
Rt E  HPABERITEDR  H
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28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 28 BIEREERAFE R

FAIR VALUES (Continued)
(c) Interest rate risk

(i) Interest rate profile

The Group charges interest on its margin clients
and cash clients with outstanding loan amounts M REEER
on the basis of its cost of funding plus a mark-
up. Financial assets (such as margin loans and
deposits with banks) and financial liabilities
(such as bank loans) are primarily at floating
rates. The Group’s income and operating cash

(© FM=mEk

(i) F=E4HAse

ym S

flows are not subject to significant interest rate Rk o

risk.

The interest rate profile of the Group at the
reporting date is as follows:

MERBE:

AEEREESKASINRE
ZITREFPR
ReEPERBAE - EBEE
(MFREREBTEFOEE
BEBMRITEF) TBRY
BHEFFE - AKEEZHBAR
RERSREALEEHE KT

TRENAKERBERRZ

Assets 5E
Deposits with banks RITTFER 53,811 56,253
Statutory deposits with exchanges XRSRBEHEMZEATE S
and clearing houses 76,079 75,365
Accounts receivable from FEWA T & I18 2 BR 3K
— Margin loans —HFRE® 10,804,648 4,385,813
— Cash clients with outstanding — WAREEERN
loan amounts Be®P 525,142 198,197
— Subscription of new shares in - REFRXAHAEE
IPO Gl 2,366,718 -
13,826,398 4,715,628

Liabilities =R

Secured bank loans BERFIETERK 9,722,038 2,423,789

Unsecured bank loans ELFIEITER 1,714,000 435,000

Amount due to a related company  JE{f — & B8 Bt QA Rl ZIBE - 200,000

Lease liabilities HEARE 67,706 118,949
11,503,744 3,177,738
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28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

BIESETRHEERRAF | —FT_F/

Interest rate profile (Continued)
All the above interest-bearing financial assets
are receivable on demand or within one year.

Expect for lease liabilities amounted to
$6,565,000, all the above interest-bearing
financial liabilities are repayable within one year.

Sensitivity analysis

As at 31 March 2021, if interest rates had been
100 basis points higher with all other variables
held constant, the Group’s profit before
taxation would have increased by approximately
$23,227,000 (2020: $15,379,000).

As at 31 March 2021, if interest rates had been
100 basis point lower with all other variables
held constant, the Group’s profit before taxation
would have decreased by approximately
$22,175,000 (2020: $14,859,000).

The increased/decreased profit before taxation
results mainly from higher/lower interest income
from deposits with banks, statutory deposits
with exchanges and clearing houses and margin
loans and higher/lower interest expense on bank
loans. Other components of equity would not be
significantly affected by the changes in interest
rates.

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s profit
before taxation that would arise assuming that
the change in interest rates had occurred at the
reporting dates and had been applied to re-
measure those financial instruments held by
the Group which expose the Group to interest
rate risk at the reporting dates. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2020.

—FFR

28 BIEBEERAFEE)

(¢ F=EREbE)

(i)

(i)

eSS =P
ELAFEEREERAR
R EIHA —F AU E -
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28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

194

FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(d) Foreign currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily
arising from financial instruments that are
denominated in United States dollars (“USD”),
Renminbi (“RMB”), Singapore dollars (“SGD”),
Japanese Yen (“JPY”), Australian dollars (“AUD”)
and British pound (“GBP”). As the Hong Kong dollar
(“HKD”) is pegged to the USD, the Group considers
the risk of movements in exchange rates between
the HKD and the USD as insignificant. In respect
of financial instruments denominated in other
currencies, the Group ensures that the net exposure
is kept at an acceptable level by buying or selling
foreign currencies at spot rates where necessary to
address short-term imbalances. The management
monitors all the foreign currency positions on a daily
basis.

Exposure to currency risk and sensitivity analysis
The Group’s significant net exposure to RMB, SGD,
JPY, AUD and GBP at the reporting date and the
estimated impact to the Group’s profit/(loss) for
the year had the foreign exchange rates of RMB,
SGD, JPY, AUD and GBP changed at that date are
illustrated below. In this respect, it is assumed that
the pegged rate between the HKD and the USD
would be materially unaffected by any changes
in movement in value of the USD against other
currencies.

28

BEEREERAFESE)

(d)

HME = B2

AEEMAZIVERRERIRAN
X ARE T BE R
TRRFFEZEMTE - HRE
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28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 28
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(d) Foreign currency risk (Continued)

Appreciation/
Net asset (depreciation)
in foreign in foreign
currency currency

DARHEZ  AARE/
BERE (&)

$000

T
RMB ARE 150,546 5
()
SGD b 4,756 5
()
JPY AE 6,964 5
(5)
AUD R 5,571 5
()
GBP ¥ 1 5

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change
in foreign exchange rates had been applied to re-
measure those financial instruments which expose
the Group to foreign currency risk at the reporting
date. The analysis is performed on the same basis for
2020.

BABLEREBERAR | —T T/ ——FFR

BHERBEERAFE®S

@ SMERBE)

Effect on
profit before Appreciation/
tax and Netasset  (depreciation)
retained in foreign in foreign
profits currency currency
BRRRE
BRZEE
$000
T
1,521 138,122 5
(7,527) 9]
238 4,431 5
(238) o)
348 6,436 5
(348) o)
219 3,828 5
(279) o)
36 2,106 5
(36) o)

Effect on
profit before
fax and
retained

(322)
191
(191)
105
(105)

BEESMEBRIINEERZ ZHE
EAREFAENREEBHERAE
SEABRIMNERBR M TR - Z
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28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

28

(e) Equity price risk (e)

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising
from listed equity investments classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss.

The Group’s listed investments are listed on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong, which have been
chosen based on their longer term growth potential
and are monitored regularly for performance against
expectations.

The following table shows the approximate change in
the Group’s other components of equity in response
to reasonable change in the value of listed equity
investments classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss:

Change in the relevant equity price risk 18 B % E 2 & 21 89
variaple: e

28
Financial assets at fair value through R FEFAEZEZ

profit or loss: EREE:
Increase £m 10
Decrease e (10)

The Group is also exposed to equity price risk in
relation to collaterals held for cash clients and margin
clients. Detailed analysis of the fair value of collaterals
held is set out in note 16.

196

HERBARR
2
$000
r

BHERBEERRIFE®R

I 18 /= B

AEEBAZBERDBER/REAYE
AABmZEMEEN ETBRAR
BZBREZBRAR -

AEBNMETREDEBT BB IR
£ DRBERBEREDHE -
VTERERRBARFERARESHEN -

TREIESBERE L FEFAR
HLEREENLTRAREEE
HRNAEEHENARERSH
AR E D EER O EE:

Effects
on profit
before tax

Effects

on profit
before tax
HR A

7,059 10
(7,059) (10)

4,854
(4,854)

AEETEHHEERBR TP RIFR
BEFFHANERZORERR - /7
FHEF @A T ESFAD NS RW
7116 o
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28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(f) Fair values measurement

(i)

Financial assets measured at fair value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of
the Group’s financial instruments measured at
the end of the reporting period on a recurring
basis, categorised into the three-level fair value
hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value
measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with
reference to the observability and significance
of the inputs used in the valuation technique as
follows:

o Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured
using only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date

° Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured
using Level 2 inputs i.e. observable
inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and not
using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which
market data are not available

o Level 3 valuation: Fair value measured
using significant unobservable inputs

The Group has a finance team performing
daily valuations for the financial instruments.
The team reports directly to the chief financial
officer.

BARHETHMEEERAA | —T_F/ - FFH
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28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 28 BIEREERAFE R

FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(f) Fair values measurement (Continued) & BF
(i) Financial assets measured at fair value (i)
(Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Fair value measurement as at
31 March 2021 categorised into
R=E=-£=A=1-BHK
ATEHESEA
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
£-% £ E=8
$/000 $/000 $000
T T T

Recurring fair value measurements ~ SE AT EH &

Assets: BE:
Financial assets at fair value through A FEFAER 2
profit or loss SHEAE
— Listed securities - &% 70,593 - -
— Accounts receivable - ERER - 13,806,087 -

Bt &)
BATEFENEREE ()

Fair value measurement as at
31 March 2020 categorised into

Level 1 Level 2 Level 8
F2H =4

$1000 $000

i r

48,639 S S
S 4,649,293 S

During the year ended 31 March 2021, there
were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2,
or transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group’s
policy is to recognise transfers between levels of
fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting
period in which they occur.

(ii) Valuation techniques and inputs used in (i)

Level 2 fair value measurements

The fair value of fully collateralised accounts

receivables from cash clients, margin clients

and subscription in new shares in IPO is

determined by the fair value of collaterals,

capped by the principal amount and accrued

interest, without discounting.

HE-_ZT-_—FZA=t—H1
FE - F-EHF-_EZEX
WmEEAMEE TETHSE
SEEAREL  cAEEZK
RN BEEE R 2 REIRE
RATFTESEREBSAR 2 M
B8R -

E_ELFESEMAMGE
FERBAE

2HEERAMIKERETR
FREFARBERAMEE
M2 RWRR 2 A FETR
EMm A FEEE ERAXR
TEEESAE  ATRHR -
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28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(f) Fair values measurement (Continued)

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities
carried at other than fair value

The carrying amount of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at cost are not materially
different from their fair values as at 31 March
2021 and 31 March 2020.

(iii)

(g)

Offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities

(i)

Financial assets subject to offsetting,
enforceable master netting arrangements or
similar agreements

28 BIKREKREEBERAFEE)

¢ 2AFEFEE)
WHUAFEIENEHEE
kagzr¥E
AEBZEKAIEN SR ITA
CEEBEEER-_ZT—F=
A=+—BER-_ZE-_ZTF=A
—t+—HZRAFETEEKRE
H o

(iii)

(g) HHETHEERTHAR

ZHE BFERIALZHR
BUHBARZEHMEE

(i)

As 31 March 2021
RZB=-5ZA=t-H
Gross
amount of  Net amount
recognised  of financial
financial assets
liabilities ~ presented
Gross offset in the inthe  Related amounts not offset
amount of consolidated consolidated in the consolidated statement
recognised  statement  statement of financial position
financial  of financial  of financial  Collateral Financial
Type of financial assets assets position position received instruments  Net amount
R&&
HHERR % R&&
B BEMRNR  OERGREBRRR
ERRcH CRASE 2ilzeR BHEzRBER
SHEERD BEAE BRAR  HEFE CcWERR  ERIE
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
T T T Tr T
Accounts receivable due from  EMEEHZEH
clearing houses 3,050,083  (2,766,000) 284,083 - (210,178) 73,905
Accounts receivable due BUEPZER
from clients 13,864,927  (2,425,783) 11,439,144  (11,438,895) - 249
16,915,010  (5,191,783) 11,723,227  (11,438,895) (210,178) 74,154
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(B ZHIEBIN - LABTIIR)

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 28 BIEREERAFE R
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(g) Offsetting financial assets and financial (g HEETREERERMEEE)
liabilities (Continued)
() Financial assets subject to offsetting, (i) ZEE LFEIIZEEDS
enforceable master netting arrangements or HOUBBRNARzeMEEE)

similar agreements (Continued)

As 31 March 2020
H-B-FEZ A=+

amount of  Net amount
recognised  of financial
financial assets
liabilities presented
Gross  offset in the inthe  Related amounts not offset
amount of  consolidated  consolidated in the consolidated statement
recognised statement statement of financial position
financial of financial of financial Collateral Financial
Type of financial assets assets position position received instruments  Net amount

SREERN KEBE  AREE  REFE  Chifm
§1000 $1000 $1000 $1000
i T T 7

Accounts receivable due from B EER B

clearing houses 2,056,549 (1,830,351) 226,198 - (226,198) -

Accounts receivable due BURRPZER
from clients 6,249,861 (1,605,465) 4,644,396 (4,644,280) - 116
8306410 (3435816 4870504 (4644280  (226,199) 116
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(Br = HIEBIN - LABTIIR)

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 28 BIKEMEBRRAFE R
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(g) Offsetting financial assets and financial (g BEHERMEEREMAEEHE)
liabilities (Continued)
(i)  Financial liabilities subject to offsetting, (i) ZEHE LFEIINZHER
enforceable master netting arrangements or BUMBARZERAEME

similar agreements

As 31 March 2021
R=B--§=A=1-H
Gross

amount of  Net amount

recognised  of financial

financial liabilities

assets offset  presented
Gross in the inthe Related amounts not offset in
amount of consolidated consolidated the consolidated statement of

recognised statement of statement of financial position
IENME] ENME] financial  Collateral Financial
Type of financial liabilities liabilities position position pledged instruments  Net amount
wa&a
BHz HBEARE  YERGRMEHKRER
EREAcH CRIASH E2hlzeR BHzRBLR

SREEER BEAE  EESE  ARTE CfEAR  SHIZ
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
T r T T Tr
Accounts payable dus to EREERER
clearing houses 2076178 (27660000 200478 (10,178 - -
Accounts payable due ERXPLER
to clients 299,278 (2,425,783 570,495 - - 570,495

5972456  (5,191,783) 780,673 (210,178)

570,495
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28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 28 BIEREERAFE R
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(g) Offsetting financial assets and financial (g HEETREERERMEEE)
liabilities (Continued)
(i) Financial liabilities subject to offsetting, (i) S LFHEIIZEEDS
enforceable master netting arrangements or HOUWBEARzemE8E&E(#E)

similar agreements (Continued)

As 31 March 2020
RZE-FE=A=1-A
Gross

amount of  Net amount

recognised  of financial

financial liabilities

assets offset presented
Gross in the inthe  Related amounts not offset in
amountof  consolidated  consolidated  the consolidated statement of

recognised  statement of  statement of financial position
financial financial financial Collateral Financial
Type of financial liabilities liabilities position position pledged instruments  Net amount

SRERER BEaS BEL BEFE EMNEAR
$'000
T T T T
Accounts payable dus to EREERER
clearing houses 2AFTET (18035 746 (26,199 - 81218
Accounts payable due EREPZER
to clients 2,012,049 (1,605,465) 406,584 - - 406,584

4149816 (3435816) 714,000 (226,198 S 487,802
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(Br = HIEBIN - LABTIIR)

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 28 BIKEMEBRRAFE R

FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(g) Offsetting financial assets and financial (2)

liabilities (Continued)

(iii) The tables below reconcile the “net amounts
of financial assets and financial liabilities
presented in the consolidated statement of
financial position”, as set out above, to the
accounts receivable and accounts payable
presented in the consolidated statement of
financial position

EHTREERESBMARHE)

(iii)

TERRBGEEHBRRERE

ZEMEEREREBE 2 FHE
(I EXFRE) R HiRR
REV 2 BWRFA R BN R

Z ¥ iR

Net amount of financial assets after 0 F #5182 & gl & &=
offsetting as stated above FEE 11,723,227 4,870,594
Financial assets not in scope of WIKER REHE
offsetting disclosure THEE 3,417,689 774,698
Loss allowance &5 18 B 1 (1,248) (505)
15,139,668 5,644,787
Net amount of financial liabilities mEEEEERmEE
after offsetting as stated above F R 780,673 714,000
Financial liabilities not in scope of I 3FE s FE & E 2
offsetting disclosure EmMEaE 1,280,683 587,268
2,061,356 1,301,268
203
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=EEAI -

29

30

204

VAR TTHIR )

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at the end of the reporting period, corporate guarantees
provided by the Company in respect of banking facilities
granted by authorised institutions to its subsidiaries
engaging in securities and futures broking amounted
to $14,917,000,000 (2020: $15,948,000,000). As at 31
March 2021, the subsidiaries of the Company have utilised
$7,535,038,000 of these aggregate banking facility (2020:
$2,334,000,000).

As at the end of the reporting period, the directors did
not consider that any claim would be made against the
Group under any of the guarantees. The Group has
not recognised any deferred income in respect of the
guarantees as their fair value cannot be reliably measured
and the transaction price was nil.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the related party information disclosed
elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group entered

into the following material related party transactions.

(@) Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel of the
Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s
directors as disclosed in note 9 and certain of the
highest paid employees as disclosed in note 10, is as
follows:

29

30

ZAREE

RMEPR  ARBIRNBEEFRPEL
LEBZHBARBRURBERG ZRT
B & % +14,917,000,0007T (Z T — T 4
15,948,000,00070) Z AR FER - RZF
T—FZA=+—H8 ARBIZHBAT
EEAZERITHE 4% 27,535,088,000
JL(ZZ = : 2,334,000,0007T) °

RBEMK - EFRAREABRYAE
IR ARRARETA MR BRZ
AFEFEARIERIDERT - #A
SELWB LS RREREDEERA -

/I

EXBEALRS

BRUEEBEREMEORECHEALER
S REBITBETIERBEALRS °

(@ FTEEBEASHMN

AEETEEBABZETHN(BEW
HORME EMARREERWF100T
BPEANETEaFMNEESINZS
)T

Directors’ fees E=-¥okn 656 630
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥ & - 2B & B Y& 7 16,097 14,749
Discretionary bonuses BB 4T 20,330 4,254

Contributions to Mandatory o HMEATE S M
Provident Fund 72 72
37,155 19,705

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see
note 7(b)).

B at ATE T AR K &
7(0)) °
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B 5= BEHEBI - KRB TINIR)

30

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b)

directors

Name of borrower

BRABE
Relationship with the Company

BARAZBE

Terms of the loan
BB

— Terms of the loan
- BRERERE

— Facilities granted
-ERZRE
— IPO loan
- BERAREEER
— Margin loan
- FREH

— Interest rate

- 7%
— IPOloan
- BRAFREER
— Margin loan

- FREXR

— Security

- &5

Yip Mow Lum and
his connected
entities

EEMR
HPERR

Director of the Company
and entities connected to
director

ARAAESREES
AREER

Repayable on demand

RERLER

4,000,000,000

1,000,000,000

1.98%-3.48%

HIBOR plus 2% per annum -

Hong Kong

Dollar Prime Rate

plus 5% per annum
BRRTREREM2%

ENE-BRRERNE

ME%E R X

Marketable securities

BEES

BABLEREBERAR | —T T/ ——FFR

30 EXHEAEIXRFZ )

Loans to directors and entities connected with

Hui Yik Bun and
his connected
entities
FEWER
HRERR

Director of the Company
and entities connected to
director

ARREERAES
BREER

Repayable on demand

AREXEE

100,000,000

10,000,000

2.08%-3.08%

HIBOR plus 2% per annum -

Hong Kong Dollar

Prime Rate plus

5% per annum
BRRTREREM2%

ENE-BrRBENEX

ms% %

Marketable securities

BEES

Chan Wing Shing,

Wilson and his

connected entities

RA#H R

HREER

Director of the Company
and entities connected to
director

FRAESREES
AHEEE

Repayable on demand
BREXEER

20,000,000

10,000,000

2.18%-2.98%

Hong Kong Dollar
Prime Rate plus
5% per annum

ELRERHE

MB%EH &

Marketable securities

BERS

(b)) ESKEEEAAETRNER

Yu Yun Kong

RAA
Director of the Company

ARAER

Repayable on demand

RERLXER

20,000,000

10,000,000

2.88%

HIBOR plus 4% per annum

BERTRARRE MA%FH =

Marketable securities

BEES
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30 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 30 EXEEALIRZ @)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(b) Loans to directors and entities connected with (b EERHEEEBHEEBENER
directors (Continued) (&
Yip Mow Lum and Hui Yik Bun and Chan Wing Shing,
his connected his connected Wilson and his
Name of borrower entities entities connected entities Yu Yun Kong
EEHR TENR R R
BHRAER HREER HEEER HEEER FER
Balance of the loan
BN

— At 1 April 2019

- RZE-NENA-H
— IPO loan - - - S
- ERRREEER
— Margin loan 68,761,000 57,000 - -
- FRER

— At 31 March 2020 and
1 April 2020
- R-F-%F
=R=t-Hk
“E-ZFMA-A
— PO loan - - - -
- BROABEER
— Margin loan 30,036,000 - - -
- FRER

— At 31 March 2021

-RZE--FZA=t+-H
— IPO loan - - - -
- BRORBEER
— Margin loan 382,488,000 1,424,000 - -
- FRER

Maximum balance outstanding

ABESRER

— During 2021

-RZB=-%
— IPO loan 2,199,023,000 8,045,000 4,126,000 5,227,000
- BRAREEER
— Margin loan 593,019,000 1,363,000 49,000 282,000
- FRER

— During 2020
-RZEZF
— PO loan 1,462,785,000 5,565,000 960,000 =
- BRARREER
— Margin loan 139,309,000 1,162,000 = 214,000
- FRER
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(B % & 5= A5

30

BIESETRHEERRAF | —FT_F/

F A TTEIR)

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(©)

Balances with related parties

(i)

(if)

(iil)

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had accounts
receivable from related parties of $383,912,000
(2020: $30,036,000) and accounts payable
due to related parties of $83,502,000 (2020:
$44,019,000) respectively which was arising
from the Group’s ordinary course of business
in securities broking, margin financing and
commodities and futures broking. Accounts
receivable/payable from/to related parties are
set at the same terms as those normally offered
to third party clients.

As at 31 March 2021, included in the other
receivables, deposits and prepayments were
rental and office management deposits of
$13,599,000 (2020: $13,592,000) which had
been made to related companies owned by Mr.
Yip. These amounts were unsecured, interest-
free and repayable upon expiry of the respective
leases.

As at 31 March 2021, right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities arising from the lease
arrangements with related companies owned
by Mr. Yip were amounted to $50,914,000 and
$49,949,000 respectively (2020: $101,827,000
and $98,604,000 respectively). For the year
ended 31 March 2021, the depreciation of the
right-of-use assets and the interest expense
of the lease liabilities were amounted to
$50,914,000 and $2,006,000 respectively (2020:
$52,119,000 and $3,017,000 respectively).

—FFR

30

EXBAEAEIXRZ®)

(0 EBEEALZER

(i)

(if)

(i)

R—_EBE-_—F=A=+—8"
AEBEWRBEALTZERS
383,912,000t (=Z T = T F:
30,086,0007T) & FE - BE 3 A+
2R3 7%8350200075(:%:
T 4F 1 44,019,0007T) © 9 Bl K
BRASERBEBAMETZ
BHELEL FTRBEARER
BHRE A TE o IR E A
TR ENBEALZE
HE—RREBEFE=ZHFEFPE
& FAER -

RZBE-_—F=ZA=+—8"
fth FE U 3k 1B &é&ﬁﬁm
713,599, 00071(_7_7 ¢
13,592,0007T) 8 7 [ 2 5 4 A
BAEZEAB L RN ZHEER
RAEEEZRD  HERES

AR RS WK ER A
49 JE W B E
RZFZ—F=A=+—08" &

MELEFER 2 BB AT 2
MEZHmMEEZFRBEEE
K7 & & &5 5l 250,914,000
JC }49,949,000L (= & — &
F: 9 Bl A101,827,0007C K&
98,604,0007T) °c Bl ZE =T = —
FZAZ+T—HBLEFEE  #
AREEENMERAEESBREF
B X 55l 450,914,000 &
2,006,000 C(ZE T F: 5
B A52,119,0007T }3,017,000
JL) °
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(B BEBAN - AETIIR)

30 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(©)

(d)

208

Balances with related parties (Continued)

(iv)

On 9 July 2018, the Company entered into
a loan facility letter with World Mix Limited
(“WML”), a company which is 100% beneficially
owned by Mr. Yip, for the provision of
$1,000,000,000 revolving loan facility from WML
to the Company for the Company’s general
working capital purpose. The loan bore interest
at HIBOR plus 2.75% per annum, is unsecured
and repayable on demand. Interest expense of
$1,621,000 was incurred during the year (2020:
$11,014,000). As at 31 March 2021, no drawing
was made (2020: $200,136,000) under the
facility.

On 9 July 2018, Bright Smart Securities
International (H.K.) Limited (“BSSI”), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a loan facility letter with China
Finance (Worldwide) Limited (“CFW”), a
company which is 100% beneficially owned
by Mr. Yip, for the provision of a revolving loan
facility of $1,000,000,000 by CFW to BSSI for
BSSI's general working capital purposes. The
loan bore interest at HIBOR plus 2.75% per
annum, is unsecured and repayable on demand.
Interest expense of $4,408,000 was incurred
during the year (2020: $Nil). As at 31 March
2021, no drawing was made (2020: $Nil) under
the facility.

Other transactions with related parties

Brokerage income of $1,066,000 (2020: $673,000)
and interest income of $9,514,000 (2020: $2,573,000)
was received from the directors of the Company,
their close family members and related companies
owned by a director of the Company in the ordinary
course of the Group’s business of securities broking,
commodities and futures broking and margin and IPO
financings. Commission rates are set at the same
level as those normally offered to third party clients.

30 EXBAEAEIRZ @)

(©)

(d)

BREEALZERE)

ivy RZZE—NFELANH  KTRF
HittmERAR (tt4m] - Ex
2 BEREBZRAREIMN—
MEFMEHE AR FEM
BRARFRIREBRESRME
1,000,000,0007t A {E A A Al 2
—REEEL BREEAR
77 R 2 37 B n2.75% F ) R &t
B BEEERAREREE -
FRNEE M B F X1,621,0005T
(== = Z % :11,014,0007T) °
R-ZEBE-_—F=A=+—8 " #
2 1R 15 3% 7B B & 1R BV A 5B
(== =% 4 :200,136,0007T) °

RZE—-—N\FEANLE BF
BEBBREBBRAA(R
FTHEE] ARBRzEEZER
Baa) BhEE®%(BEER) AR
ARI(FEMBE] EXxE2E
BZBBEZRARY—HE
FNBERY A EBEPEY
BRABAFESHREBERE R
%1,000,000,0007T * MA 12 7
BHEAE—MREEEL -BEX
EEBRITEER S MN2.75%
FREFE  AEEBRAR
ZREE FTREEMNERY
4408000 (ZE T F: &
L) RZEBE-_—F=A=+—
H #ERSEZERERRE
ARB(ZZEZEF Fx) °

BHEEALZHMEXS

& 43 Uk A1,066,000T (ZE -4 -
673,0007T) & F 8 U A9,514,0007T
—E T4 :2573,0007T) HAREE
AEEBPETESLL ARk
ELLCURTFREEERAFHEER
BEBMAARRES  FEZRY
REKERARF —REEHEZH
B A BIUEN o e Uk BIZE— AR [ 5
ZHEFPRBZARKFEHE -
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31 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF 31 AEIEBEZYMBEMRNRE

FINANCIAL POSITION

R-B-_-%=A=+-—H

At 31 March 2021

Non-current asset kRBEE
Investment in subsidiaries RMBRRIZIKE 19,887 19,887
Deferred tax assets EERIREE 2 =
Total non-current asset  : FrBEESRE 19889 19887
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE U Bt B A R FR IR 2,944,958 1,763,593
Other receivables, deposits and HEMERRIE ZHE2K

prepayments TE T BOIE 242 =
Tax recoverable Al 3R 0] 7 18 - 932
Cash and cash equivalents BeMReFEEY 9,782 3,377
Total currentassets =~ "BEE®RE 2,954982 1,767,902
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables H b fE T 5RIR 481 235
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERTHM B AR KIE 4,000 2,660
Amount due to a related company & — i B8 Bt 2 7] 5K 18 - 200,136
Bank loans RITE 1,714,000 335,000
Current taxation Bl HA F¢ 18 794 =
Total current liabilities REBAEAE 1,719,275 538,031
Net current assets RBEEFEE 1,235,707 1,229,871
NET ASSETS EEFE 1,255,596 1,249,758
EQUITY fE =
Share capital & 7= 26 509,189 509,189
Share premium A% 15 3% 1B 26 738,020 738,020
Retained profits R S 26 8,387 2,549
TOTAL EQUITY EREHE 1,255,596 1,249,758

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of

directors on 28 June 2021.

Yip Mow Lum
EEM
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5=

REFEN_TE_—F A+t \BH#E

I 7% T % -

Hui Yik Bun
FEW
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32

33

210

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE HOLDING
COMPANY

The directors consider the immediate parent and ultimate
holding company of the Company as at 31 March 2021 to
be New Charming Holdings Limited which was incorporated
on 6 July 2009 in the British Virgin Islands under the laws
of the British Virgin Islands and beneficially owned by Mr
Yip Mow Lum. New Charming Holdings Limited does not
produce financial statements available for public use.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2021

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and a new
standard, HKFRS 17, Insurance contracts, which are not
yet effective for the year ended 31 March 2021 and which
have not been adopted in these financial statements.
These developments include the following which may be
relevant to the Group.

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Reference to the Conceptual
Framework’

Amendments to HKAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended Use'

Amendments to HKAS 37, Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract'

32

33

EERBAZERAT

ARRZBEEB AR RKEERAT A
ERAZERERDAF  ZARIR-ZETN
FLANAERBREABEERBEEBRE X
HEZEGFMKYL  WHEXMKEESR
SR  MRAEBRARABL EREA
HARER 2T HERE

RBZ-_ZEZ-_—F=H=+—H
TFECEMGENKRERZ
£5]  FEARZBUKRELEZ
By 48

E /R~

HEHEMEHREATIZEE B gM6
NECEBRBE_SE-_—F=A=+—
BItEEMAER BT RENSEHHHRE
NERBZZEEBIIR—EBHEN(EFEY
BHREENF17THRMRBREDO]) - ZS5BET
BREAEEAEBRHEBITISE -

(BREMBREERDEIRET/HH2
1ERZS5 4]

(BREFEADFICRIETT /WX BE
iRt - E 2R E B EFT T KA S

(BREFERDEITRER [ FRILEL
— ETTERZ A
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33 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2021 (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle!

Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current?

HKFRS 17, Insurance Contracts?

L Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2022

e Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these developments is expected to be
in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded
that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

BABLEREBERAR | —T T/ ——FFR

33 REBE=-E-_—F=H=+—H

HEECEMEERERZ
B  HEARREARELEZ

43¢ )

(BBYEIRE LD FE i (2018%
2020 Z A HA)

(BEEFERDEIRERT B EI R
HRENE D)2

(BAMBREERDBITR/RBREA)?

1 RZZE-——_F—A—Hukz2&FAKBZE:
HAR A

z R-B-=F—-A—-RAk 2Kzt
HYF A2 R

AEBEENGZFETBARRIEE
REELEZZE  BEBH  A5ER
BERBZFET TR HEAMBERE
ERERTE -
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Five-year Financial Summary
LEMBERE

Year ended 31 March
BE=A=t-ALEE

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

Results “8--F E-%fF E-NF ZEN\F ZE-iF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000

T THL THL T&L THL

Revenue WA 1,285,201 864,017 830,305 944,440 562,517
Profit before taxation B A& A 817,188 528,911 499,185 600,592 314,589
Income tax &R (113,283) (57,933) (58,257) (84,499) (42,679)
Profit for the year ERGEF 703,905 470,978 440,928 516,099 271,910
Other comprehensive income Et2EKE (293) 233 250 2,241 (13,369)
Total comprehensive income for the year 9% B I 25 4248 703,612 471,211 441,178 518,340 258,541

As at 31 March
R=A=1+-H
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

Assets and Liabilities —E-_-f& _E-EF ZE-HnEF ZE-\& ZZE—+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER AT TEL THBT TAT

Current assets MHEE 15,663,569 6,198,745 7,725443 12,425,457 8,402,230
Non-current assets ERBEE 194,818 260,390 125,898 213,647 120,723
Total assets BERE 15,858,387 6,459,135 7,851,341 12,639,104 8,522,953
Current liabilities nEYEE 13,719,716 4,490,487 4,928,034 10,002,103 6,323,168
Non-current liabilities Eneas 7,996 66,342 17 39 94
Total liabilities BEAE 13,727,712 4,556,829 4,928,051 10,002,142 6,323,262
Net assets BEEHE 2,130,675 1,902,306 2,923,290 2,636,962 2,199,691
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